SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)

AGENDA

521
522
523
524
525
52.6

REGULAR OPEN SCHOOL BOARD MEETING
MEETING HELD AT BOOTH MEETING ROOM
AND ON ZOOM
Tuesday, September 23 2025- 7:00 P.M.

Adoption of Agenda

2. Presentation(s):
None
3, Approval of the Minutes of the
3.1 Open Board Meeting Held on June 17, 2025 (p. 3)
4. Necessity of Closed Meeting and Agenda
4.1 Approval of Agenda
42 Approval of Minutes of the In-Camera Meeting held June 17, 2025
4.3 Human Resources Report
44 Secretary-Treasurer's Report
4.5 Other
4.6 Legal Items
4.7 Information Items
4.8 Old Business
4.9 Items for Release
5. Correspondence
5.1 Addressed to the Board
None
5.2 Copied to the Board

May 15, 2025 email from SD 71 to the Honourable Lisa Beare (p. 10)
May 28, 2025 letter from SD 60 to MP Bob Zimmer (p. 13)

June 4, 2025 letter from SD 74 to BCSTA #1 (p. 14)

June 4, 2025 letter from SD 74 to BCSTA #2 (p. 15)

June 6, 2025 letter from SD 46 to BCSTA (p. 17)

June 12, 2025 letter from SD 72 to BCSTA (p. 21)

6. Superintendent of Schools’ Report

6.1 For Board Information:
6.1.1  Field Trips (p 22)
6.1.2  Enrolment
6.1.2.1 Enrolment graph (p. 23)
6.1.3  Upcoming Projects/Learning/Other
7. Secretary-Treasurer’s Report
7.1 Audited financial statement 2024-25 (p. 25)
7.2 Audit Findings Report KPMG (p. 71)
73 Capital Plan Bylaw (p. 106)

Page 1 of 2

1 of 140



10.

11.

12.

13.

74
7.5
7.6
7.7
7.8
79

2025/26 Annual Programs Funding Agreement — Amended (p. 108)
2026-27 Minor Capital Plan (p. 116)

2026-27 Major Capital Plan (p. 118)

Executive Compensation Disclosure Report (p. 120)

June-Aug 2025 Operations Department Reports (p. 129)

June-Aug 2025 Information Technology Department Report (p. 132)

Committee Reports

8.1

8.2

8.3

84

8.5

Finance & Building Committee (Trustees Beil, Maier, Pucci)
Framework for Enhancing Student Learning (Trustees Horne, Toye)
Provincial Council (Trustees Horne, Sanchez)
Policy Committee (Trustees Maier, Toye)

8.4.1  September 15, 2025 Meeting minutes (p. 134)
84.2  Policies for Approval
8.4.2.1 6320 — Superintendent of Schools/CEO Roles & Responsibilities
Policy (p. 135)
8.4.2.2 1370 - Physical Restraint and Seclusion Policy {p. 140)

8.4.3  Policies for Review
None

District Technology Steering Committee (Trustee Horne)

Old Business

New Business

Information Items

11.1
1.2
1.3
11.4

Implementation Day, September 26, 2025

National Day for Truth & Reconciliation, September 30, 2025
Thanksgiving, October 13, 2025

Board of Education Meeting, October 21, 2025

10 Minute Question and Answer Period

Adjournment

Page 2 of 2
2 of 140



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)

MINUTES

REGULAR OPEN SCHOOL BOARD MEETING
MEETING HELD IN THE BOOTH MEETING ROOM
Tuesday, June 17, 2025 - 7:00 P.M.

Trustees Present: K. Toye, J. Beil, K. Maier, D. Dalton, M. Pucci

Staff Present: S. Pond, A. Samoil, E. Vazquez, T. Dickens, A. Lihou, R. Edzerza, P. Khaira

Regrets:

J. Horne, L. Sanchez

Trustee Beil acknowledged that the meeting is being held on traditional Ts'msyen territory. The meeting
was called to order at 7:01 p.m.

il

Adoption of Agenda

" Motion 20250617-1.0a

Maier “Be it resolved by the Board of Education of School District No. 52
Pucci (Prince Rupert) that the Agenda is approved as presented.”
- - ) ) Carried
2. Presentation(s):
Kristy Tillman — PRMS Band
Ms. Tillman shared that the year has been busy, and some highlights have included all middle
school bands played at the Remembrance Day Assembly, School District Winter Band Concert,
Carnaval and played Oh Canada before the Teachers vs Students Hockey Game.
Cassidy Nelson and Emery Russell auditioned for the community Honor Band and were
accepted. They released a video for Music Monday.
PNW music festival where the grades 7 & 8 band, jazz and concert band all received silver. The
jazz band received the highest junior jazz band mark and the adjudicators choice award. The
Grade 6 band received gold and an invitation to Musicfest Canada.
All band students performed in Seafest last week from Grade 5-12.
The Concert and jazz bands travelled to Sun Peaks in May. Students shared their favourite
things about the trip to Sun Peaks. The Mass band and scavenger hunts were among the
favourites. Both bands received silver awards.
The Year end performance will be at the Lester Centre on Wednesday for the PRMS yearend
celebration.
Trustees expressed how they have been very impressed with how well our band groups do in
Prince Rupert. Trustees appreciate all of their hard work.
3. Approval of the Minutes of the

3.1 Open Board Meeting held May 20, 2025

Motion 20250617-3.1

Maier “Be it resolved by the Board of Education of School District No. 52
Beil (Prince Rupert) that the minutes of the open Board meeting held
May 20, 2025 be approved as presented”, Carried
4. Necessity of Closed Meetings and Agenda

4.1 Approval of Agenda

Page 1 of 7 3 0f 140



42 Approval of Minutes of the In-Camera Meeting held May 20, 2025.
43 Human Resources Report
44 Secretary-Treasurer's Report
4.5 Other
4.6 Legal Items
4.7 Information Items
48 Old Business
B 49  ltemsfor Release
J Motion 20250617-4.0a J
Beil “Be it resolved by the Board of Education of School District No. 52
Maier (Prince Rupert) that the closed meeting be held and that agenda
items 1 through 9 be approved.” Carried

5 Correspondence
5:1 Addressed to the Board
None

52 Copied to the Board
52.1  May 8, 2025 letter to BCSTA from SD No. 73
522 May9, 2025 letter to Honorable Members of Legislative from SD No. 73
52.3 May 12, 2024 letter to Honourable Mike Farnworth from SD No. 33
524 May16, 2025 letter to BCSTA from Ministry of Health
| Motion 20250617-5.2

Maier “Be it resolved by the Board of Education of School District No. 52
Dalton (Prince Rupert) that Item 5.2.1 to 5.2.4 be received and filed.”
- - - Carried
6. Superintendent of Schools Report
6.1 For Board Information:

6.1.1  Field Trips
The Superintendent presented the list of approved field trips and answered
questions from Trustees. Are there any regulations in place to go to Kloiya
Bay? There is a company that goes with them. They have an agreement
and insurance. There is strict protocol in place for this.

6.1.2  Enrolment
The Assistant Superintendent reported enrolment is 1802 on May 31, 2025.
Our enrolment is at an all-time low. We are hoping for the trend to change.
Trustees wondered if some of the families who have left are on work visas.
The District does not have this information.

6.1.2.1 Enrolment graph
Review of graph and trends.

6.1.3  Upcoming Projects/Learning/Other

Superintendent Samoil shared that:
CHSS Jr. Boys' golf team won the zone championships and competed in

Page 2 of 7 4 of 140



Pemberton provincials. They placed 11" overall.

Hartley Bay students participated in the harvesting camp in Kiel. They
participated in harvesting seaweed, preparing the fishing gear, bonfires,
exploring Sealion rock and beach time!

All schools have been participating in track and field. CHSS athletes
competed in track and field zones in Smithers winning both senior and
overall banners. Many achieved personal bests, and 17 athletes qualified
for Provincials.

Felicity Green and Tyson Bomben will be speaking with the premier on
June 20™.

CHSS students participated in Salmon Fest, including members of the Git
Waas Drum group and other community organizations.

The CHSS commencement ceremony took place on June 13*. PCS
commencement will happen on Thursday, June 19,

Conrad Elementary will be heading to the Salt Marsh/curling rink this week
for their year-end celebration. Many fun outdoor and indoor activities are
planned, including lunch and a drumming circle. Lax Kxeen will be doing
a similar celebration also at the Salt Marsh/curling rink next week

All schools will be honoring National Indigenous Peoples Day this week
with several activities planned such as Metis dancers, art, drumming, fried
bread, cod chowder etc.

Roosevelt school will have the official opening of the Salmon Berry Garden
on Friday. Sponsors will be in attendance.

Pembina is doing a golf scramble on July 5% and all the proceeds will be
going to CHSS, PRMS and PCS for sporting activity travel.

Early Learning & Child Care:

“Play in the Kindergarten” sessions at all elementary schools in May and
June were a success. Each site had 75- 80 % participation of new families.
These sessions are designed to welcome new Kindergarten students to
build relationships with staff and students as well as to ease the transition
into school in September. The summer childcare program at Conrad Street
Elementary School is now at capacity- 22 students are registered. Three
Early Childhood Educators are hired and are preparing for start-up on July
2nd to August 15th. The school district has applied for a license to operate
a before and after school and 36 months to school age childcare program
at Port Edward Community School. Twenty spaces will be available. A letter
for an expression of interest has been sent out on social media sites to
determine if there is enough interest to operate the program.

Special thanks to Sandra Pond as this is her last meeting as she is retiring.

Her last day is July 31, 2025. We thank her for all her service to the District.
She will be greatly missed.

7. Secretary Treasurer’s Report
7.1 May 2025 Statement of Operations Report

The Secretary-Treasurer presented the May statement of operations report and
answered questions from Trustees. The total revenue was almost $62,000 better than

Page 3 of 7 5 of 140




amended budget, mostly due to investment interest income. Expenses were around
$64,000 lower than the amended budget, mostly due to teacher salaries. A correction
was made due to an incorrect allocation of a teacher’s salary.

End of May there is a surplus of $277, 983 and this is a variance of 125,707 from last
year. The Interest income is due to the money from the childcare facility sitting in our
account.

Trustees questioned the what the investment interest income is from? This is due to
the funds for the daycare facility.

1.2 2025-26 Annual Budget and Bylaw
The Secretary-Treasurer presented the preliminary 2025-26 Annual Budget. The first reading was done at
the May 20, 2025 Board Meeting. The Secretary-Treasurer recommends moving forward with the second
and third readings. Questions arose about support staff and who that includes. Where is the 80,000 coming
from? The projections from the amended budget were higher than actual.
The Secretary-Treasurer does not see a need to cut any positions but rather focus on cuts in services and

supplies. - - B B ) -
Motion 20250520-7.2a
Maier “Be it resolved by the Board of Education of School District No. 52
Beil (Prince Rupert) that the 2025-26 Annual Budget Bylaw be read a

_second and third time and adopted the 17" day of June, 2025." Carried

Motion 20250520-7.2b

| Maier “Be it resolved by the Board of Education of School District No. 52
| Beil (Prince Rupert) that the 2025-26 Annual Budget Bylaw be read a
’777 B second time the 17t day of June, 2025."

ANNUAL BUDGET BYLAW

A Bylaw of THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)
(called the "Board") to adopt the Annual Budget of the Board for the fiscal year 2025/2026 pursuant
to section 113 of the School Act, RS.B.C., 1996, c. 412 as amended from time to time (called the "Act ")

1. The Board has complied with the provisions of the Act, Ministerial Orders, and Ministry of
Education and Child Care Policies respecting the Annual Budget adopted by this bylaw.
2. This bylaw may be cited as School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)
Annual Budget Bylaw for fiscal year 2025/2026.
3. The attached Statement 2 showing the estimated revenue and expense for the

2025/2026 fiscal year and the total budget bylaw amount of $38,258,616 for the 2025/2026 fiscal
year was prepared in accordance with the Act.

4. Statement 2, 4 and Schedules 2 to 4 are adopted as the Annual Budget of the Board
for the fiscal year 2025/2026.

READ A FIRST TIME THE 20th DAY OF MAY, 2025;
READ A SECOND TIME THE 17" DAY OF JUNE, 2025;
READ A THIRD TIME, PASSED AND ADOPTED THE 17t DAY OF JUNE, 2025;

Page 4 of 7 CRREy



l Motion 20250520-7.2b

Maier “Be it resolved by the Board of Education of School District No. 52
Beil (Prince Rupert) that the 2025-26 Annual Budget Bylaw be read a third
time, passed and adopted the 17t day of June, 2025." Carried

73 May 2025 Operations Department Report
The Secretary-Treasurer presented the Operations Report for May 2025 and
answered questions from Trustees.

7.4 May 2025 Information Technology Department Report
The Secretary-Treasurer presented the Information Technology Department Report
for May 2025 and answered questions from Trustees.

8. Committee Reports
8.1 Finance & Building Committee (Trustees Beil, Maier, Pucci)
) 8.1.1  September 2025 Board Meeting date change request
Motion 20250617-8.1.1a
Maier "Be it resolved by the Board of Education of School District No. 52
Beil (Prince Rupert) that the September Board meeting date be moved to
September 234" Carried

The Secretary—?reasurer informed the board that on this date he will be presenting the Audited Financial
Statements.

8.2 Framework for Enhancing Student Learning (Trustees Horne, Toye)
Have not met.

8.3 Provincial Council (Trustees Horne, Sanchez)
Nothing to report

8.4 Policy Committee (Trustees Toye, Maier)
8.4.1  June 10, 2025, meeting
Chair Toye presented the minutes of the June 10, 2025, meeting of the
Policy Committee and answered questions from Trustees.

8.4.2 Policies for Approval
8.4.2.1 6710 - Records Management Policy
8.4.2.2 2330 - Service Awards Policy
8.4.2.3 5120 - Naming Policy

‘Motion 20250617-8.4.2a

Beil “Be it resolved by the Board of Education of School District No. 52
Dalton (Prince Rupert) that 6710 — Records Management Policy, 2330 —
i B ~ Service Awards Policy be approved.” o Carried

Trustee Beil asked for clarification on the on and off reserve piece of the naming policy proposed change
from Rightsholders/shareholders. Does this mean it refers to someone not in the school district? The policy
as worded with proposed changes seems very vague to her. The Superintendent said this refers to having
a true representation of all to be included in naming whether they still live on the reserve.

Page 5 of 7 7 of 140



'Motion 20250617-8.4.2b

Beil “Be it resolved by the Board of Education of School District No. 52 [
Maier (Prince Rupert) that policy 5120 — Naming policy be tabled until all ‘
- board members are available to be involved in the discussion.” _ Carried |

8.4.3  Policies for Review
84.3.1 6320 - Superintendent’s Job Description Policy
84.3.2 1370 — Physical Restraint and Seclusion Policy

' Motion 2025006017-8.4.3.1

| Pucci “Be it resolved by the Board of Education of School District No. 52
Dalton (Prince Rupert) that policy 6320 — Superintendent’s Job Policy be
J kept internal to review among the board.” Carried

6320 is an internal policy and will be reviewed by the board and not sent out to P;ightsholdiérs and
stakeholders.

| Motion 2025006017-8.4.3.2
Beil "Be it resolved by the Board of Education of School District No. 52
Pucci (Prince Rupert) that 1370 — Physical Restraint and Seclusion policy

~ Carried ’

8.5 District Technology Steering Committee

Did not meet
9. Old Business
None
10. New Business
None
11. Information Items:

11.1 PCS Commencement, June 19, 2025
Chair Toye noted that PCS Commencement is on June 19, 2025.

11.2  National Indigenous Peoples Day, June 21, 2025.
Chair Toye noted that National Indigenous People’s Day is on June 21, 2025.

113  Last Day of School, June 26, 2025.
Chair Toye noted that the last day of school is on June 26, 2025.

114 Administrative Day, June 27, 2025.
Chair Toye noted that Administrative Day is on June 27, 2025.

11.5  First Day of School, September 2, 2025.
Chair Toye noted that the First Day of School is on September 2, 2025.

11.6  Board of Education Meeting, September 23, 2025.
Chair Toye noted that the Board of Education Meeting is on September 23, 2025.

Page 6 of 7 8 of 140



12. 10 Minute Question and Answer Period

Trustee Dalton:
Q - Will the Literacy coordinator be bi-lingual?
A- There will be an opportunity that staff who are bi-lingual may apply when the position is

posted.

13. Adjournment
Chair Toye adjourned the meeting at 8:11 p.m.

Page 7 of 7 9 of 140




Comox Valley Schools
% \ School District No. 71
‘\\ , Board of Education

2488 Idiens Wa
Comox Valley Schools Courtonay, B.C. VO 9BY
A Community of Learners Fax (250) 334 5552

Telephone (250) 334 5500

May 15, 2025
Via Email

RE: Provincial Action Plan to address Gender-Based Violence in K-12 Education

Dear Honourable Lisa Beare,
Minister of Education and Child Care

Following our meeting of May 12, 2025, we write to provide additional information on our request
to partner with the Ministry of Education and Child Care to develop a provincial K-12 gender-
based violence action plan.

Comox Valley Schools has identified safety as a foundational value and the prevention of gender-
based violence (GBV) as a strategic priority, aligning with our Strategic Plan goals of student-
centered learning, inclusive and culturally responsive practices, and strengthened system
structures. As such, we seek the Ministry’s leadership in advancing a coordinated, province-wide
framework for K-12 Gender-Based Violence (GBV) prevention and response. Comox Valley
Schools is prepared to contribute leadership and dedicated resources to co-develop this initiative.

Background

Since 2022, the Comox Valley Board of Education has prioritized addressing gender-based
violence across its school communities. A district-wide GBV Committee, co-chaired by Trustees
and inclusive of Indigenous and Inclusive Education, students, union partners, district parent
advisory council, and community partners, has guided this work in consultation with partner
groups and local subject matter reviewing policies, identifying systematic gaps, and initiating
prevention strategies.

In June 2022, the SD71 Board of Education unanimously passed a motion to establish a district-
wide GBV Committee. The committee’s mandate includes:

Reviewing existing policies and procedures related to GBV

Identifying system gaps

Consulting with community organizations and education stakeholders
Recommending district-wide approaches to prevent and respond to GBV

School District No. 71 (Comox Valley) Board of Education

Vision Statement - Compassionate, connected and personalized learning for all.
Purpose Statement — 7o create safe, equitable learning environments that lift each learner to thrive, grow and to share their unique gifls.

10 of 140



To date, the SD71 GBV Committee has undertaken the following actions:

o Policy and Procedure Review:
o Review of SD71’s policies and administrative procedures, with comparative
scans of other K-12 districts and post-secondary institutions.

e Engagement with Partner Groups and Community:
o Consultations with school-based professionals and student leaders
o Engagement with external agencies, including:
= Comox Valley Transition Society
Police- and Community-Based Victim Services
The Foundry
AIDS Vancouver Island
The LINC Youth Centre

o District-wide Anonymous Survey (March—April 2025):
o Over 300 responses from students, staff, and caregivers identified priorities for
improved prevention, education, and disclosure support.

Despite significant progress at the district level, our work has made one thing clear: a
coordinated, province-wide framework is essential to provide equitable protection, prevention,
and support across B.C.’s diverse school communities.

Why Now

While GBV prevention is not specifically referenced in your mandate letter, it is clearly established
as a provincial priority. The BC Gender-Based Violence Action Plan (2023) names "breaking
cycles of violence through prevention, healing, and accountability"—including in K-12
education—as a key goal. Furthermore, the province’s recent declaration of gender-based
violence as an epidemic reinforces the urgency and scale of this issue.

There is currently no provincial standard or mandate guiding school districts in preventing or
responding to GBV in K—12 settings. The absence of coordinated action exposes significant gaps
in consistency, training and safety protocols.

Of note, the post-secondary sector is supported through the Sexual Violence and Misconduct
Policy Act (2016) and, the K-12 system deserves the same level of structure and support to
protect students and staff alike.

The K—12 system is uniquely positioned to advance prevention efforts, promote safety, and help
break intergenerational cycles of violence—particularly among girls, Indigenous students, and
other equity-deserving youth. This links directly to your government’s stated commitment to
making “our neighborhoods and communities safer.”

What We’ve Learned

From our engagement work, including an anonymous survey with over 300 respondents,
professional learning initiatives, and partnerships with organizations like Comox Valley Transition
Society and The Foundry, we know:

e GBV exists in schools and is underreported.

School District No. 71 (Comox Valley) Board of Education

Vision Statement - Compassionate, connected and personalized learning for all.
Purpose Statement — 7o create safe, equitable learning environments that lift each learner to thrive, grow and to share their unique gifls.

11 of 140



¢ Indigenous learners are disproportionately impacted by GBV.

e Educators and administrators lack the confidence and training to respond effectively.
Students want education and safe spaces to speak up.

e Culturally responsive, trauma-informed approaches are essential.

Conclusion

We believe this is more than policy; it's a moral imperative. We cannot expect to create safe and
inclusive learning environments without directly addressing the reality of gender-based violence
in our schools. With the Ministry’s support, we can develop a province-wide framework that
ensures every student in British Columbia learns in a school that is safe and inclusive, where
they are safe, seen, heard and supported. This is how we foster a sense of confidence and
belonging.

We would welcome the opportunity to meet with you and your team to share our work and begin
building this essential partnership. Comox Valley Schools is committed to supporting this work
and is ready to contribute.

Sincerely,

Michelle Waite
Board Chairperson
Comox Valley Schools

School District No. 71 (Comox Valley) Board of Education

Vision Statement - Compassionate, connected and personalized learning for all.
Purpose Statement — 7o create safe, equitable learning environments that lift each learner to thrive, grow and to share their unique gifls.

12 of 140



DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION OFFICE |

May 28,2025

MP Bob Zimmer
9916 100 Avenue
Fort St. John, BC V1J 1Y5

Via Email: bob.zimmer@parl.gc.ca

Dear MP Zimmer:
Congratulations on your reelection. Thank you for your willingness to serve our region.

Just prior to spring break and the interregnum period we became aware of the fact that thought
was being given to Regulations to Amend the Canada Student Loan Regulations and the Canada
Student Financial Assistance Regulations. Currently there are loan forgiveness provisions in
place for health care but consideration is being given to expanding the list of occupations covered
by loan forgiveness. Stephen MacKinnon former Federal Minister of Employment, Workforce
Development and Labour spoke to the potential changes before the election.

Recruitment and Retention is a challenge in all areas of our district. The proposed changes to
include teachers, social workers, psychologists, physiotherapists and early childhood educators in
the list of occupations for loan forgiveness based on service would be of benefit to us. The
changes are designed to be of assistance to underserved rural and remote communities. It is
important to us that there be follow-through on any initiative that would assist with the retention
and recruitment of staff. We are asking you to support the proposed regulation changes and
hope you find an opportunity to stress the importance of follow-up on this initiative.

We are happy to share the successes of our district with you and are always available to meet or
answer any questions.

Yours truly,

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
School District No. 60 (Peace River North)

Helen Gilbert, Board Chair

HG:Ir

cc. Tracy Loffler, BCSTA President — tloffler@bcsta.org
Trevor Davies, CEO BCSTA - tdavies@bcsta.org
Alan Campbell, CSBA President — acampbell@isd21.mb.ca

File: 4.8

BOARD OF EDUCATION
Helen Gilbert - Board Chair  Bill Snow - Vice Chair  lda Campbell
Nicole Gilliss David Scott-Moncrieff Madeleine Lehmann Tom Whitton

13 of 140



School District No. 74 (Gold Trail)

Our Goals: Success ¢ Reconciliation ¢ Team ¢ Communication ¢ Sustainability

June 4, 2025

British Columbia School Trustees Association
4% floor — 1580 West Broadway

Vancouver, B.C.

VV6J 5K9

ATTENTION: Board of Directors

Dear BCSTA Board of Directors;

RE: Request for clarification on Changes to PC Responsibilities and Reporting Processes

Following the recent Annual General Meeting and the adoption of the revised BCSTA by-laws, we
understand that the roles and responsibilities of the Provincial Council (PC) have been significantly
amended. Additionally, we note that the proposed Gold Trail resolution amendment was narrowly
defeated.

Given that the agenda for the April 24 PC meeting was prepared prior to these by-law changes, it
included items — such as reports and minutes from the President, Chief Executive Officer, Board of
Directors, and various standing committees (excluding the Finance Committee) — which no longer fall
under the purview of the PC.

To support our understanding of these governance changes and to ensure appropriate
communication and oversight moving forward, we respectfully request clarification on the following
points:
1. Responsibility: Which body is now responsible for receiving and reviewing the reports
previously presented to the PC?
2. Approval Process: Who holds the authority to approve these reports under the new
governance structure?
3. Board Access: Through what mechanism will local Boards, including ours, receive these
reports going forward?
4. Reference Documentation: In which section(s) of the BCSTA by-laws or policy documents
are these revised processes and responsibilities formally outlined?

We appreciate your attention to this matter and look forward to your guidance in understanding the
implications of these recent changes for our Board’s ongoing engagement and oversight
responsibilities.

Sincerely,

éf:—: (Z,,\A_,_. %//

Carmen Ranta Larry Casper

Co-Chair, Board of Education Co-Chair, Board of Education
School District No. 74 (Gold Trail) School District No. 74 (Gold Trail)

Gold Trail respectfully acknowledges that the land on which we gather is the unceded and traditional territory
of the Nlaka ’pamux, St’dat’imc and Secwépemc First Peoples.

PO Box 250, Ashcroft, BC VOK 1A0 14 of 140
Phone: 250453 9101 Fax: 250 984 0772 Website: www.sd74.bc.ca



School District No. 74 (Gold Trail)

Our Goals: Success ¢ Reconciliation ¢ Team ¢ Communication ¢ Sustainability

June 4, 2025

British Columbia School Trustees Association
4% floor — 1580 West Broadway

Vancouver, B.C.

V6J 5K9

ATTENTION: Board of Directors

Dear BCSTA Board of Directors;

RE: Follow-Up on Defeated Resolution Regarding IEAC Representation

Congratulations on your recent elections. We wish you success in your respective roles and look
forward to the collaborative work ahead.

Following reflection and discussion, the Gold Trail Board of Education is writing to follow up on the
resolution we brought forward concerning the Indigenous Education Advisory Council (IEAC), which
was narrowly defeated at the recent Annual General Meeting.

We appreciated that Past President Carolyn Broady took the time to engage directly with Trustee
Adrian prior to the motion being presented. However, we wish to express our ongoing concern that,
despite years of assurances that changes to IEAC governance would be addressed, no substantive
action has yet occurred.

Of particular concern to our Board is the current process for determining IEAC membership, which we
feel reflects a paternalistic and colonial approach — akin to the historical role of Indian Agents,
wherein decisions affecting Indigenous communities were made unilaterally. In contrast, the process
used to establish the Professional Learning Committee (PLC) is more democratic and inclusive. Our
proposed changes sought to align IEAC representation with the same equitable principles applied to
the PLC.

One objection raised during debate was that some BCSTA branches are smaller in size, which was
cited as a reason not to support the proposed changes. We respectfully question why this concern
applies to IEAC and not to the PLC, where representation is similarly structured. The broader issue,
from our perspective, is not the size of the branches, but the principle of equity in voice and
participation — particularly who determines representation and how that process is enacted.

We also noted that, during the AGM, no Board member rose to oppose the motion regarding branch
representation on the PLC. If branch size is a valid concern in one context, why was it not raised
consistently across both motions? The disparity in response reinforces our concern that Indigenous-
focused governance structures are being treated differently and less equitably.

Gold Trail respectfully acknowledges that the land on which we gather is the unceded and traditional territory
of the Nlaka 'pamux, St’dt'imc and Secwépemc First Peoples.

PO Box 250, Ashcroft, BC VOK 1A0 15 of 140
Phone: 250453 9101 Fax: 250 984 0772 Website: www.sd74.bc.ca



School District No. 74 (Gold Trail)

Our Goals: Success ¢ Reconciliation ¢ Team ¢ Communication ¢ Sustainability

We acknowledge that change can be difficult, but it is essential. Continuing with governance practices
that replicate colonial power dynamics is not acceptable. We respectfully ask for assurances that our
concerns will not be dismissed or delayed again, and that meaningful steps will be taken to ensure
inclusive, equitable representation on the IEAC.

Thank you for your time and consideration. We look forward to your response and to learning more
about the process for moving these important discussions forward.

Sincerely,
7 74
Carmen Ranta Larry Casper
Co-Chair, Board of Education Co-Chair, Board of Education
School District No. 74 (Gold Trail) School District No. 74 (Gold Trail)

Gold Trail respectfully acknowledges that the land on which we gather is the unceded and traditional territory
of the Nlaka pamux, St’dat’imc and Secwépemc First Peoples.

PO Box 250, Ashcroft, BC VOK 1A0 16 of 140
Phone: 2504539101 Fax: 250 984 0772 Website: www.sd74.bc.ca



a@ SCHOOL DISTRICT 46
N SUNSHINE COAST

BOARD OF EDUCATION

Delivered via email: tloffler@bcsta.org

June 6, 2025

British Columbia School Trustees Association
Attn: Board of Directors

1580 West Broadway

Vancouver, BC V6J 5K6

RE: Non-voting Student Delegates at the BCSTA Annual General Meetings

The Sunshine Coast School District 46 Board of Education passed the following motion at its
Regular meeting on May 14, 2025:

MOTION: “THAT the Sunshine Coast Board of Education write to BCSTA to express
concern about the passing of Motion 18 from the 2025 AGM: Non-voting Student
Delegates at the BCSTA Annual General Meetings.”

We now submit this letter in fulfilment of that directive.

In June 2024, BCSTA members approved a motion instructing the association to develop a
process for including non-voting student delegates at the AGM. The intent was clear: to
establish a practical framework allowing a secondary-school student from each member board
to attend, observe debates, and offer brief perspectives—without voting. It was understood that
logistical matters, such as selection criteria, orientation, budget implications, supervision, and
equity, would be resolved through the development of that process.

Following the 2024 AGM, BCSTA commissioned a consultant's report to inform this work. While
the report acknowledged that no insurmountable barriers existed, it repeatedly framed legitimate
logistical considerations as reasons to delay or reconsider implementation. Rather than
presenting concrete steps, the consultant reframed the motion as a broader philosophical
question: If students are included, why not parents, First Nations representatives, or community
groups? If costs are prohibitive, what other engagement options exist?

The result was a document that, rather than advancing the will of the membership, substituted
speculation and philosophical hesitation for an actionable plan. Unsurprisingly, frustration grew,
and a motion to cease further exploration was introduced.

At the 2025 AGM, Motion 18—"Non-voting Student Delegates at BCSTA’s Annual General
Meetings"—was passed. While its language effectively halted further exploration, it did not
reverse the direction provided in 2024. No implementation process had ever been brought
forward for consideration, and yet the membership was asked to vote on whether to discontinue

School District 46 - Sunshine Coast | 494 South Fletcher, PO Box 220, Gibsons, BC VON 1V0

(604) 886-8811 | questions@sd4é.bc.ca | www.sd46.bc.ca
17 of 140



BOSTA - STUDENT DELEGATES - JUNE 6, 2025 PAGE 2

the work entirely. The decision to abandon the initiative without ever piloting a proposal
represents, in our view, a missed opportunity and a failure of governance.

The 2024 motion was rooted in the belief that student voice belongs at the provincial table. It did
not request a philosophical treatise or a theoretical exploration; it requested a plan. Instead of
providing that, the consultant’s work stalled progress and redefined the task in ways that diluted
its purpose. Motion 18 reinforced this outcome, cutting short a conversation that had only just
begun.

In light of these concerns, we respectfully request that BCSTA take the following actions:

1. Adopt the attached process for including one non-voting student delegate per member
board at future AGMs, beginning in 2026—uwithout further study or delay.

2. Ensure that any future consultant engagements have a clearly defined scope and
purpose, with deliverables that align with the directives of the membership. The 2024
report failed to deliver a concrete implementation plan and demonstrated significant bias,
diverging dramatically from the original mandate.

3. Provide a written explanation of how the consultant's scope was allowed to deviate so
significantly from the intent of the 2024 motion, and why this deviation was accepted
without corrective measures.

A practical, equitable process is enclosed. It directly addresses the logistical concerns raised—
selection, orientation, supervision, budget, and equity—so that BCSTA can move forward
without reopening philosophical debates. Our students deserve a structured, meaningful
presence at the AGM—one that reflects the values of student-centered governance that BCSTA
has publicly embraced.

Yours truly,
//(/’(

Amanda Amaral
Board Chair

Enclosure

Cc: Trevor Davies, Chief Executive Officer, BCSTA
Board of Education of Sunshine Coast School District 46
Kate Kerr, Superintendent, Sunshine Coast School District 46
District Student Leadership Team, Sunshine Coast School District 46

School District 46 - Sunshine Coast | PO Box 220 - 494 South Fletcher, Gibsons, BC VON 1VO

(604) 886-8811 | questions@sd4é6.bc.ca | www.sd46.bc.ca
18 of 140



Process: Non-Voting Student Delegates at the BCSTA AGM

Purpose:
To ensure students—the primary beneficiaries of public education—are meaningfully included in
BCSTA's deliberations through non-voting participation at the Annual General Meeting.

1. Eligibility and Selection

o Each board of education may appoint one student delegate to attend the BCSTAAGM in
a non-voting capacity.

« Boards are not required to send a student delegate
« Delegates must be currently enrolled in Grades 11 or 12.
o Boards are encouraged to select students who demonstrate:
o Maturity and readiness to engage respectfully in a governance environment;

o The ability to reflect the interests of students broadly, including voices that
are underrepresented or marginalized;

o Strong communication and listening skills, including a willingness to learn
and represent diverse perspectives.

e The selection process should be transparent, inclusive, and locally determined, with
attention to student diversity in terms of geography, culture, gender, socio-economic
background, and lived experience.

2. Role and Participation
« Delegates may attend plenary sessions, workshops, and observe debate on motions.

« Delegates may be invited by the AGM Chair to speak during debate at their board’s
discretion, similar to guest presenters, but will not vote or move/second motions.

« A pre-AGM Student Orientation and Forum will be coordinated by BCSTA to prepare
delegates and build capacity for meaningful engagement.

3. Supervision and Logistics
« Boards are responsible for student supervision, travel, and accommodation.
o BCSTAwill:
o Coordinate group hotel bookings to ease administrative burden;
o Provide appropriate registration processes;

o Ensure all student activities are fully separate from trustee events involving
alcohol.

19 of 140




» Delegates will follow BCSTA’s code of conduct and respectful participation expectations.

« Delegates will be connected in advance of the AGM through virtual meetups to build
familiarity and reduce social barriers.

4, Evaluation and Improvement

» Following each AGM, BCSTA will conduct a post-event evaluation that includes feedback
from student delegates, trustee attendees, and district chaperones.

« This feedback will inform continuous improvements to the process and ensure that
student inclusion remains meaningful, safe, and representative.

20 of 140



‘-é A Pacific Rim School District

\{ - 4690 Roger Street, Port Alberni, B.C. VOY 3Z4 Ph: (250) 723-3565 Fax (250) 723-0318
June 12, 2025

Trevor Davies, CEO

British Columbia School Trustees Association (BCSTA)
4" Floor — 1580 West Broadway

Vancouver, BC V6J 5K9

tdavies@BCSTA.ORG

Kat Eddy, President

Vancouver Island School Trustees Association (VISTA)

c/o Natalie Crawshaw, EA - Campbell River School District
Natalie.Crawshaw(@sd72.bc.ca

Subject: Advocacy Request — Capital Funding for Housing Accommodation

Dear BCSTA and VISTA Boards of Directors,

As the Board of Education for Pacific Rim School District, we are writing to request your support in advocating to the
Ministry of Education and Child Care and the Ministry of Infrastructure for dedicated funding to support housing solutions
for staffing in school districts.

Across British Columbia, Boards of Education are grappling with a growing challenge: the shortage of affordable housing.
This issue is significantly hindering our ability to recruit and retain educators, support staff, and administrators particularly
in rural, remote, and high-cost communities. Without access to secure and affordable housing, many potential employees
are unable to consider positions in our districts, and those already here are facing increasing difficulty maintaining stable
living arrangements.

We urge the Ministry to consider including housing accommodation initiatives within an existing capital funding stream -
such as Minor or Major Capital - or to establish a new program tailored to this need. While some districts have made
progress by partnering with municipalities, First Nations, and non-profit housing providers, this issue demands a system-
wide response. Provincial funding is critical to scaling these efforts and ensuring that all districts can provide safe, stable
housing options for staff.

Beyond supporting recruitment and retention, funding housing for staff aligns with broader provincial goals of promoting
equity, improving access to education, and ensuring continuity of service in public schools. The ability of school districts to
deliver on their educational mandate is increasingly tied to whether our staff can afford to live in the communities they
serve.

Thank you for your continued leadership and support of BC’s public education system. We trust that both BCSTA and
VISTA will elevate this issue in your advocacy efforts and help ensure it receives the attention and resources it urgently
requires.

Sincerely,

/ \
ﬂgwfu é (% u‘ﬂ

Pam Craig, Board Chair
Pacific Rim School District’s Board of Education

21 of 140



PRINCE RUPERT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52

SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS REPORT
TO BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES

September 23, 2025

6.1 For Board Information:
6.1.1 Field Trips Approved

School Dates # Grade Purpose
School
Days
1. PRMS June 24, 2025 1 7 Diana Lake Year End
Celebration
2. PRMS Sept 10, 2025 1 5 Butze Rapids
3. CHSS Sept 17, 2025 1 11/12 Traditional local waters —
marine science
4, PRMS Sept 25, 2025 1 7 Butze Rapids

6.1.2  Enrolment
6.1.2.1  Enrolment Graph (p.)

6.1.3  Upcoming Projects/Learning/Other

22 of 140




dis 5z0z ‘o€ sunr

0C-6T e [7-Q( e 77-[C e C7-CC e-€C S¢-ve

SYIUON

Aenl udy yaJen Adeniga4 Asenuer Jaquadsg J3QWIBA0ON 1340310 Jaquiaidas

— ~ 0oLt

————— {SI3

—_— - — — — 0081

e _

- e
s

~— oS8T

SIaQUINN 1U2pPNIS

———— (06T

o —— =

—— ————————— 000

23 of 140




Enrollment for SD 52 2024-2025
Date Student Count Indigenous Student
Count
September 30, 2025 1, 813 1,113 (61%)
October 31, 2025 1,818 1,120 (62%)
November 30, 2025 1,814 1,117 (62%)
December 31, 2025 1, 810 1,116 (62%)
January 31, 2025 1,811 1,115 (62%)
February 28, 2025 1, 809 1,114 (62%)
March 31, 2025 1,811 1,117 (62%)
April 30, 2025 1, 806 1,120 (62%)
May 31, 2025 1, 802 1,106 (61%)
June 30,2025 1,792 1,087(60%)

24 of 140




Audited Financial Statements of

School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)

And Independent Auditors’ Report thereon

June 30, 2025

DRAFT - Not Finalized

September 03, 2025 14:41 25 of 140




School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)
June 30, 2025

Table of Contents
MANBEEMENE REPOIL ..vveivrivieieititeitiir et vaise otk es e b b e s bbb oL 1L L RS E e RS L L a bt 1
Independent AUditOrs’ REPOIT ..ot bbb bR LU b s 2-4
Statement of Financial Position - STAtEMENE 1 ...ccieerireriiiiiciiiicin i ettt s 5
Statement of OPerations - STAEMENE 2 ......ccciiiiiiiiiriiriii e e e e bbb 6
Statement of Changes in Net Debt - Statement 4 ...t s 7
Statement of Cash FIOWS - SEALEIMENT 5 ..couiiiaiiir ettt bbbt et b b b st s b st b s tn s 8
Notes to the FINancial SATEIMENTS .....iieerotieiitrrer et eteritiets et sss et er st e a et b e e e b a2t E bbbt en st b b e s b s 9-27
Schedule of Changes in Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) by Fund - Schedule 1 (Unaudited) ...c.oovviiniiniinnn, 28
Schedule of Operating Operations - Schedule 2 (Unaudited) ... 29
Schedule 2A - Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source (Unaudited) ........cooveviiinaeiiimen 30
Schedule 2B - Schedule of Operating Expense by Object (Unaudited) ..., 31
Schedule 2C - Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object (Unaudited) ....ccoccoeinvninceninimecnn. 32
Schedule of Special Purpose Operations - Schedule 3 (Unaudited) ... 34
Schedule 3A - Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object (Unaudited) ..o 35
Schedule of Capital Operations - Schedule 4 (Unaudited) ........ocoiiiiiinii i 40
Schedule 4A - Tangible Capital Assets (Unaudited) .......ooveviiiiiiiiiiii i 41
Schedule 4B - Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress (Unaudited) ..., 42
Schedule 4C - Deferred Capital Revenue (Unaudited) ... 43
Schedule 4D - Changes in Unspent Deferred Capital Revenue (Unaudited) ..., 44

DRAFT - Not Finalized

September 03, 2025 14:41 26 of 140




|
|

School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)

MANAGEMENT REPORT
DRAFT

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements.

The accompanying financial statements of School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) have been prepared by
management in accordance with the accounting requirements of Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and
Accountability Act of British Columbia, supplemented by Regulations 257/2010 and 198/2011 issued by the
Province of British Columbia Treasury Board, and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are
management's responsibility. Management is also responsible for all of the notes to the financial statements and
schedules, and for ensuring that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information
contained in the financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management's
judgment particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with
certainty until future periods.

Management is also responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and reliable financial
information is produced.

The Board of Education of School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) (called the "Board") is responsible for
ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for financial reporting and internal control and exercises
these responsibilities through the Board. The Board reviews internal financial statements on a monthly basis
and externally audited financial statements yearly.

The external auditors, KPMG, conduct an independent examination, in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards, and express their opinion on the financial statements. The external auditors have
full and free access to financial management of School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) and meet when required.
The accompanying Independent Auditors' Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of their examination
and their opinion on the School District's financial statements.

On behalf of School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)

ate Signed

Date Signed

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer Date Signed

DRAFT - Not Finalized

September 03, 2025 14:41 27 of 140

Page 1



KPMG LLP

177 Victoria Street, Suite 400
Prince George, BC V2L 5R8
Canada

Telephone (250) 563-7151
Fax (250) 563-5693

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Education of School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert), and
To the Minister of Education and Child Care, Province of British Columbia

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) (the Entity),
which comprise:

+  the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2025

+  the statement of operations for the year then ended

«  the statement of changes in net debt for the year then ended

+  the statement of cash flows for the year then ended

+ and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
(Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements as at and for the year ended June 30,
2025 of the Entity are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the financial reporting
provisions of Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act of the Province of
British Columbia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our auditor’s report.

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter — Financial Reporting Framework

We draw attention to note 2(a) to the financial statements which describes the applicable
financial reporting framework and the significant differences between the financial reporting
framework and Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KPMG LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership and member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent
member firms affiliated with KPMG Intemnational Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee.
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP.

28 of 140



School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises:

s Information included in Unaudited Schedules 1-4 attached to the audited financial
statements

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

We obtained the Information included in the Unaudited Schedules 1-4 attached to the audited
financial statements as at the date of this auditor's report. If, based on the work we have
performed on this other information, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact in the auditor's report. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with
the financial reporting provisions of Section 23.1 of the Budget and Transparency and
Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financial statements.

2

29 of 140



School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

DRAFT

Chartered Professional Accountants

Prince George, Canada
September 23, 2025

3

30 of 140



School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) Statement 1

Statement of Financial Position
As at June 30, 2025

2025 2024
Actual Actual
$ $
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,326,012 10,959,500
Accounts Receivable
Due from Province - Ministry of Education and Child Care 5,003,304 -
Other (Note 3) 1,020,435 1,088,188
Total Financial Assets 19,349,751 12,047,688
Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Other (Note 4) 9,019,094 3,211,345
Unearned Revenue (Note 5) 38,788 35,538
Deferred Revenue (Note 6) 2,241,482 2,120,630
% Deferred Capital Revenue (Note 7) 44,397,383 33,351,905
Employee Future Benefits (Note 8) 430,120 412,570
Asset Retirement Obligation (Note 21) 5,025,000 5,025,000
Total Liabilities 61,151,867 44,156,988
Net Debt (41,802,116) (32,109,300)
Non-Financial Assets
Tangible Capital Assets (Note 9) 49,602,696 39,269,831
Prepaid Expenses 100,116 228,811
Total Non-Financial Assets 49,702,812 39,498,642
Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) 7,900,696 7,389,342

Contractual Obligations (Note 14)
Contingent Liabilities (Note 15)

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer Date Signed

DRAFT - Not Finatized 31 of 140

September 03,2025 14:41 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 5




School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) ' Statement 2

Statement of Operations
Year Ended June 30, 2025

2025 2025 2024
Budget Actual Actual
$ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education and Child Care 32,375,413 32,592,845 31,394,899
Other 159,778 181,954 138,617

Federal Grants 16,000

Tuition 68,550 71,950 87,200

Other Revenue 3,272,254 3,763,052 3,470,481

Rentals and Leases 114,280 133,391 25,528

Investment Income 214,140 272,198 213,702

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue (Note 7) 1,364,670 1,348,370 1,294,435

Total Revenue 37,585,085 38,363,760 36,624,862
Expenses

Instruction 29,533,117 29,383,521 28,365,245

District Administration 2,337,680 2,440,003 2,011,093

Operations and Maintenance 5,695,699 5,407,745 4,574,012

Transportation and Housing 690,680 621,137 590,940

Total Expense 38,257,176 37,852,406 35,541,290
Surplus (Deficit) for the year (672,091) 511,354 1,083,572
Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations, beginning of year 7,389,342 6,305,770
Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations, end of year 7,900,696 7,389,342
DRAFT - Not Finalized 32 of 140
September 03,2025 14:41 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 6




School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) Statement 4

Statement of Changes in Net Debt
Year Ended June 30, 2025

2025 2025 2024
Budget Actual Actual
$ 3 $

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (672,091) 511,354 1,083,572
Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (Note 9) (5,852,857) (11,899,782) (4,099,335)

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets (Note 9) 1,581,496 1,566,917 1,529,459

Total Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets (4,271,361) (10,332,865) (2,569,876)
Acquisition of Prepaid Expenses (45,627) (206,056)
Use of Prepaid Expenses 174,322 156,205

Total Effect of change in Other Non-Financial Assets - 128,695 (49,851)
(Increase) Decrease in Net Debt, before Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses) (4,943,452) (9,692,816) (1,536,155)
Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses)
(Increase) Decrease in Net Debt (9,692,816) (1,536,155)
Net Debt, beginning of year (32,109,300) (30,573,145)
Net Debt, end of year (41,802,116) (32,109,300)
DRAFT - Not Finalized 33 of 140
September 03, 2025 14:41 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 7




School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) Statement 5
Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 2025
2025 2024
Actual Actual
$ 3

Operating Transactions
Surplus (Deficit) for the year 511,354 1,083,572
Changes in Non-Cash Working Capital
Decrease (Increase)

Accounts Receivable (4,935,551) 49,734
Prepaid Expenses 128,695 (49,851)
Increase (Decrease)
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 5,807,749 (301,889)
Unearned Revenue 3,250 (73,425)
Deferred Revenue 120,852 412,957
Employee Future Benefits 17,550 52,591
Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets (Note 9) 1,566,917 1,529,459
Amortization of Defetred Capital Revenue (Note 7) (1,348,370) (1,294,435)
Recognition of Deferred Capital Revenue Spent on Sites (196,052)
Total Operating Transactions 1,676,394 1,408,713
Capital Transactions
Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (3,028,020) (2,345,763)
Tangible Capital Assets -WIP Purchased (8,871,762) (1,753,572)
Total Capital Transactions (11,899,782) (4,099,335)
Financing Transactions
Capital Revenue Received (Note 7) 12,589,900 8,731,064
Total Financing Transactions 12,589,900 8,731,064
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,366,512 6,040,442
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 10,959,500 4,919,058
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year 13,326,012 10,959,500
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year, is made up of:
Cash 13,326,012 10,959,500
13,326,012 10,959,500
DRAFT - ot Finalized
. . . 34 of 140
September 03, 2025 14:41 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 8




SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 1 AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE

School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) (the “School District”), established on April 1, 1946,
operates under the authority of the School Act of British Columbia as a corporation under the name
of "The Board of Education of School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)," and operates as "School
District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)." A board of education (the “Board”) elected for a four-year term
governs the School District. The School District provides educational programs to students enrolled
in schools in the district and is principally funded by the Province of British Columbia through the
Ministry of Education and Child Care. School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) is exempt from
federal and provincial corporate income taxes.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Basis of Accounting

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Section 23.1 of the Budget
Transparency and Accountability Act of British Columbia. This Section requires that the
financial statements be prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards
except in regard to the accounting for government transfers as set out in Notes 2(e) and 2(1).

In November 2011, Treasury Board provided a directive through Restricted Contributions
Regulation 198/2011 providing direction for the reporting of restricted contributions whether
they are received or receivable by the School District before or after this regulation was in
effect.

As described in Notes 2(e) and 2(1), Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability
Act and its related regulations require the School District to recognize government transfers for
the acquisition of capital assets into revenue on the same basis as the related amortization
expense.

As these transfers do not contain stipulations that create a liability, Canadian public sector
accounting standards would require that:

e government transfers, which do not contain a stipulation that creates a liability, be
recognized as revenue by the recipient when approved by the transferor and the
eligibility criteria have been met in accordance with public sector accounting standard
PS3410; and

e externally restricted contributions be recognized as revenue in the period in which the
resources are used for the purpose or purposes specified in accordance with public
sector accounting standard PS3100.

$28810




SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2)

b)

d)

Basis of Accounting (Continued)
The impact of this difference on the financial statements of the School District is as follows:

Year-ended June 30, 2024 — increase in annual surplus by $2,804,900

June 30, 2024 — increase in accumulated surplus and decrease in deferred contributions to
$28,691,313

Year-ended June 30, 2025 — increase in annual surplus by $10,187,301

June 30, 2025 — increase in accumulated surplus and decrease in deferred contributions to
$38,878,614

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid securities that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. These
cash equivalents generally have a maturity of three months or less at acquisition and are held for
the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investing.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are measured at amortized cost and shown net of allowance for doubtful
accounts.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue includes tuition fees received for courses to be delivered in future periods and
receipt of proceeds for services to be delivered in a future period. Revenue will be recognized in
that future period when the courses or services are provided.

Deferred Revenue and Deferred Capital Revenue

Deferred revenue includes contributions received with stipulations that meet the description of
restricted contributions in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury
Board. When restrictions are met, deferred revenue is recognized as revenue in the fiscal year in
a manner consistent with the circumstances and evidence used to support the initial recognition
of the contributions received as a liability as detailed in Note 2(1).




SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

e) Deferred Revenue and Deferred Capital Revenue (Continued)

Funding received for the acquisition of depreciable tangible capital assets is recorded as deferred
capital revenue and amortized over the life of the asset acquired as revenue in the statement of
operations. This accounting treatment is not consistent with the requirements of Canadian public
sector accounting standards which require that government transfers be recognized as revenue
when approved by the transferor and eligibility criteria have been met unless the transfer
contains a stipulation that creates a liability in which case the transfer is recognized as revenue
over the period that the liability is extinguished. See note 2 (a) for the impact of this policy on
these financial statements.

f) Employee Future Benefits

The School District provides certain post-employment benefits including vested and non-vested
benefits for certain employees pursuant to certain contracts and union agreements. The School
District accrues its obligations and related costs including both vested and non-vested benefits
under employee future benefit plans. Benefits include vested sick leave, accumulating non-
vested sick leave, early retirement, retirement/severance, vacation, overtime and death benefits.
The benefits cost is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method pro-rated on
service and using management’s best estimate of expected salary escalation, termination rates,
retirement rates and mortality. The discount rate used to measure obligations is based on the cost
of borrowing. The cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses are amortized over the
expected average remaining service lifetime of active employees covered under the plan.

The most recent valuation of the obligation was performed at March 31, 2025 and projected
to March 31, 2028. The next valuation will be performed at March 31, 2028 for use at

June 30, 2028. For the purposes of determining the financial position of the plans and the
employee future benefit costs, a measurement date of March 31 was adopted for all periods
subsequent to July 1, 2004.

The School district and its employees make contributions to the Teachers’ Pension Plan and
Municipal Pension Plan. The plans are multi-employer plans where assets and obligations are
not separated. The costs are expensed as incurred.

g) Asset Retirement Obligation
A liability is recognized when, as at the financial reporting date:

(a) there is a legal obligation to incur retirement costs in relation to a tangible capital asset;
(b) the past transaction or event giving rise to the liability has occurred;

(c) it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and

(d) a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.

Pepgltho




SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

g) Asset Retirement Obligation (Continued)

The liability for the removal of asbestos and other hazardous material in several of the
buildings owned by the School District has been initially recognized using the modified
retroactive method. The liability has been measured at current cost as the timing and amounts
of future cash flows cannot be estimated. The resulting costs have been capitalized into the
carrying amount of tangible capital assets and are being amortized on the same basis as the
related tangible capital asset (see note 2 h)). Assumptions used in the calculations are reviewed
annually.

h) Tangible Capital Assets

The following criteria apply:

Tangible capital assets acquired or constructed are recorded at cost which includes amounts
that are directly related to the acquisition, design, construction, development, improvement
or betterment of the assets. Cost also includes overhead directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction of the asset.

Donated tangible capital assets are recorded at their fair market value on the date of
donation, except in circumstances where fair value cannot be reasonably determined, in
which case the assets are then recognized at nominal value. Transfers of capital assets from
related parties are recorded at carrying value.

Work-in-progress is recorded as an acquisition to the applicable asset class at substantial
completion.

Tangible capital assets are written down to residual value when conditions indicate they no
longer contribute to the ability of the School District to provide services or when the value of
future economic benefits associated with the sites and buildings are less than their net book
value. The write-downs are accounted for as expenses in the statement of operations.
Buildings that are demolished or destroyed are written-off.

Works of art, historic assets and other intangible assets are not recorded as assets in these
financial statements.

The cost, less residual value, of tangible capital assets (excluding sites), is amortized

on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset. It is management’s
responsibility to determine the appropriate useful lives for tangible capital assets. These
useful lives are reviewed on a regular basis or if significant events initiate the need to revise.
Estimated useful life is as follows:

Buildings 40 years
Furniture & Equipment ' 10 years
Vehicles 10 years
Computer Software 5 years
Computer Hardware 5 years

Page 12
38 of 140




SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

)

k)

D

Operating Leases

All current leases meet the definition for operating leases and the related payments are charged
to expenses as incurred.

Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses such as fees and dues are recorded as a prepaid expense, stated at acquisition
cost and are charged to expense over the periods expected to benefit from them.

Funds and Reserves

Certain amounts, as approved by the Board are set aside in accumulated surplus for future
operating and capital purposes. Transfers to and from funds and reserves are an adjustment to
the respective fund when approved.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recorded on an accrual basis in the period in which the transactions or events
occurred that gave rise to the revenues, the amounts are considered to be collectible and can be
reasonably estimated.

Contributions received, or receivable where eligibility criteria have been met, are recognized as
revenue except where the contribution meets the criteria for deferral as described below.
Eligibility criteria are the criteria that the School District has to meet in order to receive the
contributions, including authorization by the transferring government or organization.

For contributions subject to a legislative or contractual stipulation or restriction as to their use,
revenue is recognized as follows:

e Non-capital contributions for specific purposes are recorded as deferred revenue and
recognized as revenue in the year the related expenses are incurred,

e Contributions restricted for site acquisitions are recorded as revenue when the sites are
purchased, and

e Contributions restricted for tangible capital assets acquisitions or construction, other than
sites, are recorded as deferred capital revenue and amortized over the useful life of the
related assets.

Donated sites are recorded as revenue at fair market value when received or receivable. Donated
tangible capital assets other than sites are recorded at fair market value and amortized over the
useful life of the assets.

P3ge o




SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1) Revenue Recognition (Continued)

The accounting treatment for restricted contributions is not consistent with the requirements of
Canadian public sector accounting standards which require that government transfers be
recognized as revenue when approved by the transferor and eligibility criteria have been met
unless the transfer contains a stipulation that meets the criteria for liability recognition in which
case the transfer is recognized as revenue over the period that the liability is extinguished. See
note 2(a) for the impact of this policy on these financial statements.

Revenue from transactions with performance obligations is recognized when (or as) the
performance obligation is satisfied (by providing the promised goods or services to a payor).

Revenue from transactions with no performance obligations is recognized when the district:
(a) has the authority to claim or retain an inflow of economic resources; and
(b) identifies a past transaction or event that gives rise to an asset.

Investment income is reported in the period earned. When required by the funding party or
related Act, investment income earned on deferred revenue or deferred capital revenue is added
to the deferred revenue balance.

m) Expenditures

Expenses are reported on an accrual basis. The cost of all goods consumed and services received
during the year is expensed.

Categories of Salaries

e Principals, Vice-Principals, and Directors of Instruction employed under an administrative
officer contract are categorized as Principals and Vice-Principals.

e Superintendents, Assistant Superintendents, Secretary-Treasurers, Trustees and other
employees excluded from union contracts are categorized as Other Professionals.

| Allocation of Costs

o Operating expenses are reported by function, program, and object. Whenever possible,
expenditures are determined by actual identification. Additional costs pertaining to specific
instructional programs, such as Indigenous education and special education, are allocated to
these programs. All other costs are allocated to related programs.

e Salaries of personnel assigned to two or more functions or programs are allocated based on
the time spent in each function and program. Principals and Vice-Principals salaries are
allocated to school administration and may be partially allocated to other programs to
recognize their other responsibilities.

¢ Employee benefits and allowances are allocated to the same programs, and in the same
proportions, as the individual’s salary.

e Supplies and services are allocated based on actual program identification.

N
-b-b
o

PR




SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

n) Financial Instruments

A contract establishing a financial instrument creates, at its inception, rights to receive or
obligations to deliver economic benefits. Financial assets and financial liabilities portray these
rights and obligations in the financial statements. The School District recognizes a financial
instrument when it becomes a party to a financial instrument contract.

Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities, and other liabilities.

Portfolio investments in equity instruments quoted in an active market are recorded at fair value.
All other financial assets and liabilities are recorded at cost or amortized cost and the associated
transaction costs are added to the carrying value of these investments upon initial recognition
and amortized using the effective interest rate method. Transaction costs are incremental costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of a financial asset or the issue of a financial liability.

Unrealized gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial instruments are
recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses. Upon settlement, the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from the statement of remeasurement gains and losses and recognized
in the statement of operations. Interest and dividends attributable to financial instruments are
reported in the statement of operations. There are no remeasurement gains or losses during the
periods presented; therefore, no statement of remeasurement gains or losses is included in these
financial statements.

All financial assets except derivatives are tested annually for impairment. When financial assets
are impaired, impairment losses are recorded in the statement of operations. A write-down of a
portfolio investment to reflect a loss in value is not reversed for a subsequent increase in value.

For financial instruments measured using amortized cost, the effective interest rate method is
used to determine interest revenue or expense.

Measurement Uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with the basis of accounting described in
Note 2(a) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that impact reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and revenues and
expenses during the reporting periods. Significant areas requiring the use of management
estimates relate to the potential impairment of assets, rates for amortization and estimated
employee future benefits. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Pa%%P0




SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 3

Due from Federal Government
Other

NOTE 4

Trade payables
Salaries and benefits payable
Accrued vacation pay

NOTE 5 UNEARNED REVENUE

Balance, beginning of year

Increase:
Tuition fees collected
Rentals and leases payments collected

Decrease:

Tuition fees recognized

LEA payments recognized

Early Career Mentorship funding recognized

Net changes for the year
Balance, end of year

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - OTHER

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024
$ 332,586 $ 194,114

687,849 894,074
$ 1,020,435 $ 1,088,188

June 30, 2025

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES — OTHER

June 30, 2024

$ 8,192,945 $ 2,471,200
632,053 564,843
194,096 175,302

$ 9,019,094 $ 3,211,345

June 30, 2025

June 30, 2024

$ 35538 $ 108,963
71,950 62,225
3,250 -

75,200 62,225
71,950 87,200

- 33,088

14,462

71,950 135,650
3,250 (73,425)

$ 38,788 $ 35,538




SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 6 DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue includes unspent grants and contributions received that meet the description of a
restricted contribution in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury
Board, i.¢., the stipulations associated with those grants and contributions have not yet been

fulfilled.
June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024
Balance, beginning of year $ 2,120,630 $ 1,707,673
Changes for the year:
Increase:
Provincial Grants — Ministry of Education
and Child Care 5,440,090 4,931,121
Provincial Grants - Other 114,864 119,429
Other 1,127,054 1,380,158
Investment Income 6,853 7,449
6,688,861 6,438,157
Decrease:
Salaries 3,834,057 3,800,536
Employee Benefits 883,770 724,293
Services and Supplies 1,850,182 1,500,371
6,568,009 6,025,200
Net changes for the year 120,852 412,957
Balance, end of year $ 2,241,482 $ 2,120,630

Pegstlibo




SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 7 DEFERRED CAPITAL REVENUE

Deferred capital revenue includes grants and contributions received that are restricted by the
contributor for the acquisition of tangible capital assets that meet the description of a restricted
contribution in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury Board. Once
spent, the contributions are amortized into revenue over the life of the asset acquired.

Total Total
Deferred Deferred
Deferred Unspent Capital Capital
Capital Capital Revenue Revenue
June 30, 2025 June 30, 2025 June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024
Balance, beginning of year $ 28,691,313 § 4,660,592 $ 33,351,905 § 25,915,276
; Increase:
E Transfer from Unspent - Capital Additions 2,663,909 - 2,663,909 2,345,763
g Transfer from Unspent - Work in progress 8,871,762 - 8,871,762 1,753,572
; Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education - 10,976,607 10,976,607 3,895,975
Provincial Grants - Other - 1,282,235 1,282,235 4,835,089
Other Income - 331,058 331,058 -
11,535,671 12,589,900 24,125,571 12,830,399
Decrease:
Amortization of Deferred Capital 1,348,370 - 1,348,370 1,294,435
Capital Additions - transfer to Deferred Capital - 2,663,909 2,663,909 2,345,763
Work in Progress - transfer to Deferred Capital - 8,871,762 8,871,762 1,753,572
Site Purchases - transfer to Revenue - 196,052 196,052 -
1,348,370 11,731,723 13,080,093 5,393,770
Net changes for the year 10,187,301 858,177 11,045,478 7,436,629
Balance, end of year 38,878,614 5,518,769 44,397,383 33,351,905

Pa8% 0




SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 8 EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

Benefits include vested sick leave, accumulating non-vested sick leave, retirement/severance,
vacation, and banked overtime. Funding is provided when the benefits are paid and, accordingly,
there are no plan assets. Although no plan assets are uniquely identified, the School District has
provided for the payment of these benefits.

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024
Reconciliation of Accrued Benefit Obligation
Accrued Benefit Obligation — April 1 $ 572,601 $ 606,996
Service Cost 49,520 49,810
Interest Cost 24,027 24,219
Benefit Payments (73,128) (51,792)
Actuarial (Gain) Loss (108,065) (56,632)
Accrued Benefit Obligation — March 31 $ 464,955 $ 572,601
Reconciliation of Funded Status at End of Fiscal Year
Accrued Benefit Obligation - March 31 $ 464,955 $ 572,601
Market Value of Plan Assets - March 31 - -
Funded Status - Surplus (Deficit) (464,955) (572,601)
Employer Contributions After Measurement Date - -
Benefits Expense After Measurement Date (L5517 (18,387)
Unamortized Net Actuarial (Gain) Loss 46,352 178,418
Accrued Benefit Asset (Liability) - June 30 $ (430,120) $ (412,570)
Reconciliation of Change in Accrued Benefit Liability
Accrued Benefit Liability ~ July 1 5 412,570 $ 359,979
Net Expense for Fiscal Year 90,679 104,383
Employer Contributions (73,129) (51,792)
Accrued Benefit Liability - June 30 $ 430,120 $ 412,570
Components of Net Benefit Expense
Service Cost $ 44,433 $ 49,738
Interest Cost 22,245 24,170
Amortization of Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 24,001 30,475
Net Benefit Expense $ 90,679 $ 104,383

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted for measuring the School District’s accrued benefit
obligations are:

Discount Rate -~ April 1 4.25% 4.00%

Discount Rate - March 31 4.00% 4.25%

Long Term Salary Growth - April 1 2.50% + seniority 2.50% + seniority

Long Term Salary Growth - March 31 2.50% + seniority 2.50% + seniority

EARSL - March 31 11.5 years 9.9 years
Page 19

45 of 140




SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
NOTE 9 TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
Net Book
Net Book Value Value
Net Book Value: June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024
Sites $ 6,899,452 § 6,703,400
Buildings 31,327,906 $ 30,084,416
Buildings - work in progress 10,625,334 $ 1,753,572
Furniture & Equipment 188,323 § 251,556
Vehicles 518,759 $ 473,309
Computer Hardware 42,922 $ 3,578
Total $ 49,602,696 § 39,269,831
June 30, 2025
Balance at Balance at
Cost: July 1,2024 Additions Disposals June 30, 2025
Sites $ 6,703,400 $ 196,052 § - $ 6,899,452
Buildings 70,978,629 2,663,909 - 73,642,538
Buildings - work in progress 1,753,572 8,871,762 - 10,625,334
Furniture & Equipment 666,283 - (67,915) 598,368
Vehicles 733,463 121,691 (63,799) 791,355
Computer Hardware 11,938 46,368 - 58,306
Total $ 80,847,285 § 11,899,782 $ (131,714) $§ 92,615,353
Balance at Balance at
Accumulated Amortization: July 1, 2024 Amortization Disposals June 30, 2025
Sites $ -3 -3 - $ -
Buildings 40,894,213 1,420,419 - 42,314,632
Furniture & Equipment 414,727 63,233 (67,915) 410,045
Vehicles 260,154 76,241 (63,799) 272,596
Computer Software - - - -
Computer Hardware 8,360 7,024 - 15,384
Total $ 41,577454 $ 1,566,917 $ (131,714 $ 43,012,657

Page 20
46 of 140




SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 9 TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

June 30, 2024
Balance at Balance at

Cost: July 1, 2023 Additions Disposals June 30, 2024

Sites $ 6,703,400 $ -8 - $ 6,703,400
Buildings 68,632,866 2,345,763 - 70,978,629
Buildings - work in progress - 1,753,572 - 1,753,572
Furniture & Equipment 1,050,385 - (384,102) 666,283
Vehicles 754,097 - (20,634) 733,463
Computer Software 6,498 - (6,498) -
Computer Hardware 11,938 - - 11,938
Total § 77,159,184 § 4,099,335 $ (411,234) § 80,847,285

Balance at Balance at

Accumulated Amortization: July 1, 2023 Additions Disposals June 30, 2024

Sites $ -8 -8 -8 -
Buildings 39,528,003 1,366,210 - 40,894,213
Furniture & Equipment 712,996 85,833 (384,102) 414,727
Vehicles 206,408 74,380 (20,634) 260,154
Computer Software 5,850 648 (6,498) -
Computer Hardware 5,972 2,388 - 8,360
Total $§ 40,459,229 $ 1,529,459 $ (411,234) § 41,577,454

Buildings - work in progress having a value of $10,625,334 (2024: $1,753,572) have not been
amortized. Amortization of these assets will commence when the asset is put into service.

NOTE 10 WRITE-DOWN AND WRITE-OFF OF SITES AND BUILDINGS
Kanata Elementary School and Seal Cove Elementary School were closed on July 1, 2008 and the
buildings were demolished in the year ended June 30, 2020. There has been no write-down of the

land associated with these sites at June 30, 2025.

Ecole Westview Elementary School was closed on August 31, 2011. There has been no write-down
or disposal of this land or building at June 30, 2025.

Page 21
47 of 140




SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 10 WRITE-DOWN AND WRITE-OFF OF SITES AND BUILDINGS (Continued)

The net book value of the closed school sites at June 30, 2025 is as follows:

Kanata Seal Cove Westview
Elementary  Elementary  Elementary

School School School
Land $ 258,741 % 98,053 § 96,364
Buildings 1,372,794

258,741 98,053 1,469,158

Accumulated Amottization (1,408,111)
Net Land and Buildings 258,741 98,053 61,047
Less
Net Deferred Capital Revenue - - 45,005
Net Book Value 3 258,741 $ 98,053 $ 16,042

NOTE 11 EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS

The School District and its employees contribute to the Teachers’ Pension Plan and Municipal
Pension Plan (jointly trusteed pension plans). The boards of trustees for these plans, representing
plan members and employers, are responsible for administering the pension plans, including
investing assets and administering benefits. The plans are multi-employer defined benefit pension
plans. Basic pension benefits are based on a formula. As at December 31, 2024, the Teachers’
Pension Plan has about 51,000 active members and approximately 42,000 retired members. As of
December 31, 2024, the Municipal Pension Plan has about 256,000 active members, including
approximately 31,000 from school districts.

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plans
and adequacy of plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and
member contribution rate to fund the plans. The actuary’s calculated contribution rate is based on
the entry- age normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and employer
contributions sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plans. This rate may
be adjusted for the amortization of any actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the
amortization of any unfunded actuarial liability.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Plan as at December 31, 2023,
indicated a $4,572 million surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis.

The most recent actuarial valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2021,
indicated a $3,761 million funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis.

The school district paid $2,499,199 for employer contributions to the plans for the year ended
June 30, 2025 (2024: $2,485,455).

Pageiiao




;
g

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 11 EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS (Continued)

The next valuation for the Teachers’ Pension Plan will be as at December 31, 2026. The next
valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan was December 31, 2024.

Employers participating in the plans record their pension expense as the amount of employer
contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is
because the plans record accrued liabilities and accrued assets for each plan in aggregate, resulting
in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to individual
employers participating in the plans.

NOTE 12 INTERFUND TRANSFERS

For the year ended June 30, 2025, a total of $168,059 was transferred from the operating fund to
capital funds for the purchase of vehicles. There were no funds transferred from the special purpose
funds to the capital fund for capital purchases.

For the year ended June 30, 2024, there were no funds transferred from the operating fund nor from
the special purpose funds to the capital fund for capital purchases.

NOTE 13 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The School District is related through common ownership to all Province of British Columbia
ministries, agencies, school districts, health authorities, colleges, universities, and crown
corporations. Transactions with these entities, unless disclosed separately, are considered to be in
the normal course of operations and are recorded at the exchange amount.

NOTE 14 CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The School District has entered into two contracts for the lease of educational space. These
contractual obligations will become liabilities in the future when the terms of the contracts are met.
Disclosure relates to the unperformed portion of the contracts.

One building lease has a term that expires on August 31, 2032. Rates are renewed in five year
intervals, with the next rate renewal effective September 1, 2027. The amount of lease payments
from September 1, 2027 to August 31, 2032 is assumed to be equal to the current lease rate.

The other building lease has a term that expires on July 15, 2026.

Contractual Obligations ~ 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30  Thereafter
Building Leases $ 112,806 $ 37,928 $ 35000 $ 35,000 $ 35000 $ 70,000

Page,20




SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 15 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Management is of the opinion that the School District has valid defenses and appropriate insurance
coverage in place for claims at June 30, 2025 or, if there is unfunded risk, such claims are not
expected to have a material effect on the School District’s financial position. Outstanding
contingencies are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are provided for based on management’s best
estimate of the ultimate settlement.

NOTE 16 BUDGET FIGURES

The annual budget for the School District for the year ended June 30, 2025 was approved by the
Board on June 17, 2024. In accordance with Ministry policy, an amended annual budget for the
School District was approved by the Board on March 11, 2025. The amended annual budget reflects
funding based on actual enrolment on September 30, 2024 and is considered by the Board to more
accurately reflect the expected results for the year. These financial statements show the amended

@ Ministry of Education $ 32,375,413 $§ 31,974,378 401,035
Other 159,778 97,358 62,420
Federal Grants 16,000 - 16,000
| Tuition 68,550 136,000 (67,450)
Other Revenue 3,272,254 3,151,533 120,721
i Rentals and Leases 114,280 30,000 84,280
| Investment Income 214,140 104,000 110,140
: Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 1,364,670 1,365,802 (1,132)
Total Revenue 37,585,085 36,859,071 726,014

Expenses
Instruction 29,533,117 28,826,360 706,757
District Administration 2,337,680 1,942,747 394,933
Operations and Maintenance 5,695,699 5,930,305 (234,606)
Transportation and Housing 690,680 645,376 45,304
Total Expenses 38,257,176 37,344,788 912,388
Surplus (Deficit) for the year (672,091) (485,717) (186,374)
Budgeted Allocation of Surplus 515,265 328,891 186,374
Surplus (Deficit) for the Year $  (156,826) $  (156,826) -
Page 24

50 of 140

annual budget.

The annual budget and the amended annual budget are compared below:

2024-25
Amended

2024-25

Preliminary

Change

Revenues
Provincial Grants




SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 17 EXPENSE BY OBJECT

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024
Salaries and benefits $ 31,086,069 $ 30,018,436
Services and supplies 5,199,420 3,993,395
Amortization 1,566,917 1,529,459

$ 37,852,406 § 35,541,290

NOTE 18 INTERNALLY RESTRICTED SURPLUS

| June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024
Operating Fund Accumulated Surplus
Internally Restricted (appropriated) by Board for:
Deferred Vehicle Purchase $ - $ 60,000
| School Supplies - School Generated Funds 201,941 194,076
| Indigenous Education - Targeted Funds - 12,991
| Indigenous Education - Language Authority Funds 100,403 97,526
Total Internally Restricted Operating Surplus 302,344 364,593
Unrestricted Operating Surplus (Contingency) 1,900,202 1,472,163
Total Operating Fund Accumulated Surplus $ 2,202,546 $ 1,836,756
Special Purpose Funds Surplus $ - $ -
Capital Fund Accumulated Surplus
Invested in Capital Assets 5,698,150 5,552,586
Total Capital Fund Accumulated Surplus $ 5,698,150 $ 5,552,586
Total Accumulated Surplus $ 7,900,696 $ 7,389,342

NOTE 19 ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

The operations of the School District are dependent on continued funding from the Ministry of
Education and Child Care and various governmental agencies to carry out its programs. These
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Paget240




SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 20 RISK MANAGEMENT

The School District has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: credit
risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The Board ensures that the School District has identified its risks
and ensures that management monitors and controls or mitigates them.

a)

b)

Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to an institution if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Such risks arise principally from
certain financial assets held consisting of cash, amounts receivable and investments.

The School District is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance by a debtor. This
risk is mitigated as most amounts receivable are due from the Province and are collectible.

It is management’s opinion that the School District is not exposed to significant credit risk
associated with its cash deposits and investments as they are placed in recognized British
Columbia institutions or held by the Ministry of Finance.

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk is comprised of currency risk and
interest rate risk.

e Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in the foreign exchange rates. It is management’s opinion that
the School District is not exposed to significant currency risk, as amounts held and purchases
made in foreign currency are insignificant.

e Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates. The School District is not
exposed to significant interest rate risk as it does not hold portfolio investments.

Liquidity risk:
Liquidity risk is the risk that the School District will not be able to meet its financial obligations
as they become due.

The School District manages liquidity risk by continually monitoring actual and forecasted cash
flows from operations and anticipated investing activities to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the School District’s
reputation.

Risk management and insurance services for all School Districts in British Columbia are provided
by the Risk Management Branch of the Ministry of Finance. There have been no changes to risk
exposure from 2024 related to credit, market or liquidity risks.

Page. a0




SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 21 ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION

Legal liabilities exist for the removal and disposal of asbestos and other environmentally hazardous
materials within some district owned buildings that will undergo major renovations or demolition in
the future. A reasonable estimate of the fair value of the obligation was recognized using the modified
retroactive approach as at July 1, 2022. The obligation was measured at current cost as the timing of
future cash flows cannot be reasonably determined. These costs have been capitalized as part of the
assets’ carrying value and are amortized over the assets’ estimated useful lives.

Asset Retirement Obligation, July 1, 2024 $ 5,025,000
Settlements during the year -
Asset Retirement Obligation, closing balance $ 5,025,000

Page 440




87 9deq IPiPT STOT €0 roquardag

poreut N - T AV I

TrE68E°L 969°006°L 0S1°869°S - 9pST0TT 7 JuowRE)§ - 1834 Jo pus ‘(ryaq) snjdang pajgmunidy
TLS'E80°T YSETIS p9S'SHI - 06L°59¢ IB34 3y 10y safuwy)) 1PN
- 650891 (650°891) peseyoing sjessy [ende)) a[qiSue

Slojsuel ], purpiojuy

TLS €801 PSETIS ($6¥°70) 678°€ES Teak oyy 103 (3rogaq) snpdmg
e9aA 9y} 10] saduey)
0LL'S0E%9 THE68E°L 985°78S'S 95L9€8°T 1894 Jo Suruuidaq ‘YD) snyding pargnunIdy

$ $ $ $ $
[enoy [enjy puny puny puny
20T $70T rende) asodang [enedsg Supgexsdo

$T0T ‘0¢ Sun[ pepug 89X
puti Aq (3101e(Q) sniding palenwnody ur seSuey)) Jo o[npayos

(panipneuq) 1 9[NPIYIS ﬁ—h@@—\—m @Oﬁwhhﬁv ¢S "ON LSI(J 10028

54 of 140



School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)

Schedule of Operating Operations
Year Ended June 30, 2025

Schedule 2 (Unaudited)

2025 2025 2024
Budget Actual Actual
$ $ $
Revenues
Provincial Grants
Ministry of Education and Child Care 27,139,065 27,188,861 26,530,396
Other 32,483 32,483 64,044

Tuition 68,550 71,950 87,200

Other Revenue 2,111,352 2,553,029 2,384,819

Rentals and Leases 114,280 133,391 25,528

Investment Income 214,140 271,615 213,240

Total Revenue 29,679,870 30,251,329 29,305,227
Expenses

Instruction 23,678,744 23,654,279 22,940,191

District Administration 2,129,748 1,998,879 1,866,924

Operations and Maintenance 3,984,530 3,781,411 2,915,811

Transportation and Housing 342,113 282,911 263,705

Total Expense 30,135,135 29,717,480 27,986,631
Operating Surplus (Deficit) for the year (455,265) 533,849 1,318,596
Budgeted Appropriation (Retirement) of Surplus (Deficit) 515,265
Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (168,059)

Local Capital (60,000)

Total Net Transfers (60,000) (168,059) -
Total Operating Surplus (Deficit), for the year - 365,790 1,318,596
Operating Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 1,836,756 518,160
Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year 2,202,546 1,836,756
Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year

Internally Restricted 302,344 364,593

Unrestricted 1,900,202 1,472,163

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year 2,202,546 1,836,756
DRAFT - ot Finatized 55 of 140

September 03, 2025 14:41

Page 29




School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) Schedule 2A (Unaudited)

Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source
Year Ended June 30, 2025

2025 2025 2024
Budget Actual Actual
$ 3 $
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care
Operating Grant, Ministry of Education and Child Care 27,019,841 26,975,245 26,251,515
ISC/LEA Recovery (1,057,104) (1,057,104) (1,057,104)
Other Ministry of Education and Child Care Grants
Pay Equity 706,027 706,027 706,027
Funding for Graduated Adults 711 711
Student Transportation Fund 117,597 117,597 117,597
Support Staff Benefits Grant 14,719 14,719
FSA Scorer Grant 7,506 7,506 7,506
Child Care Funding 100,674 108,268
Labour Settlement Funding 243,813 243,813 432,493
Other 72,079 57,643
Total Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 27,139,065 27,188,861 26,530,396
Provincial Grants - Other 32,483 32,483 64,044
Tuition
International and Out of Province Students 68,550 71,950 87,200
: Total Tuition 68,550 71,950 87,200
|
t Other Revenues
? Funding from First Nations 1,259,575 1,259,580 1,398,686
E Miscellaneous
Jordan's Principle 304,926 360,829 370,093
: Sundry Other Revenue 546,851 932,620 616,040
E Total Other Revenue 2,111,352 2,553,029 2,384,819
Rentals and Leases 114,280 133,391 25,528
Investment Income 214,140 271,615 213,240
Total Operating Revenue 29,679,870 30,251,329 29,305,227
DRAFT - Not Finalized 56 of 140
September 03, 2025 14:41 Page 30




School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) Schedule 2B (Unaudited)

Schedule of Operating Expense by Object
Year Ended June 30, 2025

2025 2025 2024
Budget Actual Actual
3 $ $
Salaries
Teachers 10,919,883 11,087,099 10,898,885
Principals and Vice Principals 2,247,961 2,209,162 2,263,469
Educational Assistants 2,503,543 2,614,656 2,418,576
Support Staff 2,388,744 2,361,092 2,362,373
Other Professionals 1,824,485 1,790,591 1,495,614
Substitutes 1,185,553 1,125,083 1,128,157
Total Salaries 21,070,169 21,187,683 20,567,074
Employee Benefits 5,267,541 5,180,559 4,926,533
Total Salaries and Benefits 26,337,710 26,368,242 25,493,607
Services and Supplies
Services 1,070,833 875,204 (197,561)
Student Transportation 88,376 13,438 7,188
Professional Development and Travel 484,495 453,952 484,183
Rentals and Leases 203,127 191,386 210,466
Dues and Fees 49,975 52,168 54,002
Insurance 72,280 98,038 69,175
Supplies 1,204,940 1,044,055 1,280,927
Utilities 623,399 620,997 584,644
Total Services and Supplies 3,797,425 3,349,238 2,493,024
Total Operating Expense 30,135,135 29,717,480 27,986,631

DRAFT - Not Finalized 57 of 140

September 03, 2025 14:41 Page 31




7€ ¥8egd

IFPL STOT ‘€0 Loquapdas

pazieund 30N - T AVHA

€89°L8T°1T €80°STI‘T 165°06L°T 760°19€°C 9S9°P19°T 291°607°T 660°L80°TT 6 - [ suonpouny {ejo ]
- - - - - - - 6 uonduNg [eI0L,
$I01AIS 393 6
7€8°6Y1 STLLE 99s°¢ 1SS°80T - - - Luonpouny jejoy,
997°9p1 STL'LE 155801 uonenodsuel] JUSPIYS 0L'L
995°¢ 995°¢ UOHENSIURUPY Jursnol] pue uonenodsuell 14/
Suisnoyy pue uoneodsuery, £
POV 19T 6LS°S6T L89YLL SETTLTT - - - S uonouny [EI0 ],
- seun 95°S
7679 T6€79 SPUNOIN JO QUEUANUIEIN TS'S
S69°00¥°1 6v6°161 L30T T suorjelad() SOURURIUIEIN 0SS
LIESLY 0£9'¢ L89VLT UOLPISIUNIPY 39UBUSIUIBIA pue suonerdQ (4§
IUBUIIUTLTA] PUL suoyerdQ s
9€T 1971 - €69°TLET £9L°09 - 08L°LT - $ uonouny 18I0,
IFT6LL 869°069 €9L°09 08L°LT UONeNSIUTWIPY ssauisng [}
TIT'ETL 44X ¥4t QOUBWISAOL) JOLISI(T [O0YDS O Y
£88°8S¢ £88°85¢ TOuENSIUTIPY [euonednpy 11y
uogeSIuupy PRSI ¥
ITT'SE1'8T 68L°168 SY9°6EY 0v9°026 959°%19°C 78€°181°T 660°L80°T1 T wogouny jejo0L
TLETIST LLEYT $S9°0pT OvEL09°1 UOHRNSIUIIPY JOOYDS 11
7756991 956'Th s1s'1el 90€°LT $6£°0€E 90801 75906 uoneonpy snousSipuy 1¢']
- SururesT o8enSuey ysydug ¢y
ISP 0TIy LEGYYT 661°S1T 89°6¥ 689°558°1 6LY'86T 66Y°95P°1 uonEInpY AAISUOUL "]
0S6°€61 6T 181°s% 8£€°0T 6£1%T1 Surpesuno) 80°1
02T E6Y PLI'PI £01°881 £76°06T 901108 ATRIqET LO']
- suresford Jea1e)) €0°1
969°S6L°6 €S0°LLS 1£6°201 LYL°69€ TLS 8Ty 61111 PL6°80E°8 uononnsuj 1enssy 0’
woPINYSHUY [
$ $ $ $ $ $ 3
SILIR[ES SoLIE[ES saLIe[ES SILIE[BS SoLIB[RS SALIE[RS saLIE[eS
%101 sa1mISqNS S[EUOISSIFOI] nes SJURISISSY spedurg 39MA SIYIEBIY,
RYO 110ddng [euonvonpy pue spedpurig

(pagipneuq)) DT ANPIYIS

$TOT ‘0€ sunf pspuy Ies X
109(qQ pue weidoid ‘vonound Aq asuadxy Sunerodp

(3rodny dduLLd) TS "ON ILDSI( [00YIS

58 of 140




IF:pE STOT ‘€0 Bquazdog

pazijeuly JON - r,_r rm“§ﬁ—”

1€9°986°LT SEI'SET’0E 08Y°LIL 6T ET6PEE 1'89£'97 65S°081°S £89°L8I‘1T 6 - 1 suonoun 1830
- - - - - - - 6 uonduUny [e30L,
SIINALIS 33( 6
S0L'€9T €11°The 116°28¢ 788°001 670°781 L6ITE 7€8°601 L uonounyg (g0,
PEYTIT LGS 0VE 9TH'8LT 788001 PYSLLY 8LT°1E 99T°9¥1 uoyeodsuel], JuapMS 0L'L
1LT'T 9151 S8b'y S8b'y 616 995°€ UOHRLSIUAPY SUISHOH pue Uoneuodsuel], 147/
Zuisnoyy pue uogelrodsuvly, £
118°S16C 0€S'¥86°€ 1TV I8L°E 6LV 1081 TE6°6L6'T 87S°8¢€E POL 1591 S uonduny 18307,
¥59°¥8S 66£°€T79 L66°079 L66°0T9 - - SUIMN] 95°S
P8y TET 658°€ST TI6°SIT 76€°8¢ 0TS*LL 8Z1°ST T6£'79 SPUNOID) JO QUBUSHIEIA 7SS
0£0°906°1 P1'888°C 1Z6°0€L°T 125°7#0°1 008891 SOL'LST S69°001°T suoneiad() SOUBUSIUIEIN 0SS
£59°T6T 0£8°81¢ I8S°€IE 695°66 TI0PIT $69°5€ LIEBLL UONEASIUIUPY IDUBUSIUIEN PUE Suotesd( 47§
UBUIIUILIA] pue suonerddQ §
$76°998°1 8L6TI°T 688661 9LL 6EY £01°6SS° T LIS L6T 9£7° 1921 p uonpuny [ejo],
LY Y8 61T°19¢°1 8IS‘€87°T 970°88T 761°566 1ST91T IPT°6LL UoneHSIUIPY sssulsng [y'y
050°s61 10T°0TT €EYLTT £L8°T6 09Sp€T Sy 11 TITETT SDUBUIBAOD) JOLSI(T [O0YDS OY'f
10v°L8Y 8TE'8YS 8T6°L8Y LL8'8S 1S0°6T8 891°0L £88°85¢ UORENSTUIWpPY Teuonednpy [1'y
UOREHSIUPY PIYSIJ ¢
161°0¥6'CC YrL'8LIET 6LTPSY €T 101°L00°T SLI'LY9°TT LIG'TIISY ITT'SET'8T I uoyouny [ejoL,
ISL'S01°T TSY8ET’T 00¥°€6€°T 864701 706°067°C 0£$°8TF TLET98Y UOHBLSIUIUPY [00UYDS [{']
659°€68°1 995°000°C 89L°661°C 795°LT1 90T°TLOT ¥89°70Y 275°699°1 uoneonpy snousSipuy 1¢°]
66€ €T LTT LTT - - Furuies] 2FenSue ysydug 0¢']
SYSIPE'S 699°LLS’S 0v0°6ET’S 8LI'6L 798°65T°S T1¥°6£0°1 ISP0TIY UOnBONpY SAISUOUL Q1]
685°98C 866°16T 99T PHT 96 T0TEHT ST6Y 0S6°€6T Suyresuno) 80'1
LOE91S $90°87S tS 2444 LI 0LT919 0S0°€Z1 07T°€6¥ 9018108 ATRIqVT LO'T
S86°0L £9L°3L 086y 086y - - sweadord 199180 €0°1
9S6YTLTI 658°090°¢I 9ST'8P6°C1 0Ts°€89 9ELVYIT'TI 0¥0°69%°C 969°S6L°6 uononysuy Je[n3ey 701
uonINLYSUy |
§ $ $ $ $ $ $
[emioy 198png BNV sorddng sjjouldyg pue sjjoudg SALIE[BS
20T §T0T S20T PpUE SNIAIS saLxe[eg (€10, saforduy [e10],

(paypneus)) DT ANPIYIS

$TOT ‘0¢ Qunf papug 183X
195[qQ pue wexdoig ‘vonoung Aq asuedxg Juneredp
(adny 9durrg) 7S "ON LBSI( [00YdS

59 of 140




School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)

Schedule of Special Purpose Operations
Year Ended June 30, 2025

Schedule 3 (Unaudited)

2025 2025 2024
Budget Actual Actual
$ $ $
Revenues
Provincial Grants
Ministry of Education and Child Care 5,236,348 5,207,932 4,864,503
Other 127,295 149,471 74,573
Federal Grants 16,000
Other Revenue 1,160,902 1,210,023 1,085,662
Investment Income - 583 462
Total Revenue 6,540,545 6,568,009 6,025,200
Expenses
Instruction 5,854,373 5,729,242 5,425,054
District Administration 207,932 441,124 144,169
Operations and Maintenance 208,829 135,658 203,120
Transportation and Housing 265,411 261,985 252,857
Debt Services
Total Expense 6,540,545 6,568,009 6,025,200

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit) for the year
Total Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit) for the year
Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), end of year

DRAFT - Not Finalized

September 03, 2025 14:41

60 of 140 Page34




s adeg IHpl SZ07 °€0 Joquaidag

Pazifeuly JON - Hhéq

61 of 140

ST punyg uneradQ 3y ‘ur palodar pue ‘Aq papuny sssuadxyy E:oﬁ%@i

- o - - - - - -z - (asuadxq) onuUdASY ION

SIJSURL], PUNJINU]

- - C - - - - - - SIQJSUBIL PUNLIAIUY 10J9q (3suadxy) onuaAdy 39N

68L°89S ¥19°68 1889 000'8T1 L68'9LY TEL'Y 050°TT 061°56 859°6ET
611°Ty 0v0°0S L6E9 $89°91 L68°9L9 TELT 0s0°'zT SYS11L saiddng pue saoiazsg
9TE°¢6 1L0°L 1LL'ST 1£5°0T £28%C siyauag sakojdug
PrEeEy €€5°TE o6t PS'S8 - - - 659 VL 06T'66
88881 o6t saimnsqng
T1EL°8L S|BUOISSAJOI JOIO
568 062°66 oS uoddng
STL'SEE 659 pL SIUBISISSY [BUOLRINPH
sedioutl] 901/ pue s[edioutig
£€5°2¢ SI9YORI,
soLIE[eg
sasuadxy
68L'89S ¥9°68 L88°9 000°8¢1 L68°9L9 TEL'] 050°7T 061°56 859°6E1
€8S QUIODU] JUDTHSIAU]
L68°9L9 TELY L9V1T NUAAYY 1O
000°TS I9YIQ = SWEID [BIOUIACI]
68L°91S 7968 L3889 000821 061°56 859°6¢1 212D PIYD PUE UOBEONPH JO AUSIUIA - SIUBIL) [ERUIACL]
SINUIAIY
9£0'9277 - 8ETET - yYTOLS 19€°6 29T6LT 8LE'S - 1834 JO PUD ‘INUIATY PILIJIQ
68L'89S ¥59°68 £88'9 000°821 L68'9L9 TEL'T 050'7Z 061°56 859°6¢1 STIUGAY 01 PAIBXO[Y 1§89
$55°919 19068 0sTT 000821 £16v99 - 960'v1 £58°S6 859'SE1
97¢°S SWOOU] JUSUHSIAUL
£16v99 OLL'8 Elde)
9L EE IOYIQ - SHUBIO [RIOUIAOL]
06L°78S 19068 0STTl 000821 £58°56 859°SE1 120 YY) pue UOLEONPH JO AUSIUIA - SIUBLL) [EIBUIACL]
SJUBID) POIOINSIY PPV
1LT8LL £85 SLLL - 82T°Z8¢ €60°11 917'L81 SILY - 1234 3o Bmruuidaq INUIAIY PILIJIQ
$ 3 $ $ $ $ $ $ §
SINITAanwmoe) JI10 uIBd 111§ spuny Jojouyday, saLresang puny JUELL)
‘98 Juoasg pazeIoudn) uopeINpy pue juawasoaduy Lmoeg
‘Apeay [ooyos eedsg sdiysse[oyss Buruaeary [enuuy

$70T ‘0¢€ Sun{ papug I8sx
109[qQ £q ssuadxy pue spung asodmg Jerosds ur saSuey)
(pampnzu) vE o[upanos (redny ddurLy) TS "ON WINSIJ [00YdS




9g adeg

IPibT STOT ‘€0 4oquandeg

pazgBuLy 10N - Hhﬁg

62 of 140

PTIPE puny SunessdQ sy} ‘ut partodas pue ‘Aq papuny sasuddxy ?:cn%ci
- z - - - _ - - -z (asuadxyy) INUIAIY N
SIYSUBL], PUDJIAIUY
T " z T p - - - - SI9JSURLY, PUNIAU] 210J3q (asuadxy) onuaAsy PN
$TELIT PP0°€9 0¥9°€6 OvL'T1 $YS18 986197 £69°V€T 0T5°095'T 795°0TT
YZELIT 6£L°TS 9LE 6£0°€ 6T€'0T 000°50T sofddng pue ssolAlag
186°1 129°L1 - A2 $TO°T1 $TS'LI LBI'S6Y STE'TY siyouag sakojdury
- T8 LT 10L°8 908°6% 856°SH 691°L1T £€£590'T LEY'SLI
YL 10L'8 sonpsqng
S[RUOISSRJO1J J3WC
861 856'Sy Jymg 1oddng
8€8°¢ 1€8°%9 SIUBISISSY [EUONEONpPH
T08°T 908°61 LEI'SLYL sjediourtg 9014 pue sjedoung
691°LIT £€€°590°T 194083,
sae|eg
sasuadxy
yTELIL ¥¥0°€9 0¥9°€6 OvL 11 8518 986°19T £69V€T 0Z5°09s°T 795°0TT
QWCOU] JUILISIAU]
1L9°S 69t°0€ 0ELY MUIASY YLD
1910 - SIURID) [BIOWAOL]
¥TE 191 €LELS 1L1°E9 0rL 11 84S 18 9ST°LIT £697€T 0ZS°095°T 795°0CT 18D PIIYD PUE UOHEINPH JO AUSTUIN - SIUBID) [EIOUIAOL]
SINUIANY
- 1218y - SLS'0E L8TLT LTY'L 075°98 L69°S01 - 1234 J0 pUd ‘INUIANY PALIJe(
YTELIT Pp0'€9 0r9'c6 OpL T 8518 986°19T £69'V€T 075'095°C 795°02T STUIAY O} PABIO[[Y  15597Y
- 000°09 698°S8 0SL‘9 000°LS L31°65T 9£0'09¢ L17°999°T 795°07C
QUIOOU] JUAUSIAT]
000°01 69%°0€ 866°SY ESLte}
19Y)Q) - SIUBD) [BIOUIAOL]
000°0S 00¥'sS 0SL°9 000°LS 681°€1T 9£0°09C L17°999°C 795'02¢ 18D PIYD pue UONEONPH JO AUSIUIN - SIURILL [EIOUIACL]
SJURID) PIOLNSY PPV
YTELIL S91°1S LLL §95°s¢ SES I 97701 LLI'TE - - 134 J0 SuinuIdoq anuaAdy pILRQ
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
AN[IqEPIO)JY  WERIS0IJ IPo1)  USMBI9puly  USIp[IYD Sunox S[001[2S Ut uopelledsuel] SOIPAWdY - puny BULJEIS - PUL]  PEIYIIAQ - pUny
Apuey [enq uoygeanps Aeq 10§ SUSIY yiresy uIpmIS JUAWIIUBYUY JUIWIDUBYUY JUSWIIUBY U
79 Juapmg pooypny) Alaey SSI[WBIS BuBuey) [BIUIIA uoyEN IS woousse[D WOOISSE[) wWo0ISSE[D)

(pazipneur)) ve 9npayas

§70T ‘0¢€ ST papug Jeax
102[qQ Aq ssuadxy pue spun 9sodmg [ewads ur sefuey)

(1adny ddouriy) 7§ ON ILSI [00YIS



L€ adeg TPipT STOT ‘€0 Boquardeg

pazisuly 0N - r.—‘kr.,.m§ﬁm

63 of 140

puny duneiadQ 3y ‘ur pajrodas pue ‘Aq pspuny sosuadxy E:ct%ni

- - - - - - - = - (asuadxy) onudAdy N

SI9JSUBL] PUNLINT]

. . = T = - B z B SIYSUBL], PUNLINIUY 910J2q (asuadX) anUIAIY ION

0vS - - - 16¢ 616°LT 871°89¢€ 90€°6L1 S61°01
2% 16¢ 616°LT 798892 166°S L8S°S sarddng pue sadiazeg
910CT 615°0¢€ €IS siyouag sefofdurg
- - - - - - 0ST'LL 96L°TH1 384
S6EY sempsqng
0ST'LL 96L°Ch1 S[euolssajold PO
Jers uoddng
Sjue)sissy jpuonednpy
s[ediourtg 9014 pue sjedoutty
SISYOEIT,
ssue[es
sasuadxy
0vs - - - 16¢ 616°LT 871°89¢ 90€6L1 S6¥°01
QUICOU] JUIUIISOAL]
(1143 (8€€°5¢) MUIANY 19WO
JOYIQ - sjuBID) [RIOUIAOL]
16¢ 616°LT 99" ¢t 90¢76L1 S6¥°01 218D PIIYD PUE UOHEOTIPY JO ANSIUYN - SIULID) [BIOUIAOL]
SINUIAIY
6£0°98 6¥9°81 791°8 €6T°€S TIT'LPT 180°7T STLTL Sy'ey LES'1T 1834 JO PUI INUIAIY PALIYI(
o¥s - - - reg 616'LT 871°89¢ 90€°6LT S6v01 SMUSAYY 0} PABIO[Y 18597
- - - LTS £55'LYT 000°'ST 789°L0€ 000°SLT 000°61
LTS QUIODU] JUIUSIAUL
Q1) elile}
IDYIQ) - SHIBID) [BIOUWIACL
£55°LYT 000°5T 000°05¢€ 000°SLL 000°61 2180 P[IY) PuE UOREOPH JO ANSIUIN - SIEID [BIOUIACL]
SJUBID) PAIOLUSIY PPV
6L5°98 6v9'81 918 99L1S - 000°ST 191°¢€1 vEL'LY FAZ 1234 30 Swruuidaq ‘InuaAIY PaLe(
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
diysseumirey sjuBID) Aambuy pue Isnay FUT2TS) SjuBISH punj (dutueay 29 (uapIedepury
skemyieg [eIn}manMIA UOIIBAOUU] JO umosg Suuazary 133180 saanynyg 3xe) Auey) 0) saeax Aprey)
1815800 wsey-1uy qI0MIIN uenry [eu0IsS3J0.4 g yiesy Surpaayg 103 IDIZAAS

SZ0T “0€ Sun{ pepug Iea X
103[qQ Aq ssuadxs pue spung asodmy [eroads ur seSuey)

(paupneun) Ve Anpagag (3redny dourig) 7S "ON PLUSIQ [00YIS




8¢ 3ded

I9:PT S70Z €0 1aquadag

pozuioN - TV

64 of 140

€97°cE puny Sunesad( ay3 ‘ux pajtodal puw ‘Aq papuny sasuadxy jeuonppy|
- - - - - - - - - (asuadxy) onudAY N
SI9JSUBLY, puUnyIduy
- - - - - - - - - SI9JSUBL], PUNJIIUT 91053 (9suddxF) dNUIAIY JON
60L°LE TT1°891 0LY'L6 - 08091 00v°L8 1LY'L6 60L'Y -
LT6ET €25°SS OLY'L6 080°91 LSL'9T $TT'E 60LY sofjddng pue saorg
69EY 90LTT £8S°11 10€°0T s)yausg 2akodury
£Iv'61 £68°68 - - - 090°6¥ THe'EL - -
¥86°€ ssampsqag
ThEEL S[BUOISSRJ0Id JSIQ
090°6 Jyeig uoddng
6T¥°'S1 £68°68 SIUBISISSY [EuonTonpy
sjedioutl] a01A pue sjedoutig
SI9Y08a],
saLe[es
sasuadxy
60L°LE 771891 QLY'LE - 08091 00+°L8 1LY'L6 60L'Y -
JWOILJ JUSUISIAUY
60L°LE 71891 0LY'L6 080°91 00%°L8 60LY AMUIATY WO
ILY'L6 PYQ - sl [BIOUIACL]
9120 P[IY) PUB UOHEINPH JO ANSIULA] - SIURIL) [BIOUIAOL]
SINUIAY
- 695°791 - $94°01 950°s - LL9"8T £ £86'91 T834 JO PUD OnUIARY PILIIIQ
60L°LE 71891 OLY'L6 - 08091 00vY'L8 1LV'L6 60L'Y - ONUIAIY 0} PIJBIO[IY  SSIT
8rE0¢ 00€°6v1 - - - 005°98 001°18 - -
QUIODU] JUAISIAU
8YE0¢ 00€°6¥1 00598 BYO
00118 19430 - SHIRID) [BIOUIACIJ
aIe)) P pue GONEONPH JO ANSIUIA - SIUBID [BIOUIACL]
muﬂwhmv vuqumoﬂm PPY
19¢°L 16€°181 0LY'L6 yov'ol 9€1°1Z 006 8¥0'SH ey £86°91 1294 Jo SuruuE3aq SNUIARY PaLIRQ
3 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
31e]) jooyds QWOH puny s,usapiq) FLL2 ) SUDfUIq, v 79 J0dg DSSd/asvId Atesing ssAnenIul
3]V 79 340J3g Sutyoeay Ung I2AN0OUEA agenBuey [euonendwo) 100408 q-oxd ADX reuidutoqy
snoudipuy LYV YO

(paupneu()) V¢ Ipayas

$T0T ‘0¢ ounf papuy Ieax
103[qQ Aq ssuadxy pue spuny ssoding rereds ur seduey)

(310dny douLld) 7S "ON JLYSIJ [00YDS




6¢€ 28eg

(panpneu()) v I3mpayos

Ipip1 ST0T ‘€0 Squaydag

ponnoN - TIVHQ

65 of 140

_ 65601 puny sunerddQ ayp ‘w paprodas pue ‘Aq pspunj sosuadxy _EBEEJ\_
- - - - (asuadxyq) anuaAdy 1N
SI9JSUBLY, pUNJIIIUYT
- - - - SI9JSURLY, PUNJIaU] 210534 (3suadxy) onuaAdy 19N
600°895°9 $9€°TS - -
T31°058°1 9ss'ey so1jddng pue seoialeg
0LL'€88 98 sigeuag aokojdury
LSO'PESE LYT'8 - -
006'cy soIyNsqas
61L'TLE S[BUOISSJ01] IOIQ
9¢8°18¢ oS poddng
T29'T65 LYT'8 SJUBISISSY [QUONBONPH
SY6°LTT sjedtoutrd 901A pue sjediourg
SE0SIET SI9Y0Bs L
soue[es
sasuadxy
600°895"9 59€°TS - -
€8¢ QUWIOOU] JUSULSIAUY
£20°012°1 $9£°TS INUSATY YO
1LY 6Y1 1BYQ - SIUBLD [BIOUIAOL]
TE6LOT'S 218D PINY) pUB UOHEBONPH JO AUSIUIA - SIUBLD) [BISUIACL]
SINUIATY
8P IYTT VS IE S85°16 ILL°0S 1894 J0 PUd ‘aNUIAIY PILIII(Q
600°895°9 $9€'CS - - SNUIATY 0] PIIROCY 18597
198'889°9 G3H'IS $85°16 1LL°OS
£58°9 WOOU] JUIUSIAL]
PSO'LTI'T 68Y°1S $85°16 LYo
P98P11 1910 - SIURIL) [RIDWAOIL
060°0b¥°S ILLOS 8Ie0) PIIYD pUE UOHEONPY JO ANSIULA] - SIIBID) [BIOUIACLJ
SjuRID) PAIOLISYY PPV
0€9°071°T 81¥CE - - 1834 Jo SuiuuISaq ‘onudaay paassge(Q
$ 3 $ $
TYIOL EEL ) SjueLs weIsosy
weido1r] peog  poog [EUONEN

§70T ‘0¢€ 3un( papug Jeax
199[qQ Aq osuadxg pue spuny asoding [eroadg ur soSuey))

(dmy ddurg) TS "ON JIISIQ [00YdS



School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)

Schedule of Capital Operations
Year Ended June 30, 2025

Schedule 4 (Unaudited)

2025 Actual
2025 Invested in Tangible Local Fund 2024
Budget Capital Assets Capital Balance Actual
$ $ $ 3 $
Revenues
Provincial Grants
Ministry of Education and Child Care 196,052 196,052

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 1,364,670 1,348,370 1,348,370 1,294,435

Total Revenue 1,364,670 1,544,422 1,544,422 1,294,435
Expenses

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets

Operations and Maintenance 1,502,340 1,490,676 1,490,676 1,455,081
Transportation and Housing 79,156 76,241 76,241 74,378

Total Expense 1,581,496 1,566,917 1,566,917 1,529,459
Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year (216,826) (22,495) (22,495) (235,024)
Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased 168,059 168,059

Local Capital 60,000 -

Total Net Transfers 60,000 168,059 168,059 -
Total Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year (156,826) 145,564 145,564 (235,024)
Capital Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 5,552,586 5,552,586 5,787,610
Capital Surplus (Deficit), end of year 5,698,150 5,698,150 5,552,586

DRAFT - Not Finalized 66 of 140

September 03, 2025 14:41

Page 40




1§ 98eq

IFPT ST0T ‘€0 Joquivydag

poapug 3N - 1TV

969°209°6% 76Ty - 6SL81IS £7€'881 0PT'ES6 1Y T5h°668°9 JON - s1ssV [ende)) o[qidue],
LS9TI0EY ¥8EST - 965°TLT SY0'01y TEOPIETY 1834 JO pUd ‘UOPTZIIOWY PIIL[NWANIY
PILIEL - - 66L°€9 S16°L9 -
PILIEIL 66L°€9 ST16°L9 sjesodsi( paweag
19881051
LT6°99S°T ¥TOL 1¥T9L £€7°¢9 611°0Z¥'1 169 A Y3 JOJ UONEZILIOULY :9SBIIOU]
B3 X 93 10] saSuey))
PSYLLS TV 09¢°8 $S1°09¢ LTLYIY €1T'v68°0Y 1234 Jo Juruuigeq ‘UonEZIIIOWY PAEMWNNY
£SE°ST9°C6 90£°8S - SSETI6L 89¢°865 TLYLIT S TSP 668°9 1ea4 30 pud ‘sSAUZ0.J UL IO PUE IS0
$EE'ST9°01 PEE°ST°01 1234 JO puo ‘§59I301F UL HI0A
610°066°18 90€°8S - SSET16L 89€°86S 8ESTYIEL 51°668°9 1234 3o pud 50D
PIL'IEL - - 66L°€9 S16°L9 - -
PILIEL 66L°€9 S16°L9 sjesodsiq powedq
e abisl=Tg |
020°870°C 89¢°9Y - 169°1T1 - 606°€99°C 750961
650°891 89€°9Y 169°1¢1 pung Sunerado
196°6S8°C 606°€99°C 750961 melhg - onuassy Tende) pausgeq
WOIJ SASBYLINJ
:9589I0U]
83X 9Y] 10) mumﬂﬁn—o
£ILE60°6L 8€6°11 £OP'EEL £87°999 679°8L6'0L 00¥°€0L’9 Teaf Jo Suruuidaq 450D
$ $ $ $ $ $ $
[e10L IIBMpITH 218M1J0§ SIPIYIA jwwdmby sswppng FEN
Jmndwo) Jndwo) pue aunjiuan g

(panprieuf)) vy Apayas

$T0T “0€ dunf pIpug 1esx
s1essy [eyde)) o[qiue],

(1adny 2durid) 7§ "ON LS [00YdS

67 of 140



School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)

Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress
Year Ended June 30, 2025

Schedule 4B (Unaudited)

Furniture and Computer Computer
Buildings Equipment Software Hardware Total
3 3 $ 3 $
Work in Progress, beginning of year 1,753,572 1,753,572
Changes for the Year
Increase:
Deferred Capital Revenue - Bylaw 8,525,859 8,525,859
Deferred Capital Revenue - Other 345,903 345,903
8,871,762 - - 8,871,762
Net Changes for the Year 8,871,762 - - 8,871,762
Work in Progress, end of year 10,625,334 - - 10,625,334
DRAFT - ot Finatized 68 of 140

September 03, 2025 14:41

Page 42




School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) Schedule 4C (Unaudited)

Deferred Capital Revenue
Year Ended June 30, 2025

Bylaw Other Other Total
Capital Provincial Capital Capital
3 3 3 $
Deferred Capital Revenue, beginning of year 25,255,226 863,174 819,341 26,937,741
Changes for the Year
Increase:
Transferred from Deferred Revenue - Capital Additions 2,663,909 2,663,909
2,663,909 - - 2,663,909
Decrease:
Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 1,277,802 30,351 40,217 1,348,370
1,277,802 30,351 40,217 1,348,370
Net Changes for the Year 1,386,107 (30,351) (40,217) 1,315,539
Deferred Capital Revenue, end of year 26,641,333 832,823 779,124 28,253,280
Work in Progress, beginning of year 1,708,137 45,435 1,753,572
Changes for the Year
Increase
Transferred from Deferred Revenue - Work in Progress 8,525,859 14,845 331,058 8,871,762
8,525,859 14,845 331,058 8,871,762
Net Changes for the Year 8,525,859 14,845 331,058 8,871,762
Work in Progress, end of year 10,233,996 60,280 331,058 10,625,334
Total Deferred Capital Revenue, end of year 36,875,329 893,103 1,110,182 38,878,614
DRAFT - Not Finalized 69 of 140

September 03, 2025 14:41 Page 43




b 38ed

IPT ST0T ‘€0 1aquiaydag

pazifeuly JON - JAVIAd

69L°81S°S - 0pE9EY'S £98°8¢ 995°€S a834 Jo pus ‘sdur[eg
LLI'8SS - 06€°L9T°1 - (€1T°600) IBaX oY) 10§ sauvy) JON
ETLTELTL 8S0°1€¢€ SY8'y1 - 078°S8E 11
750°961 TS0961 $9SBYOINJ 9IS - ANUSAGY 0} PALISYSUBL],
T9L1L88 850°1¢€€ SP8PI 658°575°g §8018014 UL YIOM - YO O PaLISJSURI]
606°€99°C 606°€99°C SUONIPPY [ende]) - YD 03 parrajsuel],
19582109 (]
006°685°TI 850°1€€ SETTRTT - L09°9L6°0T
850°1€€ 850°1€€ RO
SETI8TT GETT]TI IOUIQ) - SIUBID [RIOUIAOL]
L09°9L6°01 L09°9L6°01 3I8) PIIYD PUE UOHEBONDH JO ANSIUIA ~ SJUBID) [BIOUIAOIL]
:as8910U]
183 X 913 103 saguey)
765°099°¢ 056891t £98°8¢C 6LLT9Y 1ea£ Jo Buruuideq ‘aduvieg
$ $ $ $ $ $
[EI0L, rende) rende) rende) TeyrdeD rexde)
19Q0 puer| [eRuIAGLg PaLySay Meldg
PYO DIAN

(pazipneusy) qp s[(npayds

$T0T ‘0 sun( papug Ieax
onuoady Tende) peroye( juadsun) ur saSuey)

(1adny ddurd) 7S "ON PLUSIQ [00YdS

70 of 140



yipne/ea-buwdy

$Z0Z ‘9l Jaqwajdas uo Buleaw ayj 4oy pasedald

'\I\\\\\\
777 24577

GZ0Z ‘0€ aunp papua Jeak ayj 1o}
poday sbulpuld jipny

S.Ez:z mo::&
\WAA\ 26°0N 10118101003

b




eo bwdy@bnAels
980%-¥19-092
Jebeuey Juswabebug pny pes

BnAe Ajjes

eo Bwdy@anboiw
040%-¥19-06¢C
Jauped juswsbebug ypny pes

VO ‘VdD ‘@anboy ejeeaiy

Juswisbelua SIY} Yy}Im UOI}I2UUOID U] S}OBIUO0D Ay

$19e1U03 JNdX

72 of 140



73 of 140

¢ i

*asodind Jayjo Aue 1oy Jo Aped paiyy Aue ‘Aq pash aq jou pjnoys pue ‘Joj
papuaul jou si pue ‘ioj paledaid usaq jou sey Hodau sy} se Aued payy Aue Aq 1o o} ‘Aue Ji ‘swiejo Jo sabewep Jo ss0] 40} ANjiqe| Jo Ayjiqisuodsal ou aney [leys O Aved
1830 AU Jo asodind Jayio AUe 1o} pash aq jou pInoYs pue Uolieonp3 Jo pJeog 3y} pue ‘ssjiuwo) Bulp|ing pue soueuly uawabeuB|\ JO 3SN pUB UolEULIoUl 3Y} Joj A[3joS

papuaUl S Jodal SIYL *SjUSWle)s [elouBUl SU} JO JIPNE INO JO SYNSaI 3U} JO MBIASI JNOA Ul ‘Usleanp3 JO pleog U} JO Jaquisw & se ‘noA isisse 0} si Jodal siyy Jo asodind ay |
‘uoI193s jeyi 0} wumm_>mc

0] Sjuajuo? JO ||gel
ay} ur wisy Aue uo 32119

"9pIIS SIy} 03 %oeq
noA Bulig [jim Jauiod b
doj ayj uo joquiAs swoy
ay} uo buyald ‘(,s)009
pleog, 10 Japeay 3qopYy,
u| "6°9) wuoy 21uoII8IS
u1 Buipeal aie noA §|

saonoeld

CETRIETB]IE]
saoipuaddy pue saio1od 1ousioLep

|oJ3uon

“JUSWINI0pP
A sjnsal snyeys
4dd .psul-IS0aAyY, Sjuswajelssiy pue sysiy sjybiybiH
e Se 9|qe|iene os|e Sl

Hoday sbulpul4 Jpny siy L

uonjeuiojul
asn|elhig



®

sisyjew Buipodsi |eloueul J8Y10

D,

s9oljoeld pue saioljod Buunooy

suoljoesuel} fensnun jueoyiubis

&) &)

s9jdo)
Jtoads

9

Sagoeld
puesajajiod

‘Buipodau [eloueul
JSAO |0J3U0D [BUIBJUI Ul SSI0USIOLSP JUBILIUBIS 84 0} pauluLls}ep
SM Jey} S3I10U3I0ISP |043U0D Aue AJ3USpI JOU PIP AN

S919UaIolap JuBdLIUBIS

“

$8|ausjaliep
jo5juog

"PSIIIUSPI SEM JUSWSJ)SS| W Pajoallod suQ

@ SJUSWIS)RISSIW Pa}oaLIo)

Sjuawiajelssiu
31931109

"PSIHIUSP] SISM SJUSWSIBISSIW PJ0S1102UN OM |

@ Sjuswselssiw pajoaliooun

Sjuatuajelssju
pajaalioaun

s|iejep 10} yui| 93s — Jodal 0} siaye i

s9olpuaddy S901j0BId puUe S3121|0d

S9IOUBOLA(Q [0AUOD

sIajew uIsouo0d bulos)

spuny pajelausb jooyog -
SHjouaq pue ssueesS -

sosuadxa pue sajjjiqel| paniode ‘sjqeAed sjunoody -

SNUSASI PSUIB3UN PUB SNUSASI PRLISJap ‘ONUSASy -«
anuanal [elded pasiayep pue sjasse [eydeo gjqibue -

JuswWaje)ssiW [elajewW 4o SYSU Y10

“

S|0JJUOD JO BPLIBAC
juswabeuew Jo ysu pswnsald - spiepuels [euoissajold
Aq pauinbai asoy} puoAsq paijuSp! SI9M SHSH JSYJ0 ON -

@W SHsU Juedublg

‘lipne sy} jo sabejs Buiuuibaqg sy
aouls ueld ypne uno o} ssbueys Jueoliubis ou aiem aIsy] -

uejd yipne uno aouls sabueyo Juedyiubis

"Hodal S|y} Jo spils snjels, 2y uo payybiybly sie yarym
n@ ‘sainpao0.id Bulpuelsino Bujuiewsal uiepad Jo uoidaoxa sy}
Yim ‘sjuswisiels [eioueul) ayj Jo JIpne sy} pajs|dwod aAey SN

yodai 0} sisjBW ON !

sjuswalelssIn S}Nsay pue sysiy snjeig

S]insal
puesysiy

safitieys
1UeINIUGIS

SJUBNYGIY PNy

o
<
-
[

o
<
~

syybybiH



75 of 140

*sainpa20.d aA0qge sy} Jo uole|dwod ay}
Buipnjoul ‘ipne auj Jo uons|dwod sy} wouy Buisue ‘Aue i ‘sisew Juealubis uo ‘iiey oy} Aj9|os jou pue ‘pleog au} djepdn [Im SN

*30UINOI4 BU} JO Sjuswaje)s [eloueul)

fJewwins ayj Jo JIPNE 8y} Ul uoluido JIpNe JNo uo dauel|al Jo sasodind sy} Jo} [elsuss) JOJPNY 8y} 4O SO 3y} 0} Buiodey .
SjuswWaye}s [eroueul sy} Jo [enoidde s,pieog ayj jo sjep ayj o} dn sainpadold meinal Jusae Jusnbasgns Buisjdwo) .

J19139] uonejuasaldal juswabeuew paubis e Bulureiqo .

SjuUSWale]s [eloueUl 8y} 40 [eAosdde s pieog ay) Jo souspiae Buiuielqo .

uoI}BONpP3 JO piBOg Y} UM SuoISsnasip Ino Buis|dwo) .

:S19Y}0 }SBUOWE apNjoul YoIyMm ‘sainpaooid Bujuiewsal uleps Jo uoidsoxs syl Yum ‘(Joussid [00YdS au,) (padny
30Ulld) ZG'ON 1013SI [00YIS JO SIUSWS}e}s [elouBUl GZ0Z ‘0E SUN( JO JIpne sy} pajs|dwod ey am ‘Hodal Siy} JO S1ep 8y} JO SY

e T

,@_ saoipuaddy S821j981d PUE SadIod S9|oURILRQ [04U0D Sjuswale}ssIp



76 of 140

g il wia

"BIqUIN|OD Ysijg JO 9UIN0I By} 4O 10V AJijiqeIunodoy pue Aousiedsuel | 1ebpng ay)
40 L°€Z UoRoas Jepun paiedald aq o} painbal aie sjuswaie)s [eloueUl ay) jey) ‘Ajjeoyoeds “ylomewel 4 Buinodey [eloueur asoding
[e109dS 8y} 0} paje|al uooSs Jepe| Jo siseydws ue apnjoul o} Hodal PIEPUB)S B WO} PSLIpoW Usaq sey podas sJoypne ay] -

‘pawloped sainpaooid ay} 4O JNSal B SB PajoU SI9M SaNnss ON -

‘AlBuipioode 90
0} Hodai [[Im pUB SUORNQLU0D [e)ided Pa.LI4ap JO UOIBIIOUCDa) 3y} Buipnjoul ‘OVO 3y} 10} pasedaud Buiuodal sy} pamsinal aney spy -

"SPIBPUE]S YSd 2y} J8pun sjunoddy [BIOUINOI4 Sy} JO UOIEPI|OSUOD 8y} wiouad
0} J9pJo Ul ‘sjuswialinbal Joypny dnois) ay; Jepun ‘Buiodal [euonippe pajsanbal sey (,9V0,) [elsuss JOIPNY S} JO VPO dY L -

asuodsay inQ

‘spiepuelg Buiunodoy 103083 dljgnd UBIpeu.y Japun AjJusiayip pepiodal ussg saey
pInom anusAsi [ejided paliajep pajejal Ulepsd pue suoelado Jo Juswale)s sy} Ul peziubodal anusAal S JOLISI [00Y9S aU) ‘Jnsal e sy

'SVSd Jepun pasinbas se ‘Buipuny sy uo suone|ndis Buikiepun sy} Yim SoUBPIOdIE Ul JOU ‘SJOSSE |ended s|qibue} pajejal ay}
40 UonEZIHOoWE 3y} SB S|Seq 3Wes 8y} U0 pazIHOWE pue palisjep 8. Suoinquiuod [eyded ‘suoijeinbal sy} Japun "SUoNGLIU02 PajoLsal
Joy Bununoooe o} piebal uj jdeoxe ((SYSd) spiepuels Buiunoooy 10j99g 21|qnd Ajdde 0} 10u3sIq |00YdS By} Joauip suoienbal asay |

"pleog Ainseal | eiquinjoQ ysiiig J0 SuInold dY) A panss] |1.0Z/86) PUB 0102/.5Z Suonenbay Jo sjuswalinbal
2y} Aq pjusweiddns ‘(,SvSd,) Spiepue)s Buunoddy 10}0ag 21jgnd Uelpeury Japun paledaid ale SJUSWale}s |eloueul ay |

jiomawel 4 asueljdwon uo poday s,J0pny @

}I0MaLLel4 adueljdwog uoioday s.10)pny

@ soolpuaddy $901)0Bld pUE S3191|0d saouaye(q oAU sjuswajesssipy S)INSay pue sysiy snjels

SWBIYBIH




77 of 140

‘pawlopiad sainpaooid 8y} 4O JNsal B Se Pajou 819Mm Sanss| ON -

sBuipuyy jueayiubis

‘suoljoesURl} [ENSNUN jueoyiubls jo ajeuoljes ssauisng ay) bunenjeas -
S3JBWIISD JO MaIARI anlj0adsoljal e Buiwiopsd .

sjuswisnipe Jayjo pue saljus [euinol jo buiss}

‘papnjoul sainpadold InQ

“Jpne sy} o} Buijejal apLIaA0 JuswabeueWw Jo SySI [BUOlIppE d10ads AUe palijuspl Jou aABY S\ "SSljuL [|B ul jussald s| ssajayHansu
sl oy ‘A1us o] Alus wous AIBA [[IM S|0JJUO0D O SpPLUIBAO Juswabeuew Jo 3sU Jo [9A9] 8y} yBnoyyy "Ajlsnioaye Buijelsdo aq o} Jeadde
9SIMIBY10 JBU) S[0J3U02 BuipLIano Ag Sjuswele)s [eloueul Jusjnpnely aiedaid pue spiodal Bujunoooe sjejndiuew o} Ayjiqe s) j0 asnedsq
pney; sjesjediad oy uomisod anbiun e ui s Juswabeue|y “spiepuels Bulipny UBIpeUB) Ylm S0UBPIOOJ. Ul )SH pnelj pawnsald e si siy

S|043U09 JO SPIIISAO JudaWabeuew wody Ysid pnedd

S)INsal pue SHSHJURIIUAIS

SIBIYBIH

soipuaddy S8010BId PUE SAII0d SaI0UBLR( |04U0D sjuswalelssiy S)INSay pue sysiy sneis




78 of 140

g i

"Buiyebpnq [ejides ainjny 1o [00] SIY} 3sn UBD puE N0 ABy} JesA sy} Ul sjesodsip pio9al pue yoel} ued

usIg [00y9s e ‘is)siBau jesse [eydeo pajieiep e Buisn  “sjep juswisoe|dal panpayas pue asn sAjoe ‘palinboe sjep sisi| ey} UssiBal
josse [ejided pajiejsp e sI JousIq [00YdS 0} S|qE|IBAR [00] 1589 3y} ‘SpI0dal Buiunosde sjousiq |0oyos ayi Bunepdn jo Aem |nyasn

e s| s|esodsip pawasp Buipiodal sjiyAn  “Swi} o pouad paquasald e Jaye (seaiysa pue juswdinba pue ainjiuiny) s}asse paziowe-A|ny
UIe99 Jo [esodsip pswasp Psjew}ss [enuue Ue Sp1o9ai J9L}SIg [00Y9S dU} Jeuy} ‘sjo1isid [00Y9S Og Jay10 UM JUSIsisuoo ‘pajou apn

‘Juswabeuew Aq psjoa1i0d Ajusnbesgns sem yoiym ‘Junowe swes ay} Joy snjdins pajenwnooe

PUB 8nuaAal JO Juswale)sisapun pue zi0'961L$ Aq (ANigel]) snusasi [ejided pauiajep 4O JUSWS)EISISAC Ul PaYNSal SIY| "SNUSA3)

0} paziubodal Buieq jo pesjsul snusaal [eyded palajep Se papnjoul sem aseyaind ay) Joy Buipuny [eydes pajejal 3y} ‘uonippe uj

"SYIs 40 pesysul ssalbold ul siom — sBuiping 4o Jed se puej e Jo aseyaind sy} pazioBaed A|SNosUOLS JOLISI [00YIS SU) Jey) pajou EI

(.OV0,) [elausD Joypny

33 40 92O Sy} 0} Buipodai [euolppe Ino Loddns 0} pasn sI YaIyMm ‘anuanal [ejded passep 0} Paje|al UOHBULIONI SY) PAMIIASI AN
‘sjesse |ejided s|qibuey Jo uoljeziUoWE 0} UOHB[S1I09

S)l uo paseq Jeah sy} Bulnp papiodal SUOHNGUIUOD [e}ideD PaLIsep PSZIHOWE 83U} 4O JUSWSSSSSE AJljIqeuoses) & pawiopad app .
‘popJodal Aj9jeinade

PuE pajolysal Ajsjelidoidde aie spunowe y ssasse 0} Jeak sy} Bulinp paziuBooal pue paniedal anuaasl [ejides paWIUoD Spn -

‘siosse [elideD Jo 3| [NJasn pPajewlIse Uo paseq Ssuadxs UOHEZILOWE JO JusWSSasse A)Iqeuosesl e pawlouad apy «
*s904nos Buipuny ayj Jad s|qibije pue ‘ainjeu ui [ejides sem

‘paaibe paziubooal Junowe sy} i SUILISISP 0} S3210AUI Buioddns sy} pajoadsul pue Buijsa) Jo) ‘SuolIppe 4o s|dwes e pajoajas 3N -
‘s|enoidde pieoq
pue sjabpng panoidde yum Jusisisuod ale Aay} aunsus o} sainypuadxs [eydes Jo) sassasoid M3IA81 paje|al pue [enoldde ayj Buipnjoul

‘enuanal [eyded paliajep pue sjesse [e)ded 9|qibue) J9no S|o1juod pue saljiAlde sS800id ay) Jo BulpuE)sISpuN UB PSUIBIGO SAN -

s}j|nsal pue sainpaloud anQ

anuaAai [ejided palisyap pue sjasse |ejides ajqibue]

S]iNsSailpue justuaje)ssiwi jeriaeu jo SySi Iaul0

@ saipuaddy $291]9B1d PUE S319I[0d S319UBIOYA(Q [013U0D SJUBWREISSIN S)INSay pue sysiy snjels

mza__,_m_r ‘



79 of 140

‘pawioyad sainpaoold 8y} JO Jnsal B SB $9NSS| OU P3jou 3N

"1eaA |eosly ajeudoidde ayj ul papiodal alam
Aoy J1 ssasse 0] pus-1eak 0} Jusnbasqns Paniaal SSOI0AU pUE ‘paplodal ssjqeded apel} ‘epew sjuswiAed Jo sjdwes e psjos|as o
- ‘uolyejuaWIN90p Buiuoddns Buimsinal Aq seouelEeA JuBDLIUBIS P3JEI0GOLI0D PUB PRIOU SBOUELIEA BY} JO Bulpuelsispun
ue paulelqo ‘Ieak Joud o} anie|al uoiouny Aq pue 0sfqo Aq sesuadxa Jano sainpaoold [BdllA[eUR SAUBISANS pauliopad AN -
“salyijiqel] paniode pue se|qehed ‘sasuadxa JOAO S|0JU0I puE SSNAOE $58001d BY} JO BUIpUBISISPUN UB PSUIBIQO 8N

sjjnsai pue sainpadoid JnQ

sosuadxa pue sajijiqel] pan4ode ‘djqeled sjunoddy

‘pawlopad seinpaooid aU} JO JNSal B SB SSNSS| OU PAJOU AN

“RISIUI SY} WO PAAISISI UOIJEULIZUOD 3Y} 0} SNUSASI PRLISJSP Ul PapIodal pue panieoal Buipuny asodind [efoads sy} paaibe appy -
‘paziubooal anusAal Jo Junowe

ay; 0} swelb Buijelado sy} peaibe pue Jeak [edsly GZ0Z Sy} Ul papinold Buipuny sy} Joj AusiUlN SY} WOI) UOIBULILUOD B PIUIBIGO AN -

“3NUSASI PAUIESUN PUE SNUSASI PIIS4SP ‘SNUSASI JOAO S|0JJU0D pue SallIAoe $s3001d 2y} 4o Bulpuejsiapun Ue paulejqo spy -

sjinsai pue sainpasosd inQ

3aNUdA3I PAUJE3UN PUB SNUIA3J PALISIBP ‘SNUBARY

S1insalpue justugjelssiui jeliajet Jo SYSH 1ayi0

 sepusyeq (040D

seopusddy 9911981 PUE A0

swewslelsSIN S}Insay pue sysiy snjeis SIYBIYBIH




80 of 140

o i

‘pauniopad sainpaooid By} JO JNSSl B SB SaNSS| OU Pajou AN

‘paniaval
SU01399]|09 pajoLysal Aq papuny Alny 2q 0} pejosdxe ale sasuadxe se paunoul sesuadxa 0} psziubooal enusnsl pasedwod sp -
“{Ueq dY} Yim pjay Ysed sy} 0} sjuswalels [eloueul) sy} Ul papodal anusasl pallsep ay) paiedwod apn .

"SaljiAIoE pajesuab [00yos o)
Spun} SSpNjoul YaIym ‘ueq 3y} yim Ajjoslip SJunodoe yueq pajjosjuod JoL)sIg [00Y9S |[B Ul pIaY SpUny 8y} JO 99UE[Eq S} PSWIIUOD S\ -
'Spuny psjesaush [00y9s JSAO S|0JIU0D PUB SalIAOE ss2001d By} Jo Buipue)siapun no psjepdn spn -

S}|nsai pue sainpadloud inQ

spuny pajesauab jooyoss @

‘pawiopad saunpavoid Sy} Jo JNSal B SE SSNSSI OU Pjou SN

‘sauljepinb
gVSd UM SOUBPIODIE Ul SI )l By} WIIJUOD pUB SINsO[dsip djou paje|al Buipnjoul ‘uolejussald JusWale)s [BIOUBUL 8Y} POMBIASI SAN -
"Hodas s Auenjoy sy} 0} way} peaibe pue juswabeuew Ag pasn SUOIAWNSSE Sy} PMSIASI SAN -

'G20Z ‘0€ aunr o} uoposfoid
sjuswabeuew pue ‘Gz0z ‘L¢ YoIe Je e JsJs|y Aq pauliopad sjysuaq ainyny 9ekojdwa 1oy Hodal uoljenjea sy} paulelqo SN\ -
"}9bpng pepuswe panoidde uo psseq asuadxs syyoUSq PUB SBLIE[ES 10} S2INps20.d [ednAjeuE pawloyad app .
9suadxa spjeusq pue saliejes 99A0jdWs SN0 S|0IU0D PUE SBNIAIOE SS8001d 2y} Jo Buipue)siapun ino pajepdn apn -

sj|nsai pue sainpasoid inQ

suonebijqo sjyauaq ainny sskojdws ‘syyauaq pue ssuejeg

INS3l pue juatlig)e)ssii jeria)et Jo Sysii 13

@ . i ,mrooﬁum_o&«‘ & mam__‘ou‘._.m‘ur.u‘wm_o__om‘

S912UBIAYA(Q |0AU0D

sjuawa)e)ssIy S)Insay pue sysiy snjels

 SIUBIYBIH



0 i

(695°529) 695°GL9 - - lejoL

(655'G29) 655'S.9 - - uonebi|qO JusWaIRaL JaSSY
asealau| (aseasdaq asealdu| (asealdsag
sagiigen sjassy
uol}Isod jeioueuly

asealou) (aseasdaq)

Ajus uswysnlpy

sjuawaje)ssiw jo uonduasag

‘podal S,Jojpne INo Uo J08ya ou sey
2oualayip ay; ‘AIBUIpI0oY "SJUSLUSIE]S [BIoUBUY Y} O} [BLISJEW JOU S| 8OUSJYIP 3} Jey} uolejuasaldal s uswabeuew Yyjim Jnduod AN

“Jay9| uonjejuasaldal Juswabeuew
9y} Ul papnjoul sI uoljejuasaldal jJuswabeuBW SIY | "SIUSWS}E]S [BIoUBUL SY} O} [ELS}eW JouU ‘Juswbpn( J1ay} ul ‘S| 9ousIayip sy} 18y} sn
0} psjussaidal pue SauaIaIp aU} 1021109 0} JoU PapIoap aAeY JuswabeuewW ‘SUOIEISPISUCD aAljeljuENb pue aajelenb yjoqg uo paseg

*9]0YM E SE SJUSWSJE}S [BIDUBUIL SY} PUB ‘S3INSO|OSIP JO SS0UB[E] JUNOJJE ‘SUONJOBSUE} JO SSSSE[D JUBAS|RI SY) UO spouad

Joud 0} pajejal SJUSWSIBISSIW PajIa.I0oun JO 10848 8y} Buipnjoul ‘|elAL} AlIES[O UBY} JBYI0 84 0} PaISpISU0D S9UBISHIP pajoaliodun
[e 10 }oedwl 9y} S3SO[OSIP YIIYM ‘SJUSWSIBISSI HPNY Pajoaiiodun Jo Alewwng ay} sapnjoul Jajs] uoljejussaidal Juswebeuew ay |

‘pJepue)s ay} jo uoidope uodn %9/9¢ 4O junowe
sy} ul sjewIse uolebi|qo Juswalilal 19sse sy} 0} Bulje|al ‘Ipne 8y} Ul 90USIaYIp Pa}oallooun ue pajou DN ‘1esk Jse| o} Jejluis

uonebl|qO JuUs WY J9SSY

Justliglelssiti pajaalioauf

81 of 140

sa9ipuaddy Sadjoeld pue S3II|0d el Salouayaq [0ju0y E mz:mmm‘mmm wv_mww_ ! ‘ m.:«m«m Gl ma\cm‘__eu_:



cl

~ seopuaddy

"Hoda1 S,J0}iPNE N0 U0 JO9)JS OU SBY JUSWS]BISSIW SINS0[aSIp 3y} ‘AjBuipi00dY “[elsjew Jou S| SJUSWale]s |eloueul) ay)

40 99€} 3y} U0 }ebpnq [eulblo sy} uey) Jeyjel 196png papuswe sy} Jo uolejuasald sy} Jey uoiejuasaldal s uswabeUBW YIMm INJUOD SN
“J9)19| uolejuasaidal Juswabeuew

Sy} ul papnjoul si uoljejussaidal Juswsbeuew sy | "SJUSWs}e}S [BIQUBUL Sy} 0} [BlISJEW Jou ‘Juswbpn( 118y} Ul ‘s 8ouIoyIp Sy} 1By} SN
0} pajuasaldal pue soUSISYIP SY] 1991109 0} JOU PSPIISP SneY JuswabeuBwW ‘SUOHEIaPISUOD aAleyIuENb pue aAjel|enb yjoqg uo psseg
3|0ym B SE Sjuawaje}s [elouBUl) Sy} pUB ‘SaINSO[ISIP JO S8JUEB|E] JUNOJJE ‘SUOIIOBSUBI) JO S8SSEJO JUBAS|I 8y} Uo spouad

Joiud 0} psje|al SJUSWSIE]SSIW Paj09.102Un JO 1938 3y} Buipnjoul ‘[eiAl} Al1ea]0 UBY} JaYJ0 84 0} PaISpISU0D SSOUSISLIP Po}oS1iooun

Ile o Joedwl 8y} SISO[OSIP YoIYm ‘Sjuswale]ssi|A IPNY Pojoa1I0oun J0 AlBWWNS 8y} S9pNjoul Jojs] Uolejuasaldal Juswabeuew sy |
‘Sjuswale)s [elouBUl Sy} 0 SIasn 8y} Joj uosuedwod Jebpng [euibuo ay) Buuasald sjuswalels [BIoUBUL SU} 0} SI}0U 3y} Ul PS[IoU02al

sl Jebpng sy "spJepuejs Buijunodoe 10j0ss dqnd uelpeue) Aq palinbas se uojeanp3 jo pieog ayj Aq pancidde jebpng jeulbuo

3y} uey} Jayjel sjuswaje)s [eloueuly ay; Uo }9Bpnqg pepuswe ay) sjussaid 1o13sIg [00UIS 3y} Jey) pajou NG ‘sieak snoinald o} Jejiwig

39bpng

JU3Ld]e]SSit p3a}aalloaun

82 of 140

soeigpiesoood  ssevemssaroncd [ sinssy pue sty sieis St



83 of 140

1 i

250961 (zs0‘961) . 250961 _ lejoL

. ssaiboud uil jaom

- sBulp|ing se pazuiobajed

250'96) (zs0'961) = 250'961) uonsinbae pue| pspund
asealdu|

asealou| (aseassaq) asealou| (aseasdaq) (ese01930) G e

sjusauwajelssiu

b3 saniger 40 uonduasag

sjessy

uonisod jeloueuiy 193443 awodu pajuasaid
3 1

Ajus jusunsnipy

"3961$ 0 JUNOWE 3y} Ui snjdins paje[nwnaoe

PUE SNUSASI pajelsiapun pue snuaaal [ejded pauiajep pajelsiano Ajjeriul J931109 0} paalbe Juswsbeuew yoiym ‘siols asay L
“anuanal 0} paziubooal Buieq jo pesjsul anuanal [e}ided paiiasep se paziubodal sem uolysinboe sys a3 oy Buipuny [eydes pajelal ay}
‘Jayung “sayis Jo pesjsul ssaiboud ul jiom — sbuipjing jo ped se pazilobajed A|snoauolia Sem puel e Jo uolsinboe ay} jeyl psjou SNAM

anuaAay |eyden pallajaQg pue s}assy |ende) sjqibue |

Jugilig}e]ssitl pajdalioy

- seopusddy S3010BI PUE S3III0d sajpusioueq _,o.s:ou- sjuawaje}ssip S)nsay pue sysiy

Gm smeis SIyBIYBIH

[EORRRARIE ~




84 of 140

vl o i

‘Buiiodal [eloueUl) J9A0 [0JJUOD [BUIS}UI UL SIIDUIIDISP Jueoliubls Aue Ajijuapi Jou pip spn

"S0uBUIAAOE yum pableyd asoy} Jo uojusRe ay} Jsw o} ybnous Juepodwl si ‘JuswBpnl no ui ‘jey; Buipodai [elouBUY JBAO [0UOD [BUISIU] U] ‘SSIDUSIOLSP JO UOIBUIGUIOD B 10 ‘AOUsIouap

Buiodau [eloueuly J9AO |0J3UOD [BUISIUL Ul SBIDUIDLAP JuBdIUBIS

"Alanioays |043u02 8y} wiopad 0} sous}edwod Jo AJuoyine Alessaoau ay} ssassod Jou S80p [043u0d sy} Bululopsd uosiad sy usym

Jo ‘paubisap se sjesado jou sa0p [013u00 paubisep Aladold B usym sisixa uojelado ul AousIoyap v JoU 89 JoU pNom SAIS[qO [03UOD U} ‘paubisap Se saesado [0.JU0D By} 4 USAS Jey}
0s paubisap Apadoud jou | [0J3u00 Bupsixs e (q) Jo BuIsSIW S 9AOS[GO [01JUOD Y} 88 0} AIBSS303U [0U0D B (B) Usym SISIXS UBISap Ul Aousiousp v 'siseq Ajlswi} B UO SJUsWale}ssiu
1o8}8p Jo Juenald o} ‘suopouny paubisse Jiey} Bujuiiopad Jo 95IN02 [BULIOU S} Ul ‘s98A0|dus 10 JuswabBUBW MO|[E JOU SSOP [0J}U0J B J0 UOREISdO Jo UBISSP SU) Usym S)SIXa AoUsIoLap v

Buipiodal [eloueuly J9AO [013U0 [eua)ul Ul Aduiolep VY

‘papiodal Usaq aABY ‘JOB} U] JOU PaaU SeIouaiouap Jueduiubls
papodal 8y} Jo 2WOs jey} PapN|aUoD 1o papiodal g 0} SelousIolsp JUBDLIUBIS 10w PaLuSp! aARY JyBIw em ‘Buiodal [BIOUBUY JOAO [043UCD [BUISIUI UO S2Inpadold SAISUSIXS Slow
pauuopad am peH 'siojoe} JOYJO SE ||om Se ‘pauliopiad sainpasoud Jipne Jo Jusixa pue ‘Buiwi ‘SInjeu dy) Aq paousnpul S| PUE JPNE 4OBS UYHM SSLIBA SSIOUSIONSP [OJJUOD JO SSaUSIEME INQ

"8ouBUIaA0B Yym pabieyd asoy} 0} pspodal
Bureq s o} souBpOdWI JUSIOWNS JO 318 PIPNIOUCD SABY SM JBU) JIPNE aU} BULINP PaLUSPI SABY SM JBy} SSI0USI04ap 3SOU) 0} pajiwl| 8l papodal Buisg SISNewW auy] "SaIousIoLap
jueoyIuBls a9 JyBiul Jey} Sa10UBIOYSP [013U0D || AYuSpl 0} pauBISSp Jou Sem pue aA0qe PaquOsap asodind payiw| a3 Joj sem Buiiodal [BIoUBUY JSAO [0UOD [BUISIUI Jo BUIpUElSIapUN INO

4491 uo uojuido ue Buissaidxa J0 asodind 8y} Jo} Jou JNg ‘SJUSWSIE]S [BIOUBUY U} UO Uoluido Ue Buissaldxa o asodind sy Jo} SSOUBISWNOUIO
3y} ul sjendoldde aue jey seinpadoud Jipne ubisep 0} JapIO Ul SjusWae)s [eloueul sy} Jo uoesedaid s AUz By} 0} JUBAG|RL Y4 PBISPISUOD em ‘HipNe Jno Buiwiopad pue Buiuugd u|

(¥491) Bunuodau jejoueuly J9A0 [0J3UOD |BUISIUL JO UOIIRISPISUOD

S3louUaiadijap|oliu

saoipuaddy sa2)08Id pUE S3191|0d S919U3I3 (g |043U0D SJUSWIBIEISSIN S)Nsay pue Sysiy snjeis S|BIYBIH




Sl

85 of 140

‘SaljulePaouUN pue sainsodxa ‘sysu
1ueolIubis O SJUSWS)E.]S [BIOUBUL SU} UO S}Ooaya [eljusjod juedyiubls ou aiem aiey ) .
"SJUSWae)s [elouBul Sy} Ul S2INSO[ISIP 2INS0|3SIp pue uonejuasald Juswajels
9y} Jo Auejo pue ‘Aous)sisuod ‘Ajjelinau [[BISA0 SU} UM PSJOU SSNSS] OU SI9M a1ay L . |e1aueuly Jo syoadse aanejjenb jueayiubig
*S2INSO[ISIP JUSWa}e)s [eloueUl) SAIISUSS
Aleinorped Buijejnwioy ul ‘spew sjuswbpn( 8y} ylim pajou sanss| Ou aJom alay L .

‘sanjen bulliies

Aligel| pue jasse s,JouisIq [00YaS sy} Bulzoaye siojoe) Juediiubis ou susm sisy | .
‘Selq juswabeuew 9|gissod Jo S10}edIpul OU SISM a8y | .
’ sajew}sa bupyunoooe juesyiubis
sajewl}sa
Buizunoooe Buiyew 10} ss9904d s juswabeuBw Yim pajou SINSSI OU S19m 819y | .

"sojeuwl}se BuljUNooe JO UoIEdLUSp! Sjuswabeuew Yim Pajou SINSS] OU SISM a1ay | .

*SUOIJOBSUBI} YINS JO 3INSO|ISIP

10 Juajxe pue pouad ay} Bulnp psziubodal sjunowe Buliindsi-uou Aq pajosye
2JE SJUSWI)E]S [BlouBUl 3y} YIIYM 0} JUSIXS Y} YlIM PSJOU SSNSS| OU SJSM 313y | .

‘suoljoesuel}

4ons JO 2INSOJISIP JO JUBJXS pue uoloeSUB) [Bnsnun juedyiubis e Aq psjosye
3le SJU3W}e]S [eloUBUL 3Y} YIIYM 0} JUSX3 Y} YIIM pPajou SSNSS| Ou a1om ausy | .

‘podal siy} ul paquUassp

Ajsnoinald sisjjew uey} Jayjo ‘paplodal aiam Aay} yaiym ul poriad ayj 0} uone|sd
Ul suoljoesuel} S Jo1IsId [00Y2S Ay} 40 Buiwiy 3y} YjIim pajou SSNSS ou a1om sy | .
‘seale Buiblawsa 10 [e1SI9A013U09 Ul sa19ljod Buunodde Jueoyiubls ou a1em 13y | .

'G20z ‘o€ aunp
papua JeaA [eosl ay} ul paydope saiijod Bujunodoe Juediiubis mau ou a1am alay | .

saioljod Buipunodae Juedayiubis

:Buimooy auy Jubiybiy osje spn

sia)jew buryiodaljejaueuts Isuio

SISy pue sysiy snieis SIyBIYBIH

saoipuaddy S9913981d PUE S3191|0d saiusIoLaQ [04U0D sjuswajesssipy




IV @AjBI3USD)
Ble|D ONdM

J3}38] uonejuasaidai
jusawabeuepy

SuojedIuNWwWod

Aienp ypny palinbay

sjybisui pue Spiepuels
ubr Bunipne o3 sebue
diysiapes] 3ybnoy nip 3 yd sjuswdojaAap Juauny

S3JIpua




87 of 140

n i

‘podal sIy} jo 91ep 8y} jun dn $Z0z ‘| AInp wouy uoienbai 1o uoie|sifa)

a|qeoijdde Jo spiepuejs 1ayjo AUE pue epeUE) Ul S3Ipoq [euolssajold juensjal

2y} Aq paquosaud suoljejaidiajul psjejes pue ss|nJ Jueasjal sy} jo Buiuesw

U} UIYIIM JLISId [00UDS Y} 03 Joadsal yim Juspusdspul aie am Jey} Wiyuod

9/\\ ‘9ouspuadapul uo Bulleaq e aney Aew jey} Jouisig ay} pue 9N usamiaq

"payoene si Jsps| uolejuasaidal juswabeuew ayj Jo Adoo v sdiysuoije|al [|e paIspISuod aney am ‘spiepuels |euolissajold Aq palinbal sy

13139] uonejuasaldal Juawabeuey aouspuadapuj

Juswabeuew o} papinoid sem Jaya| Juswabebus ay; Jo Adod v *SIUSWIJE)S [BIOUBUL SY} 0} payde)e Hodal Jelp sy} 01 Jajay

19139] Juawabebugy podal sa03ipny

|
suofjedunwitiod palinbay | Xipuaaay
- - = -
B voor: eewmewss sweweesw swes s




®

8l

saoipuaddy

88 of 140

1ap9] uonejuasaidal Juswabeuew payoeye 99g

18]13] Uofjejuasaidaljuawuaheuey -¢ Xipuaddy

saopj0eld pue sa(01j0d S9I9UBIDYBP [0JUOD S}NSaJ puB SYSIY smejg spyBIyBIH



School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)
634 6™ Ave East
Prince Rupert, BC V8J 1X1

KPMG LLP

400 - 177 Victoria Street
Prince George, BC V2L 5R8
Canada

September 23, 2025

We are writing at your request to confirm our understanding that your audit was for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the financial statements (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”) of
School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) (“the Entity”) as at and for the period ended June 30, 2025.

General:

We confirm that the representations we make in this letter are in accordance with the definitions as set
out in Attachment | to this letter.

We also confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we
considered necessarysferthe purpose:of appropriatelysinformingourselves: pmmmm

ST

1)  We have ful illed ourvresponszblhtle\s as et out in thegferms of the Eengagement letter dated
August 1, 2023, including fort B [_

i = .
a) the preparatlon of the financial étatements anéA belleve that these L‘ancial statements have
been prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework.

it

Responsibilities:

b) providing you with all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of
the financial statements (“relevant information”), such as financial records, documentation
and other matters, including:

— the names of all related parties and information regarding all relationships and
transactions with related parties;

— the complete minutes of meetings, or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which
minutes have not yet been prepared, of shareholders, board of directors and committees
of the board of directors that may affect the financial statements. All significant actions
are included in such summaries.

c) providing you with unrestricted access to such relevant information.
d) providing you with complete responses to all enquiries made by you during the engagement.

e) providing you with additional information that you may request from us for the purpose of the
engagement.

f) providing you with unrestricted access to persons within the Entity from whom you
determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

g) such internal control as we determined is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. We also
acknowledge and understand that we are responsible for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

89 of 140



h) ensuring that all transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected
in the financial statements.

i) ensuring that internal auditors providing direct assistance to you, if any, were instructed to
follow your instructions and that we, and others within the entity, did not intervene in the work
the internal auditors performed for you.

Internal control over financial reporting:

2)  We have communicated to you all deficiencies in the design and implementation or maintenance
of internal control over financial reporting of which we are aware.

Fraud & non-compliance with laws and regulations:
3)  We have disclosed to you:

a) the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially
misstated as a result of fraud.

b) all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of that involves:
~— management;
— employees who have significant roles in internal control over financial reporting; or
— others
where such fraud or suspected fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

¢) all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affectmg the financial

: p
preparing the financial statements.

Subsequent events:

4)  All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the relevant financial
reporting framework requires adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements have been
adjusted or disclosed.

Related parties:
5)  We have disclosed to you the identity of the Entity’s related parties.

6) We have disclosed to you all the related party relationships and transactions/balances of which
we are aware,

7)  All related party relationships and transactions/balances have been appropriately accounted for
and disclosed in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework.

Employee future benefits:

8) The employee future benefits costs and obligations have been determined, accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the financial reporting framework.

9)  Ali arrangements (contractual or otherwise) by which programs have been established to provide
employee benefits have been disclosed to you and included in the determination of employee
future benefits costs and obligations.

90 of 140



10) The assumptions included in the actuarial valuation are those that management instructed Mercer
to use in computing amounts to be used by the Entity in determining non-pension post
employment benefits costs and obligations and in making required disclosures in the above-
named financial statements, in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework.

11) The source data and plan provisions provided to the actuary for preparation of the actuarial
valuation are accurate and complete.

12) The extrapolations are accurate and properly reflect the effects of changes and events that
occurred subsequent to the most recent valuation and that had a material effect on the
extrapolation.

13) All material events and changes to the plan subsequent to the most recent actuarial valuation
have been properly reflected in the extrapolation.

Environmental matters:

14) The Entity has appropriately recognized, measured and disclosed liabilities for contaminated sites
in the financial statements.

Estimates:

15) The methods, the data and the significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, and
their related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement or disclosure that is
reasonable in the context of the applicable financial reporting framework.

Going concern:

16) We have provided you with allinformation relévant to the use of thé going eoncern assumption in

thefmanmalj‘-}atemen;sxh ) Y / \‘\\ L

17) We confirm that we are no aware of matenal uncertainties es related to events or conditions that

may cast si nlflcant doubt upon theEn&nty s ability to co tihue as a going concern.
\ 3

Non-SEC reglstranlts or non- -reporting issuers: \

18) We confirm that the Entity is not a Canadian reporting issuer (as defined under any applicable
Canadian securities act) and is not a United States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
Issuer (as defined by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002).

19) We also confirm that the financial statements of the Entity will not be included in the group
financial statements of a Canadian reporting issuer audited by KPMG or an SEC Issuer audited
by any member of the KPMG organization.

Misstatements:

20) We approved the corrected misstatement identified by you during the audit described in
Attachment Il

21) The effects of the uncorrected misstatement described in Attachment Il are immaterial, both
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole.

Other:

22) The amounts reported as differences between accounting for Non-Provincial restricted
contributions in accordance with the Restricted Contributions Regulation as compared to Public
Sector Accounting Standards for the purpose of reporting to the Office of the Auditor General are
complete and accurate.

23) We confirm that we have provided to you all the information we are aware of regarding the impact
of PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligation and believe the disclosure in the financial statements is
appropriate.

91 of 140



24) We confirm that the assumptions and data inputs used in the calculation of the asset retirement
obligation are appropriate and reflect the geography that the Entity is located.

25) We confirm that we have provided you with a complete list of service organizations (SO) and sub-
service organizations (SSO) and that the relevant complementary user entity controls (CUECSs)
related to each SO/SSO have been designed and implemented.

26) We confirm the Board of Trustees have approved the June 30, 2025 audited financial statements.

Yours very truly,
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 52 (PRINCE RUPERT)

By: Enrique Vazquez, Secretary-Treasurer

92 of 140



Attachment | — Definitions
Materiality
Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.

Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances, and are affected by
perception of the needs of, or the characteristics of, the users of the financial statements and, the size or
nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both while also considering the entity’s own circumstances.

Fraud & error

Fraudulent financial reporting involves intentional misstatements including omissions of amounts or
disclosures in financial statements to deceive financial statement users.

Misappropriation of assets involves the theft of an entity’s assets. It is often accompanied by false or
misleading records or documents in order to conceal the fact that the assets are missing or have been
pledged without proper authorization.

An error is an unintentional misstatement in financial statements, including the omission of an amount or
a disclosure.

93 of 140



Attachment Il - Summary of Audit Misstatements
Corrected misstatements in the year ending June 30, 2025

G E]
surplus effect

Financial position

Description (Decrease) Assets Liabilities | Accumulated
Increase (Decrease) @ (Decrease) Surplus
Increase Increase (Decrease)
Increase
To recognize to revenue the capital funding 196,052 - (196,052) 196,052
related to the land/ site acquired during the
fiscal year.
|
| \ E j !
‘. | { | |
» I | B | l
| ] & |
ol |
6

94 of 140



Attachment Il - Summary of Audit Misstatements

Uncorrected misstatements in the year ending June 30, 2025

Annual
surplus effect

Financial position

Description (Decrease) Assets Liabilities = Accumulated

To increase estimated ARO liability to bring i B 675559

Increase (Decrease) (Decrease) Surplus
Increase Increase (Decrease)
Increase

(675,559)

rates in line with Ministry provided rates for

asbestos abatement and lead paint removal.

Misstatements in presentation and disclosure

The Public Sector framework requires the statement of operations and statement of changes in net debt present
a comparison of the results for the accounting period with those originally planned. Management presented the
Amended Annual Budget as the basis for this comparison. The original annual budget has been included in the
notes to the financial statements, which provides information related to the differences between the original and
amended budget. It is expected that the budget figures may change significantly between the original and
amended budget as enrollment figures and Ministry funding is confirmed. The presentation difference is not
considered material to the financial statements given that the original annual budget information is provided in the
notes to the financial statements.

95 of 140



6l

i

-skempy ‘Buiys 3yBu oy Buiog *fuBajul pue sa1y3e ‘sauapuadapul ‘ANanoalqo
: : : 10 [9AS] ISOW}N 3} JO JUSWUOIAUS UE Ul USXEUIPUN SIE SANIAIE Pajejal Ino JO [|B

pue juswabeuew Ajijenb jo waysAs Buouls e uiyym spiepuels jeuoissajold
s|qeaijdde jo Juajul pue syuswalinbal ay) yum aul| ul ‘AjJusjsISuod paynaaxa ale sypne
abpajmouy

Em wm_%maxm Eo:?oEoou:anmc_wnmm.b__mzca_uza.mccmumg
|ddyy . - —

1Joday Aduaiedsuel] pue Aleno 1pny ONdM o

.- elelpaway

‘INDOS 1IN0 JO SSBUBAI}0DLT

¢ ! 3U] UO JUsWalelS S,Wll} IN0 sapnjoul woday Aoualedsuel] InQ ‘sjuswalels
ABojouyoa) / syuswoabebus PSS |eloueuly Jo sypne wiopad jey} swly se21AIes [euoissajold o} Aldde yoiym ‘epeue)
enBip eoeiqury % Ajjenb wiopiag < ul Buizunooae a1jgnd Jo a2130e1d 8y} 01 8|qedljdde s21yls JO 8p02 / }ONPU0d [BuoiSSa}0.d
2 10 sajnJ JueAsjal 8y} pue (YgS3|) SIUBJUNOIDY 10} pJeog Splepuels S21ylg [euoijeulaiu]
ay} Aq panssi (spiepuelg souspuadspu| [Buoljeulsiu| Buipnjour) SjuBJUNOIY
|[BUOISSS40.1d 10} SOIY1T 1O 9p0) [BUOIjBUISIU| BY] JO Sjuswalinbal sy} 198w os|e
sjusauodwod NDOS N0 ‘| NDSO/L INDSI yim paublly "(NDoS) Juswabeuey Ajjenp
10 WaISAS OINdY @Y} 40 sjusuodwiod us} ayj ale Jomawel) 3y} Ul pauljino SISALIP 8y |

San|eA pue
e_e_zw ‘A1aA1jep s} 0}

ino:as sa)NquIju09 Jaquiaw jjejs pue Jauped Aians moy pue Ajjenb saaiap
9M MOY Saulfjno yJomawel4 Ajijend jeqols JnQ *Ajioud 3saybiy
ino suiewsau pue buiyj 3ybus ayy Buiop sueaw Ajjenyuassa Ayjend

cAdiennyipne 1aAilap am op MoH - Aljend jipny ¢ Xipuaddy
B ovoeoei | oeeweie | smapeemy s s

96 of 140



4

‘uonisod |eioueul SANUS ay} J08E PIN0J Jey} SSIUIBKSOUN PUB SHSII 0} PJe|a) SSUNSO[OSIP JO UoISNjou|  «

‘SaJUBjswWng

uondope Aleg ylomauwiel) [enjdsouod pasinal ayj Jo uoidope 8y} Yjim apiouiod 0} 9Z0z ‘) [Udy Jaje 1o uo Bujuuibaq siesA [easy 0} Aldde |iim uojejussad

“saljijIge| [BIOUBUL-UOU PUB S3Iji[Igel] [BlouBUl oI S

119 UlBpad Ul 1ebpng papuswe ue 9sn ued Ajjus ue Agalsym uoisinoid mau e

* Jayjo paje|nwnaoe,
pa|je2 jusuodwos mau e Bulpnjoul ‘(salijiqel]) SI9SSE Jau J0 Jusuodwod Yoes ul safbueyd ayj Jussaid pjnom juswsiels mau siyL “(seiliqel|) s}esse jau Ul
sobuey? JO JUSWS}E]S Sy} PI||ED JUSWSJE)}S MaU B UO Papn|oul Peajsul UONJBWIoUI 8y} YIim (S9SS0]) Suled Juswalnseawal JO JUSWSIe)s ayj JO [eAowRyY -«

“(sanligel]) s1esse Jau 0} (Joyep) snjdins pajejnwinooe Bujweu-a1 Buipnjoul ‘sjusws)e)s [eloueul 8y} ul pasn ABojoulwia} uowwod o} sabuey) -
‘salijIqel| [2Jo} AG pamoj|o} S19SSE |e}o} Juasaid o} uomsod [efoueul J0 Juswslels ay} fuunjonlissy -

el Bujeiedas -

‘pauie}al s Buluesw [eulblo s sunsus
0} paulal JGop JaU JO UOIBIND|ED SU} YIM ‘Sal}i[Iqel|/S}SSSE [eIoUBUl }9U JO JUSWSIE)S 9y} P3]|eD JUSWSJEIS UMO S} 0} Jojedipul JG3p JauU S} JO UoiedoRy -

:BuImoj|o) 9y} sepnjoul uoloas pasodoid sy - 1202 9Njo84T

"pepiwIRd 39 |Im

97 of 140

uonjejuasaid

JusWa}E]S [BlouBUI{ ZOZ) Sd “Uonejussald Juswajels [efoueulS L0Z) Sd UONOSS Juaund ay) aoe|dal [[IM uoyejuasald Juswale;s [ejoueulH ZOZ| Sd UOIRaS  « juswseje)s [eloueuldy

‘paonpoujul ale sjdeouod uoljejuasald pue ‘eSO 1202 dnio8yg

Juswiainseaw pue uolyubooal [BISBUSS) "SJUSWS|S pUE SOISIBJORIBYD SAlE}ENb ‘SaA10S[qo Juswale)s [eloueUl JNoge papiAcid Si Uolje WOl [euolippy prer——
‘son199[qo Buiodal [BIoUBUL JISY} PUB S313US 10J03s 21jqnd JO SOI}SIISJOBIEYD S} UO SSJBI0ge[S PUE SaUlSp }Jomawe.l [enjdaoucd Jojdeyd usj syl - _m_u:w_:_m
‘spiepue)s Buiunodoe 10j0ss dlignd uelpeue) BuiAllepun san}0(qo pue s}deduod 2109 3y} SepInoId Jlomawel Y . m:_»_hmu:.:
‘pamwied uondope Jaijies yum 9zoz ‘| [Hdy Joye Jo uo Buiuuibag siesA [eosly 10} SAIJ094R SI jIomaWel) [enjdaduod pasinal syl - sjydasuo)n

suonesijdwi pue Alewwing

pJepue)s

S9I0UBIDLBP |O[UOD

spJdepue}s Buiunoosoe o} sabueyd

sjuatidojanap Juang -y Xipuaddy

S}NSaJ PUB SYSIY

m_._waaw

- sBIYBIH



®

T4

109foud ay} jo sdays t&c Buiesaqiep 0& ssa20.1d 8y} Ul sI Emmmw Bununoooy _m%um‘.‘w 2|qnd 3yl

"suoljebi|qo yysuaq juswAodws-jsod Bujunoasip 1oy sjel

sjendolidde sy} suiwisiep 03 sueld Jysusq JuswAojdwa-}sod J1ay} Jo snjejs Buipuny sy} Ssasse 0s[e pinom suoijeziuebiQ "uoiisod [BlouBUl JO JUSWS)E)S aU)
uo Ajejelpswiwi (jasse) Ayjiqel| eusq paulsp Jau sy} Jo suoljenjeaal jo joedwi sy} BuiziuBooal saiijus 10j0as 2ljgnd ui Jnsal pinom uonoss pasodoid sy
‘Alanjoeolial paijdde souepinb

pue pspiwiad oq [m uoidope Alieg ‘9z0z ‘) [udy Jele Jo uo BujuuiBaq sieak [easyy 0} Aldde [|im 3] “Sjeuaq UojBUIULIS] puB S82UsSqe pajesusduiod
‘Spyeusq JuswAojdwis-}Sod GGZE Sd PUB SIeusq Juswalsy 0SZE Sd SUOIDSS JuaLnd sy} soe|dal ||Im Sjyauaq ssfojdwg | GZE Sd uoiaas pasodoid ay |
‘sanss| Buibiaws pue jusuind uo asuepinb [euolippe

apinoid im spiepuels Jusnbasgng ‘souepinb [euoepunoy spincid [IM pIepuE)s isiiy 8y ABsjells ases|al-jnw e ul pajuswalduwi 8q ||M SPIEPUB)S

Mau 3y} ‘souepinb Buiisixa sy} Jo mainal sy} wouy asue Aew jey) sabueyo Aue jo suoljesljdwi [epus}od pue paAjoAul Sanssi 4o Alxa|dwod sy} USAID
‘plepuels

uejpeue) ay} dojaasp o} juiod Buipe)s e se spyeusq safojdwg 6E plepuels Buijunoddy J0jas dljgnd [euoijeusaiu] wouy ssjdiould asn 0 s uoiusul 8y |
‘Sjausq UOKBUIWIS] puB S8oUaSqe

pajesuadwo ‘syyausq JuswAoldws-jsod GSZE Sd PUB SIaUSq JUsWaIlay 0SZE Sd SUOHOSS JO MalARI B pajeniul sey pJeog Buijunodoy 10j0ss 21jgnd syl

suopeaijdwi pue Alewwng

98 of 140

120z pasodo.d
sjjouaq sskojdwzg

pJepuels

(panunuos) spiepuels Buunoosose o} sabueysn

SJU3LICo[3A3P JULINg :y Xipuaddy

sad1puaddy saoyoeld pue sa101j0d S310UBIOLBP [0JUOD Ss)insal pue sysiy snieis

SWBIYBIH



@j

[44

sjuswaje)s
|eloueul 8y}

uo Buiuodal pue
uojuido ue Buiwio

00£SYa/00LvS!

9ouBUIaN0b yum
pabieyd asoy; ypm
SuolEdIUNWWOD

...........

092SY9/092 VSl

202 ‘Gl 130waaaq Jayye 1o uo fujuuihag sporiad 10 3A1193413

saoipuaddy

SpIepUe}s BuRIpne o) safueys g Xinuaddy

saoljoeld pue saloljod

S9IUBIDNBP |0HU0D

synsal ‘vcm‘mv_m_m

SMelS

99 of 140

SBIYBIH



€C

®

"SpaaU JJels pUB A)NJey LoISISA
SBUIISLO SSBU||aM JU31INd

3y} Jo Aljigelins auyy buissasse
0} yoeoudde s juswabeuew

pUE SWSIUBYIBW %OBqpaa} 'Yels

pue A}jnde} 0} LUOIBIIUNWLLOD
‘uomswely weiboid ||e1ano
3pN|2ul SN0} JO SE3IY "JElS
pue Aj|noe} uoj saibajes}s yijeay
-|EjuswW pue sweiboid ssaujem
29/o|dwsa sjowo.d pue dojaasp
0} 90ejd Ul S855900.d MaINSY

(1Je1S) Guiagiism

o1693e41s yum paubije pue ‘pabeuew Aj@Aioays

sadipuaddy

"siseq Je|nbal e

0} buiuiepad sal
$9|0. Jo Buipuejsiapun apinoid
0} A}noe} pue yejs 0} paiayo

ase sweiboid ssauaieme

pue Buiuiel] ‘sjeob ayj Jo
juswaAsIyoe ainsesw o} soejd
Ul SaINSeaw 8y} pue wayj Jo
aouewanoh ay) ‘yejs ysbuowe
AjIsIaAIp pue uoisnjoul o} aoeid
ul uejd pue A6ajelis ay} ssassy

Asiang
pue uoisnjauijels

S9I0UBIOYSP [04UOD

*goe|d u| s|oo0jo.id Buipodal
PUE UOI}EDIUNWIWOD Y} M3IASJ
pue ssa20.d sy} Bulpunouins
S0UBUISAOD |[BISAC 83U} SmaInal
Y| "S|eas| 8say) je pswioyad

S 1USWISSISSE Sl pnely
Jaylaym pue sisixa yiomsuwels
JuswabeuBwWw XSl pneyj e
I9UYIoYM SSSSSSSE 1PNy [BuIBu|

Juswiafieuen
sy pnely

"MOJ8q pPajou ale sjpne [eulajul Jo sajdwexg

SNS81 pue SHSIY

‘Buiuueld
poddns 0} pajediunwwod

pue pauoiuodde uaaqg

aney sjuawalinbal Aou E]
Moy Bulispisuod sapnjoul siyl
‘palinbal se saoiniss/swelboid
10 Aianiap Aousioya pue
Bulojiuow sy} Joy sjuswabuelie
30uBUIaA0B 3y} maInay

fuluuerd Aouaiaiya
/U013NP3I1S0)

"S9I0USIJIYS J91I8Q SALP puB $855920.d |0JjU0d pue Juswabeuew ysi aAoidwl ued yaiym ‘sauoud
paoinosal Ajuadoud ‘sjibe si jey; AlAoe Jpne jeulsiul jo Jeuaq pue Joedwi sy} Buiziubooal e
suoneziuebio Auepy “sysu aoueldwod Aioje|nbal pue |eroueuly xa|dwod Apealje ayl puokaqg sysi Jo wnijoads apim e 2.y Ajjenunuod suoneziuebiQ

}IpNy [euJaju] ul Spual} Jualing

SJUBISUl pue diysiapeajJubnou L -9 Xipuadady

s9910e4d pue saljod

snieys

100 of 140

SyBIYBIH



e
‘suorjoues |ejuajod pue syoejpe juanbasgns
‘ainsodxa ejep ‘SWwa}sAs J0 UOIJeI0}SaI-uou Yim
pajeloosse sysi 0} uaAlb 8q p|NoYs UoIjeIBpISU0D

&SYsu [euonippe Buliapisuod
1o} a|qisuodsal s1 Oypp
"JuaWa2J0ud Me| Buljoeuod

10} 9|qisuodsal aq piNoYs oYM ‘0S I ‘pue JuapIoul

ay) BuipseBal pajoejud aq piNOYS JUB W20
ME] J3y}aym 0} UdAIB 8q p|NoYs UoIjeIapISu0)

¢POAJOAU|
9q JuawWadIoug MeT] pjnoys

¢ pabebua

3¢ pINOYS uoleINp3 JO pJeog sy} SSOUBISWNIIID
JEYM Japun pue uoleanps jo pieog ay} abebus
pInoys oym 0} uaAIb aq pjnoys uoljesapisuo)

fuoneonpg jo pleog ayj
BuiAjnou 10j ajqisuodsaa s1 Oy

wsessssssen

sescssernan

00000

JuawAed wosuel uo aoue)s

s, Japinoid 2oueINSUl JOL)SIJ 9Y} PUB SSLUN0D

10 suojjeziuebio payqiyoid Wol) SPUBWSP WOSUE)
YlIm pajeroosse sysii JoLlsIg 8y} Jo Jleyaq uo
wosuel ay} ajenobau o) Aued-paiy; e jo Juswabebus
3y} ‘wosuel e Aed 0} UOISIOSP aY} Ul PAAJOAUL

aq p|noys oym o} uaAib aq p|noys UoljeIapIsuo)

A.\—u_mn_ 9( wosuel e pjnoys

"SUOIJEIIUNWIWOD [BUI)XS pue [eulajul Buibeuew
pue ue|d uoiesIuNwWWod ay} BuijoeuS Ul PSAJOAUI
29 p|Noys oym o} uaAib 8q p|NoYs UOIjeIBpISU0D

suopesunwwo?
Buipeaj 1o} a|qisuodsaa si OYypp

sesesnesnen

‘pabebua

3q p|noys Japinoid SoUBINSUI 8y} SSOUBISWNDLID
JeyM Japun pue Japinoid aoueINSU| Sy} JOBJUOD
pInoys oym 0} uaAIb aq pjnoys UoleIapIsuo)

édainsul
s }ou3s1g [ooyas ayj buibebua
1o} ajqisuodsai si oyp

¢luspiaul

ue fuipunouns
S3JUBISWNAII

Ssalppe pue suoisiaap
el 0] Wwea) asuodsal
Juapioul aA1INJAX3

21038 Jou1siaayiul
papnjaul ale $aj0l YIlum

‘MO8 pajou ale sue|d asuodsal Jusploul ul passalppe s21doj uowwod jo a|dwex3 ‘sjealy} AjIn2asIaghd
UHM pade) Usym Suoisiosp pawiojul ayew o} Aiessadau uoiewuolul uieb pue sdeb Ayjuapl Apjoinb sispes) djay ues ssaupaledaid asuodsal
uspIou| ‘sjuapioul AlinaasiagAa o) Buipuodsal ul paAJOAUL 8¢ 0} SSAIINIAXS 10} |eljuassa Buiwooaq si ) ‘pealdsapim aiow Buimolb syoene 1agAhd YIpa

ssaupaledald asuodsay juapiou] :Ajunosasiaqho

@ saoipuaddy seoloeld pue s8ioljod

SSI0UBIDYSP [OUOD S}nsal pue sysiy

(hanuijuod) sjuhisul pue diusiapes|udnoyL -9 Xipuaddy

101 of 140

SIyBIYBIH



s o
[V 9AlleIaUa5) 10 pieoy JNoA buledald
"poob Jsjealb ay) seAIas Jey) uoneaouul s|qisuodsal Jo siapes)| se ablawa 0} S|oo) pue saljjiqisuodsal pieog Ssoaue |y SAljeIaush Moy Jnoge siow ules

seakojdwa pue siepjoyaels Buowe anjea pueiq pue jsnJj Buioueyus ‘|y paisnl 0} JUsSWWWod e ysijgelsy -

juswdojansp |y Aynomisniy ybnouyy abpa aniizedwos e uieb o} sssuisng ayj Buljgeus ‘uoieAoOuUl J8)SO .

sysu [euoieindal pue ‘[eucielado ‘leroueuly enusiod wouy uoneziuebio ayy Buipsenbajes ‘spiepuels [eba] pue |eaiyle yum ubije suoieoljdde |y ainsug .
SaA1}23[qo |y pasni] J19y} aAaiyde spieoq djay ued jey} sajdioutid Buipinb Aay ¢

‘| poisni] @AsIyoe 0} saoljoeld |y s,uonjeziuebio JnoA sjeasie Ajaailoeold 0y Inq ‘ebiawa Asy) se sabus|ieys asay) abeuew

01 3snljou si Wie sy "pulwl ul Syyomawely [ealyi pue ‘|efa] ‘ysi ‘@aueulanob yum paubisap aq 0} paau SwalsAs |y ‘siapjoyayels Jo 1snij ||ny 8y} uieb

0] ‘suonsanb |eolyle pue ssauisng xa|dwod sosiel os|e )l JeAsMoH ‘sanss| [eqo|f pajedldwod ssaippe djay pue ‘suonelado auljwesl)s ‘seousipne Jopeoiq
yoeau ‘Ayaionpoud saoidwl ‘enjea sseuisng aAUp 0} sanunpoddo pajuspadaidun s1ayo Jey) uolenouul [eJoAld B se Spuess |y SAljessusb ‘siaquisw pieod 1o

‘paselq Auedwos Aw Auedwod Aw jnoge Auedwod Aw
10 "Buipeajsiw ‘a1e4nadeul aq Aew jeyy sandano Ayuan o3 Suiiey =_on_vnn__mm__mmu>m%>__mo_““”uc Smﬂh_w_omﬁ__‘_ﬂﬁw.co: noqe elep
S195N 4O Y%SH YIMm “fdom 1e ejep aanjsuas Sujiaaue Suipnpul ‘y o\om.v = : 181 d |B1OUBUL 81BALY

annelauas jo asnsiw Juedlyiudis jo puasy Bujuladuod e sj a4y

: ©
‘(Key uy 418 woay dn) syjaom jeuoissajold 4oy jo Ajrjenb 0
3y pasueyua aney 5003 a3 Aes siasn |y aalzeauad Jo 9406 \cOm T ——
S T — ¢Sydwoud |y 4nof ojul pasajua nof aney uopewriour jo adAy Jeym

EPEUED DN - Xapu| UONdOPY |V @AlleIsUas) "sade|dyiom sepeue) Ul asn |y aAljelausb Jnoge ASAINS e pejonpuod epeue) ul NG ‘Youne| sy Joye jeak
auQ "epeue) Buipnjaul — pIOM 8y} punole sIasn Jo uoljusje ayj Jybned sey |y aaijesauab ‘Zzoz ‘0g J8qWaAoN Uo Ajaiignd psyoune| | 4oieys aouls Jeadg

IV @A13BIBUSL)

panuuod) syudisul pue diysiapeaiubnoyl -9 Xipuaddy
® | soopuosny  [EEEEERERERN ~ ssusIyep (04U0 sunse1 pue xSy smes i Sy

102 of 140



9C

sjuswunbai [ersusn

sjuawsaiinbai

|eanaeid pue uoijejuasaid

sjabie} pue SOy

|jepod S, HNdM SS229€ 03 313y H2ID = 2
‘spJepuej}s m W jJuswabeuew ysiy

M3U 3y} 10} sajdwiexa aAljesisnjji pue sjybisul o m m
S.OINdY pue sjuswaiinbai mau ayj Jo Asiewwuns a2 = ABajenys

aAIsuayaidwod e Buipnjoul ‘uoljewaojul aiow a m. m
10} ajisqam Buipioday Ajiqeurelsnsg s, 9NAM HSIA @ = 92UBUIBA0D

103 of 140

i

‘sjuswialinbal Buipodal oyoads-s1ewi|o Yyum
way} syuawajddns pue sjuswalinbal Jusjuod 8109
2y} sajevldal (zS S¥4I) piepuels ajewi|d syl

*a1ew[o uo jsnfjou
— sapiunuoddo pue sysiu pajeja.-Ajjigeulelisns |e
U0 UOIJBULIOUI [BLIS]BW JO 3JNSO[oSIp salinbau §|

‘sjuswalinbal
|eonoeld pue uoljejuasald Qusjuo9d 8109 sapinold
pue Buipodal jo sanijoalqo pue adoas sy} saulap
(1S S¥4l) piepuels syuawaldinbaua jesauab sy

'SaUNsojasi [eloueul

palejai-ajewi|D UO 32404 YSe] 3y} J0 ainjonys Jejjid-1no} ayi Uo pling splepuels ay |

splepue)s paseajalAjjuaaal ay) Jo Alewwing

*$20Z ‘0} aunp Ag anp sjusawwod d1jqnd 10}

spiepuejs ueipeues) pasodoud }sii} 3y} pasesjal pieog spiepuels AJijiqeule}sng ueipeue) ay] "Sal}ijua 10393s dijqnd 1o} ayi| joo] Aew Buipodal
Ajjiqeurelsns jo aininy ayj} jeym ojul spybisul A9y apinoad spaepue)s Ajljigeulesns Sy4| mau ay) ‘suoijeziuebio 10323s 21jqnd Aq pajdope aq 03
paiinbau jou ase spiepuels ayj ybnoyljy "uo pjing ued suolaipsunf [eoo] Jey; Buipodas Aljiqeuleisns pasnooj-1apjoyaye)s Joj auljaseq [eqolb e jo uoljesid
spiemo} dajs Jueaiiubis e si pue Builodal Ajjiqeulelsns Ul auojsajil Asy B syiew splepuelg ainsojosiq Ajjiqeuleisng Sy -] OM] Jsli} 9Y3 4O [BALIE 8y |

splepue)g ainsojosiq Ajjiqeurelsng sy4jsdid

(.,©5S3,,) @2ueusanob pue [e120Ss ‘|ejusawuodiAug

panuiuod) syybisul pue diysiapeajybnoul 93 -9 Xipuaddy

@, sadipuaddy saafoeld pue salod S3|OUBIOLBP [OLUOD S}|Nsal pue sysiy sneis

SIYBIYBIH



‘JososolN yim diysisuped u
aneIaus) ajelbajul Ajisea o} sn Buimoye
‘auogyoBqg PNo|Y AINZY 8INJ3S pue
P!|OS € U0 }|inq usaq sey ele|d OINdM
uoneibajul aundag

*SPU023S Ul 3|qISSSII. UOIJBLUIOjUI
Ajjenb sueaw siy| "sousLadxa

JSEA Jno ainjded 0} saseqejep abpaimouy|
INo ypm [apow Jno Buiyoes) aie app

sdijuabuiy 1no e Ajjenpd

‘noA 03 syybisul anib 0}

13pI0 ul 10 seale |ejuawbpn( aiow ‘Jayjo
ul S||Iys 1no Ajdde [j,am ‘sysej} anjea moj
Buiwnsuod-awiy Buinowal uo pasnao

Aanonpoud paiss)sjog

"9100 3y} je Anjigessel,
pue Ayiqeuiejdxs, buiping a1,8m 0s xoq
)2E|q, B uo aouel|a. Buipione uo pasnooy

ale am ‘A9y sI uondope Ajes ybnoyyy

Wbu suop |y

sadipuaddy

saojjoeld pue sa101|0d

PuE peurerapan A

OO0  ootiormimeray

Q0 -
-poped

1901103 Y U paziuBodal Jujaq JoU PNUIARL U]
Supnsas JdWOISNI BY) OF PRLIRSULI) 5] [CAUC
udym pazjuliodws J0U 5| SNUGAR: ‘Dup U]

ujod v 3e pajjses suoned|iqo edurwioped 104

o S5t PayAUIPL s p pur AuN039Y7

|epotew jo i s59sR puE AIUSp|

e o N @ 4@ [F

uenRwSiul ' NNy | AMUCHIIN'E | APPRHT Jupuaisiapun T a%

I =

Sk € e sy ¢ s ey |« & [BUOJBWIBY SIO00)

"‘9ouslIadxs

1pne Jajjaq B JaAI[Sp PUB ‘Suoi}osuuod [niybisul slow ayew Yoeqpas)
Jayoinb spiaocud 03 S|00} Sy} Way} SAID pue aAi3oNpold 10w SI0JIpNE N0 ayew
[IM SIYL "eie|D DINdM—wIofie|d Jipne Lews Jno Ojul [y SAlJBISUSS) paquia

0] Asulnol e uo paylequa aney am UYOS0IDI Jeuned aoueljje [eqo|b Ino YIAA

v 3Afjelauag eleid SiNd) L Xipusddy

S9I0UBIOLAP |0UOD S)nsal pue sysiy snjeis s1yBIybIH

104 of 140



‘uoneziuebio [eqo|b NG SU} JO Sl Jaqusw juspuadapul
3y} Aq 9sua9]| J1apun pasn syiewsapel} ale 0bo| pue aweu HNGM SY.L ‘PaAISsal
syybu ||y "oajuelenb Aq pajiwi| Auedwos ysiibu3 sjeaud e ‘pajiwi |eucneulsiuj

DN YU pajeliye sl Jaquisu juspuadapul jo uoyeziuebio [eqolb DN 3y}
40 wuly Jaquiaw e pue diysisuped Ajjigel| pajiwi| ouejuQ ue ‘d71 DN #202 @

[Wjyawioy us/edjmod budy//:sdiy




Capital Plan Bylaw September 2025

CAPITAL BYLAW NO. 2025/26-CPSD52-02
CAPITAL PLAN 2025/26

WHEREAS in accordance with section 142 of the School Act, the Board of Education of School District
No. 52 (Prince Rupert) (hereinafter called the “Board”) has submitted a capital plan to the Minister of
Education (hereinafter called the "Minister") and the Minister has approved the capital plan or has
approved a capital plan with modifications,

NOW THEREFORE in accordance with section 143 of the School Act, the Board has prepared this
Capital Bylaw and agrees to do the following:

(a) Authorize the Secretary-Treasurer to execute a capital project funding agreement(s) related to the
capital project(s) contemplated by the capital plan or the capital plan with modifications;

(b) Upon ministerial approval to proceed, commence the capital project(s) and proceed diligently
and use its best efforts to complete each capital project substantially as directed by the Minister;

(c) Observe and comply with any order, regulation, or policy of the Minister as may be applicable to
the Board or the capital project(s); and,

(d) Maintain proper books of account, and other information and documents with respect to the
affairs of the capital project(s), as may be prescribed by the Minister.

NOW THEREFORE the Board enacts as follows:

1.  The Capital Bylaw of the Board for the 2025/26 Capital Plan as approved by the Minister, to
include the supported capital project(s) specified in the letter addressed to the Secretary-
Treasurer and Superintendent, dated May 15, 2025, is hereby adopted.

2. This Capital Bylaw may be cited as School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) Capital Bylaw No.
2025/26-CPSD52-02.

READ A FIRST TIME THE 23RD DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2025;
READ A SECOND TIME THE 23RD DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2025;
READ A THIRD TIME, PASSED THE 23™ DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2025.

Board Chair
APPLY CORPORATE SEAL

Secretary-Treasurer

I HEREBY CERTIFY this to be a true and original School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) Capital Bylaw No.
2025/26-CPSD52-02 adopted by the Board the 23RD day of September 2025.

Secretary-Treasurer

106 of 140



Capital Plan Bylaw September 2025

School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)
2025-26 Capital Plan

MINOR CAPITAL PROJECTS

The table below reflects approved minor capital projects for your School District in the following
program areas:

School Enhancement Program (SEP)

Food Infrastructure Program (FIP)

Carbon Neutral Capital Program (CNCP)

Building Envelope Program (BEP)

e Playground Equipment Program (PEP)

New projects for SEP, FIP, CNCP, BEP, PEP

Facility Name Program Project Description Amount Funded
by Ministry

Conrad Elementary SEP - Plumbing Upgrades $350,000
Roosevelt Park Elementary | SEP - Plumbing Upgrades $350,000
Charles Hays Secondary SEP - HVAC Upgrades $350,000
Charles Hays Secondary CNCP - HVAC Upgrades $350,000
Booth Memorial Jr FIP - Equipment and Infrastructure to $125,000
Secondary Support Traditional Food Gathering and

Preparation

New projects for BUS

New/Existing Bus Fleet #  New/Replacement Bus Type Amount
Funded by

Ministry

New INTERNAL COMBUSTION ENGINE - TBD
Type C (70-75) with 1 wheelchair space(s)

107 of 140



2025/26 Annual Programs Funding Agreement for School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)

ANNUAL PROGRAMS FUNDING AGREEMENT

This AMENDED Annual Programs Funding Agreement dated for reference the 15th day of May
2025, is in effect for the 2025/26 fiscal year period of April 1, 2025 to March 31, 2026.

Please see the “New projects for BUS” section below for AMENDED information.

BETWEEN: His Majesty the King in Right of the Province of British Columbia,
represented by the Minister of Infrastructure (the "Ministry")

OF THE FIRST PART

AND: the Board of Education of School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) (the
HBoal.dH)

OF THE SECOND PART.

The parties agree as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS

1.01 In this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires:
"Agreement” means the Annual Programs Funding Agreement;

"Board" or "Board of Education" means a board of school trustees constituted under the School
Act [RSBC 1996] c. 412 and any person designated by the Board to act with respect to a
provision of this Agreement;

"Business Day" means a day, other than a Saturday or Sunday or Statutory Holiday, on which
Provincial government offices are open for normal business in British Columbia;

"Capital Funding Grant" means a funding grant authorized by the Minister of Finance in
accordance with section 56.1 of the Financial Administration Act [RSBC1996] ¢. 138,;

"Certificate of Approval" means the Certificate of Approval described in paragraph 3.04;

“Eligible Expenditure(s)” means those expenditure(s) areas more particularly described in
paragraph 3.01;

“BEvent of Force Majeure” means invasion, rebellion, hostilities, sabotage, government
regulations or controls, acts of God, strikes, lockouts or labour disputes that are a major disabling
event or circumstance in relation to the normal operations of the party concerned as a whole that
is beyond the reasonable control of the party directly affected and results in a material delay,
interruption or failure by such party in carrying out its duties, covenants or obligations under this
Agreement;

"Minister" means the Minister of Infrastructure, and includes the respective Ministry Deputy
Minister and/or any person designated by either of them to act with respect to a provision of this
Agreement;

Page 1 of 8
108 of 140




2025/26 Annual Programs Funding Agreement for School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)

"Ministry" means the Ministry of Infrastructure of the Province of British Columbia;
"Project" means the project(s) described in paragraph 3.01;

"Schools Protection Program" means the risk management program administered and delivered
by the Risk Management Branch of the Ministry of Finance in conjunction with the Ministry,
and includes the "Schools Protection Program Reference Manual" and all amendments and
updates to the program and manual;

"Treasury Board" means the Treasury Board established under the Financial Administration Act
[RSBC 1996] c. 138.

2. SCHEDULES

2.01  The following Schedule(s) form an integral part of this Annual Programs Funding
Agreement:

A. Communications Protocol Agreement on Minor Capital Projects between the
Ministry and School Districts

3. PROVINCIAL FUNDING CONTRIBUTIONS AND OBLIGATIONS

3.01  The Ministry will provide capital funding to the Board which is to be used for the
purposes of the following Project:

Facility Name - Program Project Description Amount Funded

by Ministry

Conrad Elementary SEP - Plumbing Upgrades $350,000
Roosevelt Park Elementary | SEP - Plumbing Upgrades $350,000
Charles Hays Secondary SEP - HVAC Upgrades $350,000
Charles Hays Secondary CNCP - HVAC Upgrades $350,000
Booth Memorial Jr FIP - Equipment and Infrastructure to $125,000
Secondary Support Traditional Food Gathering and

Preparation

New projects for BUS

The table below identifies Bus Acquisition Program (BUS) approved projects with bolded
sections identifying additionally approved internal combustion engine and/or electric buses as
designated. BUS funding amounts to be confirmed after school districts place their order(s) with
bus vendors during the upcoming bus standing offer timeframe which runs from April 2, 2025 to
June 2, 2025. Please refer to the attached School Bus Letter for additional school bus purchasing
details.

Page 2 of 8
109 of 140



2025/26 Annual Programs Funding Agreement for School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)

New/Existing Bus Fleet # Ne\\'/ReI)l:i;:ellléllt Bus Type = ~ Amount

Funded by
Ministry

New INTERNAL COMBUSTION ENGINE - TBD
Type C (70-75) with 1 wheelchair space(s)

Please contact Branch Director Michael Nyikes with any questions regarding Minor Capital
Projects.

3.02 The Ministry may consider, under special circumstances, providing more than the amount
listed above.

3.03 The Ministry will provide the capital funding in paragraph 3.01 in the form of a Capital
Funding Grant.

3.04 Payment of a Capital Funding Grant is subject to the Ministry issuing a Certificate of
Approval for the Project(s) in paragraph 3.01 in accordance with Treasury Board policies
and directives and to the following conditions:

a) in no case may the Board make a draw against funds available under a Certificate
of Approval, unless the draw is reimbursement for Eligible Expenditure(s)
properly incurred by the Board in connection with the Project;

b) the Ministry may modify or withhold a Capital Funding Grant and applicable
Certificate of Approval, or any portion thereof, in the event the Board fails to
observe, perform and comply with any provision of this Agreement or if, in the
opinion of the Ministry, there has been a material change in the Project;

c) the Board will comply with all applicable policies and directives of the Treasury
Board respecting Capital Funding Grants.

3.05 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the payment of funds by the
Ministry to the Board, pursuant to this Agreement, is subject to the provisions of the
Financial Administration Act ("the Act"), which makes that payment obligation subject
to:

a) there being sufficient monies available in an appropriation, as defined in the Act,
to enable the Ministry, in any fiscal year or part thereof when any payment of
money by the Ministry to the Board falls due pursuant to this Agreement, to make
that payment;

b) Treasury Board, as defined in the Act, not having controlled or limited, pursuant
to the Act, expenditure(s) under any appropriation referred to in this subparagraph

a).

Page 3 of 8
110 of 140



2025/26 Annual Programs Funding Agreement for School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)

4. BOARD OBLIGATIONS
4.01  The Board will:
a) carry out the Project in a manner that ensures:

i) drawing against funds available under a Certificate of Approval on a
regular basis throughout the fiscal year (monthly if possible) as
reimbursement for Eligible Expenditure(s) as incurred by the Board;

ii) delivery within budget;

1i1) completion by March 31, 2026;

iv) scope details are fully met upon completion;

V) accrued cost-savings realized from completed capital projects as approved
in this Agreement are reported to the Ministry and transferred into the
school district’s Minister-Restricted Capital account, unless otherwise
agreed to in writing by the Ministry.

b) comply with all policies and best practices related to Capital Project Procurement,
as documented in the Capital Asset Management Framework and Capital
Procurement Checklist published by the Ministry of Finance;

c) procure the Project in accordance with the Capital Asset Management
Framework;
d) include in any contracts all standard insurance and indemnification clauses

required by the Schools Protection Program;

e) ensure all communication related to the Capital Project conforms to the
“Communications Protocol Agreement on Minor Capital Projects between the
Ministry and School Districts” (provided as Schedule A). This protocol may be
amended from time to time by the Ministry, with the most current version of the
protocol being used.

4.02  Provide written notice to the Ministry immediately upon completion of each Project.
(Note: the Ministry will be following up with school districts regarding delayed and/or
incomplete projects in early January, at which time the Ministry may choose to reallocate
associated funds depending on the status of the Project).

4.03 At the request of the Ministry, prepare additional reports relating to the Project.

4.04  Notify the Ministry immediately, in writing, should any Event of Force Majeure arise that
could materially affect the scope, costs or schedule of the Project.

4.05  Indemnify and save harmless the Province of British Columbia and its employees and
agents from and against any losses, claims, damages, actions, causes of action, costs and
expenses that the Province of British Columbia or any of its employees or agents may
sustain, incur, suffer or be put to at any time, either before or after this agreement ends,
which are based upon, arise out of or occur, directly or indirectly, by reason of, any act or

Page ﬁ 1O£ §40



2025/26 Annual Programs Funding Agreement for School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)

4.06

4.07

5.01

6.01

7.01

omission by the Board or by any of its agents, employees, officers, directors, or
contractors with respect to the Project.

Purchase school buses through the bus standing offer as defined and made available
through the Ministry (if applicable).

Enter into a tripartite agreement with the Ministry and BC Housing for all Building
Envelope Program (BEP) projects and agree to catry out the projects in collaboration
with BC Housing as defined in the tripartite agreement (if applicable).

EVENT OF FORCE MAJEURE
In the Event of Force Majeure:

a) the Board will immediately notify the Ministry, in writing, describing the Event of
Force Majeure.

b) within five (5) Business Days of being notified of the Event of Force Majeure, the
Ministry will communicate with the Board to explore what steps are to be taken to
mitigate the Event of Force Majeure, determine an appropriate course of action,
and establish an estimated cost related to the Event of Force Majeure.

c) the course of action must be agreed to by the Ministry and the Board.

d) either party may request the assistance of an independent cost consultant
appointed by mutual agreement of the parties.

e) the Ministry will not approve any expenditure(s) incurred prior to the agreed
course of action unless the costs were demonstrably incurred for the preservation
of life and/or safety.

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS

Any public announcement relating to the Project will be in accordance with the
“Communications Protocol Agreement on Minor Capital Projects between the Ministry
and School Districts” (provided as Schedule A).

NOTICE

Any notice or communication required or permitted to be given under this Agreement
will be in writing and will be considered to have been sufficiently given if delivered by
hand or electronic transmission to the physical address or electronic mail address of each
party set out below:

a) if to the Board:

School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)
634 Sixth Ave E, Prince Rupert, BC, V8J 1X1

Page 5 of 8
112 of 140




2025/26 Annual Programs Funding Agreement for School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)

Attention: Enrique Vazquez, Secretary-Treasurer
Email: enrique.vazquez@sd52.bc.ca

b) if to the Ministry:

Ministry of Infrastructure

PO Box 9151 Stn Prov Govt, Victoria, BC, V8W 9H1

Attention: Education & Child Care Capital Branch (Minor Capital Projects)
Email: CMB@gov.bc.ca

7.02  Any such notice or communication will be considered to have been received:

a) if delivered by hand during business hours (and in any event, at or before 4:00pm
local time in the place of receipt) on a Business Day, upon receipt by a
responsible representative of the receiver, and if not delivered during business
hours, upon the commencement of business hours on the next Business Day:;

b) if sent by electronic transmission during business hours (and in any event, at or
before 4:00pm local time in the place of receipt) on a Business Day, upon receipt
by a responsible representative of the receiver, and if not delivered during
business hours, upon the commencement of business hours on the next Business
Day, provided that:

i) the receiving party has, by electronic transmission or by hand delivery,
acknowledged to the notifying party that it has received such notice; or

i) within twenty-four (24) hours after sending the notice, the notifying party
has also sent a copy of such notice to the receiving party by hand delivery.

7.03  Delivery by mail will not be considered timely notice under this Agreement.

7.04  In the event a contact name changes for either the Ministry or for the Board, then parties
must be notified within five (5) Business Days.

Page 6 of 8
113 of 140



2025/26 Annual Programs Funding Agreement for School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Agreement, in duplicate, as of the day
and year first above written.

SIGNED on behalf of His Majesty the King )

in Right of the Province of British Columbia )

by a duly authorized designate of the )
- Minister of Infrastructure )

Authorized Signatory (For the Minister of Infrastructure)

Name (Print)

Title

Date Signed (Month/Day/Year)

SIGNED on behalf of the Board
of Education of School District
No. 52 (Prince Rupert) by its duly
authorized signatories

N’ N N N

Signatory (Secretary Treasurer)

Name (Print)

Date Signed (Month/Day/Year)

Page 7 of 8
114 of 140




2025/26 Annual Programs Funding Agreement for School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)

SCHEDULE A

COMMUNICATIONS PROTOCOL AGREEMENT ON MINOR CAPITAL PROJECTS
BETWEEN THE MINISTRY OF INFRASTRUCTURE (INF) AND SCHOOL DISTRICTS

News Release

Upon issuance of Capital Plan approvals and funding agreements to school districts, INF will issue
public news releases regarding minor capital projects. School district(s) may be requested to provide a
quote from a designated representative for such news releases.

Signage
Significant, high-profile minor capital construction projects and/or initiatives approved in the INF

Capital Plan may be requested to be identified by signage prominently displayed at the site. INF will
notify a school district(s) if this is the case.

If requested, signs must conform to Government of B.C.’s Infrastructure Sign Specifications and be
produced by Government Communications and Public Engagement (GCPE) graphics department. In
addition to the BC logo, school districts and other funding partners will be identified with their logos on
signage. Signs are to be installed as soon as possible after announcement of the project, and amended to
include the amount of investment and date of completion after award of the contract and preferably
before the start of work. The signs are to remain on the site until the work is completed and after any
completion ceremonies where applicable. A digital picture of the sign is to be sent to GCPE after it has
been installed. Cost of the sign is to be funded from the approved project budget. School districts are
responsible for installing the signs.

The steps from signage design to installation are as follows:

1. Project is announced;

1. GCPE will have their graphics department create a construction sign;

2. GCPE graphics department will create and send the approved file to Kings Printer for print
production;

3. Kings Printer will notify GCPE when the sign is ready;

4. GCPE will notify the school district(s) when the sign is ready to be ordered and provide them
with the online requisition form: http://brokerage.qp.gov.bc.ca/submit-print/print-form.aspx;

5. The school district(s) orders, pays and arranges for the sign to be installed. Signs are to be post
mounted in a visible location;

6. School district(s) will notify GCPE when the sign is installed and send photo as confirmation.

Official Ceremonies

INF will notify a school district(s) if an official ceremony may be held to commemorate the launch
and/or ground-breaking for a project. The parties shall co-operate in the organization ceremonies, and
messages and public statements for such events should be mutually agreed upon.

Plaques
INF may request the district provide and install (upon completion of significant, high-profile

construction projects and/or initiatives), a plaque bearing an appropriate inscription. The design, wording
and specifications of such plaques must be approved by INF. Cost of the plaque is to be funded from the
approved project budget.

Page §.0f 8



School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)
2026-2027 Minor Capital Projects

Projects Requested:

School Enhacement Program (SEP)
Project # Facility Purpose
' “Three classroom renovations to relocate Pacific Coastal School (PCS). Itis
required to be ready for next school year. Includes unit ventilators,
1 Booth Building 'materials, labour, engineering services, taxes, etc
Fire pump Generator which is part ofthe fire protection system. Backup

2 Roosewelt ‘power for the new fire pump. Building code requires it
Crawlspace/main floor zone replacement as part ofthe fire protection
3 Roosewelt _project. Needed to sign offon the building
4 Conrad Fire supression system - Wet system per Falcon estimation
' 'HVAC &lighting system upgrade required to fullyuse this facility. Includes
5 Westview $750Karquitectural expenses each phase. Phase 1 of2
'HVAC upgrade. Geoexchange Phase 1 of2. Alternative heatingsource to go
6 Roosewelt ‘with the lowtemperature boilers. Low priority project

Carbon Neutral Capital Program (CNCP)
Project#:  Facility Purpose
k 'HVAC System Upgrade. Phase 1 of2. Includes acquisition cost ofunit
1 Conrad ﬁventilators, taxes, and others.

Playground Enhacement Program (PEP)
Project# .  Facility Purpose
1 Conrad ‘Replace pea gravelforrubber surfacing

2026-27

'$ 408,900
$ 130,430

'$ 200,000

$ 200,000

'$ 1,236,609

©$ 1,022,930

Cost
$ 205,185
Cost !
$ 125,000

116 of 140




634 - 6" Avenue East

RINCE Prince Rupert, B.C.
V8J IXl

Tel: (250) 624-6717
Fax: (250) 624-6517

=)

Sehood District No, 62

In accordance with provisions under section 142 (4) of the School Act,

the Board of Education of School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)

hereby approves the proposed Capital Plan (Minor Capital Programs) for 2026/27, as
provided on the Capital Plan Summary for 2026/27 submitted to the Ministry of Education

and Child Care.

I hereby certify this to be a true copy of the resolution for the approval of the proposed
Capital Plan (Minor Capital Programs) for 2026/27 adopted by the Board of Education,
on this the 23rd day of September 2025.

Secretary-Treasurer Signature

Secretary-Treasurer Name

117 of 140



School District No.52 (Prince Rupert)
2026-27 Major Capital Programs

Major Capital Program Priorities
Seismic Mitigation Program (SMP):

e Conrad Street Elementary School Seismic Project
e Pineridge Elementary School Seismic Project

118 of 140




634 - 6% Avenue East

ﬁ P INC[ Prince Rupert, B.C.
U‘ District Nr 8 V8 IXI
—_ Tel: (250) 624-6717
Fax: (250) 624-6517

In accordance with provisions under section 142 (4) of the School Act,
the Board of Education of School DistrictNo. 52 (Prince Rupert)
hereby approves the proposed Five-Year Capital Plan (Major Capital Programs) for
2026/27, as provided on the Five-Year Capital Plan Summary for 2026/27 submitted to
the Ministry of Education and Child Care.

I hereby certify this to be a true copy of the resolution for the approval of the
proposed Five-Year Capital Plan (Major Capital Programs) for 2026/27 adopted by the
Board of Education, on this the 23rd day of September 2025.

Secretary-Treasurer Signature

Secretary-Treasurer Name

119 of 140




INFORMATION REPORT

DATE: September 16, 2025

TO: Board of Education

FROM: Brittney Verissimo, Director of Finance

RE: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION DISCLOSURE REPORT

Each year the Board is required to complete and post a Public Sector Executive
Compensation Report, under the provisions of the Public Sector Employers Act. The report
includes a compensation policy for executive staff as well as a disclosure of compensation for
the Superintendent and the four (4) highest paid executives being paid a base annual salary
of more than $125,000 per annum.

120 of 140




Public Sector Executive Compensation Disclosure Report 2024-2025
School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)

The Board of Education encourages and adopts practiceé that enable the district to attract,
retain, incent, and reward qualified, high-performing employees who are critical to the delivery of
quality public education programs to students in School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert).

A key component of this approach is the development and maintenance of a framework for
executive and exempt staff compensation that is rational, defensible, competitive and able to be
effectively administered.

Compensation Philosophy

The Board's compensation philosophy aligns with the statutory system of exempt staff
compensation administration in the K-12 public education sector and the Biritish Columbia Public
School Employers’ Association (BCPSEA) exempt staff compensation management plan
(BCPSEA Policy 95-06, Compensation and Employment Standards for School District
Employees Not Subject to a Collective Agreement), which is an approved compensation plan
under the Public Sector Employers Act.

Compensation mandates/direction facilitated by the Public Sector Employers’ Council
Secretariat (PSEC Secretariat) from time to time are the official policy of BCPSEA and any
adjustments to exempt staff compensation levels must align with the parameters of the
prevailing compensation mandate/direction.

The Board’s compensation philosophy is based upon a set of principles that guide development,
maintenance and decision-making with respect to salary structures and total compensation
packages and programs.

At its core is an integrated view of compensation and rewards — not only traditional,
quantifiable elements such as salary and benefits (compensation), but also more intangible
elements such as career opportunities, learning and career development, work challenge, and
supportive culture (rewards). The total rewards compensation program further integrates with
plans that establish the board of education’s overall education, business, and human resources
strategies and objectives to facilitate the attraction and retention of qualified, experienced,
motivated and high-potential employees who are committed to the board’s overarching goal of
delivering a high quality public education experience to BC students.

Inherent in the compensation philosophy are the following core principles:

= Performance: The compensation structure and administration of the structure supports and
promotes meaningful career growth and development opportunities, and a performance-
based (merit) organizational culture.

» Differentiation: Differentiation of compensation is supported where there are differences in
the scope of the position within an organization, and/or due to superior individual/team
contributions.

= Accountability: Compensation decisions are objective and based upon a clear and well
documented rationale that demonstrates the appropriate expenditure of public funds.

= Transparency: The compensation program is designed, managed, administered, and
communicated in a manner that ensures the program is clearly understood by employees

121 of 140




and the public while protecting individual personal information.

Labour Market Comparators

Key to the compensation philosophy is the need to maintain a meaningful level of
competitiveness with the relevant external labour market. Consistent with industry standards,
“labour market” is defined in the BCPSEA sectoral exempt compensation management plan
(Policy 95-06, Compensation and Employment Standards for School District Employees Not
Subject to a Collective Agreement) as:

* The recruitment pool for these employees
» The destination sector for these employees.

The following considerations guide articulation of the relevant labour market:

Degree of recruitment from these jurisdictions/organizations

Size of the organization, as size drives the span of control and scope of accountability
Geographic location

Transferability of skills

Comparability of qualifications and experience

Comparability of authority and consequence of error.

For executive and exempt staff positions in the BC K-12 public education sector, the relevant
labour market includes:

1. Other BC school districts (primary labour market)

2. Other BC public sector organizations

3. Other Canadian school districts where relevant (to the extent that BC school districts recruit
from and lose employees to these jurisdictions, this segment of the labour market is
weighted to Alberta and Ontario (and to a lesser extent, Saskatchewan) consistent with the
industry-standard definition of labour market)

4. Selected private sector organizations where relevant.

The Board’s executive and exempt staff salary structure was developed on a total compensation
basis, consistent with governance and technical best practice, as part of the BCPSEA Sectoral
Exempt Staff Compensation Review Project conducted with the approval of the PSEC
Secretariat. This comprehensive market review ensured development of an executive and
exempt staff salary structure for each of the province’s 60 public school districts in alignment
with each district’s relevant comparator labour market and internal organizational structure. This
approach includes:

= Consideration of all components of the total rewards model.
» Consideration of the relevant labour market for compensation comparison purposes.

» Linking pay ranges to neutral, relevant factors (e.g., job content (specific
duties/responsibilities), required skill level, required competencies, required qualifications).

* Ensuring appropriate relationships exist between positions in the district’s organizational
hierarchy.

2 | Page 122 of 140



= Considering the ways in which appropriate organizational and individual performance
measures may be linked to the administration of the compensation system.

In balancing external competitiveness with internal equity, the reference point for executive and
exempt total compensation is currently the median of the relevant comparator labour market.

The Board’s total compensation package for executive/senior management staff is comprised of
the following elements.

Cash Compensation

Total cash compensation includes annual base salary and monthly (or annual) vehicle
allowance.

*»  Annual base salary
Annual base salary is considered in the context of the total compensation package.

*» Vehicle provisions

Due to the diverse geography of the district and the need to visit schools and other district
worksites, the Board provides a monthly vehicle allowance to the Superintendent and other
senior management positions. The monthly vehicle allowance is set at a level competitive
with the vehicle allowances provided to Superintendents and other senior managers in
districts of similar size and geography.

Non-cash Compensation

The non-cash elements of the total compensation package include:

» Health and welfare benefits such as basic medical, extended medical, dental, group life,
short-term and long-term disability, employee and family assistance program, etc. consistent
with such benefits as offered in the K-12 sector generally.

» Pension benefits through either the Teachers’ Pension Plan or the Municipal Pension Plan.

« In addition, upon retirement executive/senior management employees are eligible to
receive a long-service recognition award (or retirement allowance) based on the
following criteria:

o After five (5) continuous years of service with the District, the employee shall be
entitled to a payment of one (1) day for each month of service of the School District
to a maximum of one-hundred and twenty-five (125) days, calculated at the rate of
pay at the time the employee leaves the service of the Board.

= Paid time off including an annual vacation entitlement of thirty-five (35) days. Pursuant to
the Public Sector Employers Act, carry forward of unused accumulated vacation is not
permitted. If, however, the individual employment contract does allow for carry forward of
unused accumulated vacation, then such vacation may be carried forward for one year only
and at the end of that year, the unused accumulated vacation must be used in full, paid out,
or a combination of the two.

3| Page
123 of 140




Compensation Administration

The Board engages in consistent and ongoing administration of the compensation structure to
ensure that reality matches philosophy and that equity is maintained. An ongoing system of
compensation review conducted and managed through BCPSEA and the PSEC Secretariat
ensures that total compensation levels are benchmarked externally against the appropriate
labour market and internally against appropriate job criteria.

The Board works with BCPSEA to obtain information and advice relating to the executive and
exempt compensation structures and to ensure alignment with the compensation
mandates/directions established for the provincial public sector by PSEC Secretariat.

* Annual base salary administration

The salary structure for executive and exempt positions is based on placement at the
appropriate salary range in the structure reflective of labour market competitiveness and
internal equity. Placement and progression through the salary range is dependent upon
competency growth and performance. The maximum of the salary range typically represents
the job rate for the position, defined as the salary that should be paid to an incumbent who
has established him/herself as meeting all the goals and expectations of the position in a
fully satisfactory manner. New hires are generally not placed at the job rate on
commencement of employment, although due to the key leadership roles and
responsibilities, such individuals are generally recruited at a highly competent level and are
often placed at the mid- to maximum point in the salary range reflective of the required
competence, qualifications, and experience.

The decision whether to grant a salary increase to the position of Superintendent only is at
the sole discretion of the Board of Education and is the only executive/exempt position for
which BCPSEA approval of an increase to any element of the compensation package is not
required. In determining whether a salary increase is warranted, the Board considers such
factors as performance, competence, external competitiveness, and internal equity including
the maintenance of appropriate salary differentials through the organization. The Board
typically utilizes market compensation data and salary/compensation structures developed
by BCPSEA for this position as well as all other positions in the exempt staff structure.
Potential increases are considered within the Board’s overall compensation budget.

Accountability

Underlying the Board's compensation philosophy and approach is the understanding that legal
and regulatory mandates are considered a baseline for implementing any compensation plan or
practice. Compensation administration in the K-12 public education sector currently operates
within the following context:

* the Public Sector Employers Act, which establishes the legislative policy framework for
exempt staff compensation administration in the public sector

= the BCPSEA exempt staff compensation management plan (Policy 95-06, Compensation
and Employment Standards for School District Employees Not Subject to a Collective
Agreement), which is an approved compensation plan under the Public Sector Employers
Act.

4 | Page 124 of 140



= compensation mandates/direction facilitated by the PSEC Secretariat from time to time. Any
adjustments to exempt staff compensation levels must align with the parameters of the
prevailing compensation mandate/direction. ‘

Under the current compensation administration system in the K-12 sector:

« the Board of Education is solely responsible for the establishment and maintenance of
compensation levels for the position of Superintendent of Schools. As elected school
trustees, the Board is accountable to its public and therefore ensures that it adheres to
proper human resources practices including statutory requirements with respect to
executive and exempt staff compensation.

= proposed salary range placement and compensation adjustments for all other executive and
exempt positions in the district must be reviewed and approved by BCPSEA prior to
implementation.

5| Page
125 of 140




126 of 140

$25'881 $ 652'€¥C $ $29'vET $ 00¥'2 $ Gz8'lZ $ 0.6°LL $ - 628'26L $ JuepusluLadng JUB}SISSY ‘puUOd BIpUES
G9G'L9lL $ LeTOLL $ 63858 $ 00€8 $ £6L'0L $ E 67168 $ suopeladQ J0 J0joalig ‘UoHnqgiepn sswer
9P9VLL $ 0sv'el § €0LCL $§ £60'61 $ B 000°0€} $ Jainseas] Aiejesoas ‘zenbzep anbuug
£€92'95L $ 6¥0'961 $ 858'¥8L $ 00Z'L $ 0Pyl $ L08'GL $ - LLy'esL $ SoueUlS
10 Joyoaulq / Jaunseal | Alejesoss Bunoy ‘owissiiap Asuplg
1/8°'1€2 $§ 8€2'05¢C $ 119292 $ 001G $ S6v'vT § 05291 $ E 99.'91C $ JuspusjuLRdng ‘[lowes MaJpuy
€202/2202 $202/£202 uonesuadwog (mojaq uoisusd sjyausg uonesuadwon Kiejeg uonisod pue aweN
[ejoL papuedxa) ue|d aA1uadU|
§202/v202 uonesuadwo) /snuogpioeqpioH
13410 IV
uonesuadwo) [ejoL

§Z0z 1€ 3|qe uonesuadwo) Atewwng

34YNSOT1ISIA NOILYVSNIdWOD JAILNIIXT

(149dny 22ulid) 2§ PMISIA 00YIS




127 of 140

a = 00¥'2 § n = - 00¥'C $ juspusjuuadng juB}sISSY ‘puod elpues
& r 08S‘L $ = 600°L % - 685'8 ¢ suopjeladQ Jo Jojoalq ‘UOUNGIeAA Sawer
000G $ 0589 $ 009'} $ = - 5 0S¥'el $ Jainseals | Alejeioss ‘zenbzep anbuug

ERIVEIVE
= - 00Z'L $ B = - 002'L $ 10 J0joauqg / Jaunseal | Aiejei0ag buijoy ‘owissusp Asupug
= - 00L'S $ e < = 00L's ¢ juspusjuladng ‘lowes mapuy

3y30 S3JouEMO||Y IoUBMO||Y 9AedT pled  |InoAed uonjesep 9JUBISADS uopesuadwo) uonjISod pue sweN
By0 uonenodsuel) 1aylo IV
| ssysinbiad / 9I91YSA

S70z 1€ 3|qe] uonesuadwo) 13y1Q Atewwns

JUNSOTISIA NOILYSNIdINOD JAILNDIXT




128 of 140

*1e9A JUa1IN2 Y} Ul Ljuow | pue ‘Jeak Joud ayj ul syluow || Jo} Juspusjuuadng Buijoy Sem puod elpues
:3)JON [el3udn

juspusjuledng JUBISISSY ‘PUOd BIPUEBS

*6Z0Z ‘9z A1eniga aA10au 10LISIp 9y} Wol) paubisal uoungiep) "I “Lels Jdwaxs 1oy sasealoul Alejes paseq-aouewlopnad ‘[enuue oy
$5920.d Paseq-10}09s Z|-) U} YIIM S0UBpI022. Ul €202 ‘| ANr 40 se asealtoul Alejes paseqg-souewiopad %00°C B PAAIS03] UOHNGIBAA SSWer
:9JON [eloUdD)

suogesadQ J0 Jojoalig ‘uounglep) sawer

%202 ‘1 JaquaAoN aA0aya uolisod Jainseal] Alejesoag ayj pajuiodde sem zanbzep snbuug
:9]JON [eiduan

Jainseal] Aieja1oag ‘zanbzep anbuu3g

“1eaA JUa.LIND By} Ul SYIUOW  pue ‘Jeak Joud 3y} ul SYuow g | 10} Jainseal] Alea1oas Buioy sem owissua Asupug
:9JON |eIdUdD)

9oueUlq
10 1010811 / Jaunseal] Aueja1oas buljoy ‘owissuap Asupug

‘yes Jdwaxa 10} sasealoul Alejes paseqg-soueulopad ‘lenuue
104 $S9204d Paseg-10}03S ZL-Y Y} YIIM SOUBPI0IJE Ul $20Z ‘| AINr 40 Se asealoul Auejes paseq-souewiopad %,00°G € POAISJSI [IOWES MIIpUY

JuspuajuLadng ‘loWes malpuy

JYNSO1ISIA NOILVSNIdINOD JFAILNIIXT

S9310N




PRINCE

RUPERT OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT
School District No. 52

—_E? = W, K. Macllroy Acting Director of Operations

Monthly Report to the Board

June 2025

Facilities-

Conrad:  German cock roach issues has been resolved with glue traps catching
only a handful and mostly regular house spiders.

PRMS: Main gas valve in the boiler room was replaced due to a faulty seal.

CHSS: Main fire panel and alarm is still faulty. Graydon Electrical is scheduled
for this July to trouble shoot the issues.
Summer students were hired to help in grounds work/painting.
Building permits were submitted to the city for summer projects.
Greenhouses/Wap driveway/Lax Kxeen's roof columns/CHSS
Siding/Roosevelts fire suppression upgrade.

Custodial -
All supplies have arrived and been delivered to the schools:
Equipment/Tools/ Floor Finish/ Chemicals

Energy & Conservation
All schools are ready to have to have their heating systems shut down.

Transportation-
54 InTown 2 Out of Town

Health &Safety -

Regular scheduled district/school meetings.

129 of 140




PRINCE
RUPERT OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT
School District No. 52

—_l_ » K. Macllroy Acting Director of Operations

Monthly Report to the Board

July 2025

Facilities:

Custodial:
Crews are well underway with the regular cleaning. Pine/PRMS/CHSS. Gym floors,
this year gym floors are being prepped and finished in house. Roosevelts sensory
change/washroom and classroom are being renovated.
Roosevelts: Trig plumbing has started phase 2 of the fire suppression
system, including new electrical/valves/main fire pump and supervisor
switches. Summer students have been keeping busy with the grounds. Various
work orders and school wish lists are underway.

Energy &
Conservation:

All boiler systems have been shut down for conservation and maintenance.

Transportation:
All maintenance vehicles have been washed. All 4 buses are ready for August's
inspection.

Health &Safety:
Regular maintenance meetings.

130 of 140




PRINCE
RUPERT OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT
School District No. 52

—-I - / K. Macllroy Acting Director of Operations

Monthly Report to the Board

August 2025

Facilities-
Work orders and school wish lists continue.
Roosevelt's sensory washroom and classroom are completed. All yellow safety markings have
been touched up. Annual fire suppression systems, panels/pumps/and fire extinguishers have
been certified.
CHSS track was pressure washed and all drainage was cleaned out.
The 3 greenhouse locations have been prepped. Falcon Engineering is now assisting us with
the commercial kitchen.
Playgrounds were cleaned/inspected and various toys were painted.
Stairs by the CHSS band room were refinished with a topcoat of cement. Fire and intruder
alarm panels have now been all fixed.
Various locations had walls/shelves/cubbies refinished.
Bird spikes have been installed under the main entrance at CHSS.
Roof surveys on all our district buildings were completed. Strong start in the Rupert Square
mall has been relocated to Roosevelt school.
26 school wish lists were completed along with 76 work orders.

Custodial

All floors were refinished, carpets cleaned and furniture returned to classrooms.

Energy &

Conservation -
All boilers have been inspected and serviced.
Heating systems will be turned back on Sept 5%

Transportation-
Micro buses have been permitted to operate
Bluebirds will be permitted on September 26th

Health &Safety -

Regular maintenance meetings.

131 of 140




Prince Rupert School District 52

PRINCE
634 6t Avenue East, V8] 1X1
Bt‘.'aé%’iln S&!Dﬁ&ﬁlsz Prince Rupert, B.C.
s * T.250.624.6717 F. 250.624.6517
— e’ www.rupertschools.ca

IT Board Meeting Report — Summer Projects Summary

Date: September 2025

1. Student Device Reimaging

e Successfully reimaged student devices at Charles Hays Secondary School (CHSS) and
Roosevelt Elementary School.

o This initiative ensures optimized performance and updated software environments for the
upcoming academic year.

2. New Lab Installation & Device Refresh

e The computer lab was refreshed at Lax Kxeen Elementary School, featuring:
o 25 desktop CPUs and monitors.
o The monitors were generously donated by SD82 (Coast Mountain School District)
and integrated into SD52's infrastructure.
e The refresh enhances digital learning capabilities and supports curriculum delivery.

3. D2L Implementation

o D2L (Brightspace online learning) platform has been initiated for use across the district.
We will gradually decommission the Moodle Server which was used to provide online
learning access to students mainly at CHSS.

o This marks a significant step toward modernizing digital learning and improving access to
course materials and communication tools for students and educators as well as aligning
with the MECC's online learning platform.

SD52 Experience

Indigenous Ways of Knowing Culture of Care Future Focused System

132 of 140



Prince Rupert School District 52

RPRINCE 634 6t Avenue East, V8J 1X1

= l{DPistE'cﬁ:!-sz Prince Rupert, B.C.
o 00l Distri

) T.250.624.6717 F. 250.624.6517

—--——/ www.rupertschools.ca

4. Laserfiche Cloud Migration

o Laserfiche document management system has been successfully migrated to the cloud
from in-house hosting.
e Benefits include:
o Improved accessibility and scalability.
o Enhanced data security and disaster recovery capabilities.
o Reduced maintenance overhead for IT staff.

Next Steps & Recommendations

e Continue monitoring performance and user feedback on D2L and Laserfiche cloud services.
e Plan for additional device refreshes and infrastructure upgrades in schools with aging

technology.
o Explore further opportunities for inter-district collaboration and resource sharing.

SD52 Experience

Indigenous Ways of Knowing Culture of Care Future Focused System

133 of 140



School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)
Policy Committee
Monday, September 15, 2025
4:45 pm

MINUTES

In Attendance : Kate Toye
Andrew Samoil
Kristy Maier
Tammy Dickens

The meeting was called to order at 4:55 p.m.

1. Policies for Approval
a. 1370 — Physical Restraint and Seclusion Policy
b. 5120 — Naming Policy
c. 6320 — Superintendent of Schools/CEO Roles & Responsibilities Policy

The committee agreed to send the Policies 1370 and 6320 for approval to the board meeting and
to move the Naming policy to the In-Camera for board discussion.

2. Policies for Review
a. 1340 — Opioid Overdose Response Policy
The committee agreed to table this policy until the October meeting.

3. Other Business
None

Meeting Adjourned at 5:25 p.m.

Next Meeting: Tuesday, October 14, 2025

134 of 140




Policy No. 6320
Date Approved:  March 9, 1999
Date Amended:

Position Responsible for updates:

6320 Superintendent's Job-Description—
Superintendent of Schools/CEO Roles and Responsibilities Policy

The Board recognizes the need for one person to have the overall responsibility for the
management of the school district in order to provide leadership and oversight.

Therefore, the Board designates the Superintendent of Schools as the Chief Executive
Officer and delegates to the Superintendent of Schools/CEO responsibility for overall
administration of the district.

The Superintendent of Schools/CEO is responsible for providing reports which focus on
governance implications and is accountable to the corporate Board for the conduct,
management and operation of the district, for providing leadership in administration and
instructional programs and for ensuring compliance with legislative requirements and
statuses.

All Board authority delegated to the staff of the district is delegated through the
Superintendent of Schools/CEO, except for matters that are delegated to the Secretary-
Treasurer through legislation or the decision of the Board.

Specific areas of the Superintendent of Schools/CEO’s responsibility are:

The Superintendent of Schools/CEO is the Lead Educator in the district. ~ The
Superintendent/CEO is accountable to the Board of Education for the general

Page 1 of 5 135 of 140



management of the affairs of the district, for providing educational leadership and for
implementing approved policies and programs to ensure the attainment of the objectives
established by the Ministry of Education and Child Care and Board. In addition, the
Superintendent/CEO plays a key role in advising the Board and recommending actions to
address current and emerging issues.

The Superintendent/CEO advances the district's ability to find innovative and collaborative
ways to improve and enhance the programs and initiatives of the district, while staying
focused on a cohesive vision as articulated by the learning community. The

Superintendent/CEO promotes the school district to the broader community and works
collaboratively to engage all partners.

It is the role of the Superintendent of Schools/CEO to:
1. Student Welfare

1.1 Establish a safe, caring and orderly learning environment that supports the
general well-being of all students.

1.2 Ensure the safety and welfare of students while participating in school programs
or while being transported to or from school programs on transportation
authorized by the school district.

1.3 Ensure facilities adequately accommodate students.

2. Student Learning

2.1 Provide leadership in all matters relating to the operation of the district.

2.2 Ensure student have the opportunity to meet the standards of education as set
out by the Ministry of Education and Child Care.

2.3 Implement policies/direction established by the Ministry of Education and Child
Care and make the board aware of any pertinent legislative changes.

2.4 Engage in professional development activities to ensure the excellence, efficacy,
and relevance of current educational practices, including computer & related digital

technologies.

3. District Vision and Planning

Page 2 of 5 136 of 140



3.1 Recommend to the Board of Education revisions and refinements to the
district’s vision and mission to ensure they continue to address the educational and
administrative objectives of the district.

3.2 Ensure the strategies identified in the district vision are addressed in a timely
and effective manner and is accountable to the Board for meeting the strategic and
operating objectives established for the district.

3.3 On an annual basis, submit to the Board of Education an analysis of progress in
achieving objectives, sets out rationale for variances and recommends modifications
to the district vision for the remainder of the year.

4. District Policies and Programs

4.1 Ensure that the quality of programs, support services, education and research
meet the standards established by the Board and the Ministry of Education and
Child Care and that all measurement of employee performance is conducted to
ensure accomplishment of the objectives of the district vision.

5. Relationships with Rightsholders and Partners

5.1 Develop effective relationships with all agencies, organizations and institutions
with common interests with the district, including:

5.1.1 Government of British Columbia

Support the Board in maintaining effective relationships at the political level
and ensure the district, through the Superintendent of Schools/CEO, has a
strong and effective working relationship with senior officials in the Ministry
of Education and Child Care.

5.1.2 Education-Related Organizations

5.1.2.1 Work in a cooperative manner with other organizations committed to
ensuring the public education system is responsive to the needs of the
people of the Prince Rupert School district, including:

e Prince Rupert Principals’ and Vice Principals’ Association

e Prince Rupert District Teachers Union

e International Union of Operating Engineers

e DPAC

Page 3 of 5 137 of 140



e BCPSEA; BCSTA; BCPVPA; BCSSA; BCTF
e Affiliated Provincial, National and International Organizations

5.1.3 Media and Community Relations

5.1.3.1 Maintain and enhance the district's public image by supporting the
Board of Education in developing strategies and approaches for dealing with
the media and the community at large, ensuring that the district has a clear
and positive profile.

5.1.3.2 Perform other duties as assigned, from time to time, by the Board of
Education.

5.1.3.3 Ensure the Board is kept current on all activities of the district by
preparing reports on operations, including financial, educational policy and
personnel issues, as well as other important issues facing the district.

5.1.34 Develop and present recommended courses of action and
alternatives to the Board for its consideration.

5.1.4 Board of Education

Ensure each member of the Board of Education has all the information
necessary to properly exercise their responsibilities. Upon the election of
each new Board member, the Superintendent/CEO will coordinate a
program to provide new members with background information on the
district, the role of the Board members and the general issues facing the
district at that time.

6. Developments in Education
6.1 Keep up to date on developments in the field of education in order to ensure
the Board has the best possible information to address and consider emerging
issues.

7. Financial and Administrative Management

7.1 Oversee the development and implementation of effective financial and
administrative systems and ensure that the financial resources of the district are

Page 4 of 5 138 of 140



maximized and within the objectives, policies, plans and budgets established by the
Board of Education.

8. Leadership Role

8.1 Provide leadership in support of members of the Board of Education in
identifying and addressing issues of concern in education and in building
understanding and developing consensus around positions and actions to be taken
by the district.

8.2 Provide leadership to the employees of the district in order to capitalize on their
full potential. In doing so, will stimulate, motivate, guide and direct all district staff
to contribute their maximum to the realization of the district's goals and objectives.

9. Organization and Management of Staff
9.1 Develop and maintain an organization structure for the staff of the district that
ensures these resources are directed towards accomplishing the objectives laid out

in the district vision.

9.2 Ensure an effective recruitment and selection program is in place to continue to
attract high calibre staff.

9.3 Ensure the establishment of a clear definition of the responsibility of each
employee, the ongoing management, direction and motivation of the staff.

139 of 140
Page 5 of 5



Policy No. 1370
Date Approved:  14-May-2019
Date Amended:  9-Nov-2021

Position Responsible for updates:
1370 Physical Restraint and Seclusion Policy

The Board of Education intends to maintain a safe, secure and respectful environment for
students and staff. The Board recognizes its responsibility to work with students in a
manner which is similar to a kind, firm, and judicious parent. Positive and least restrictive
approaches in the provision of student supports are considered best practice. The
overriding goals of this policy are:

a) respect for student rights;
b) maintaining student dignity; and
C) the safety of all involved.

It is expected that school personnel will implement positive behaviour supports and
interventions, behaviour plans, emergency or safety plans, and other plans to prevent and
de-escalate potentially unsafe situations. It is expected that parents and, where
appropriate, students, are consulted in the development of positive behaviour supports
and interventions, behaviour plans, and emergency or safety plans.

These supports, interventions and plans are intended to minimize the risk that a student
will pose imminent danger of serious physical harm to self or others. If they are not
successful, and the student poses an imminent danger of serious physical harm to self or
others, physical restraint and seclusion are used as a last resort.

When physical restraint or seclusion are used it will be with the least amount of force and
in the least restrictive way, and in proportion to the danger of the behaviour. Physical
restraint or seclusion are never conducted in a manner that could, in any way, cause harm
to a student. Restraint or seclusion is discontinued once the imminent danger has passed.

Related Policies and Regulations:
1370-10 Physical Restraint and Seclusion Regulation

Page 1 of 1
140 of 140





